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Corporate Overview

OUR GENESIS

Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (JACPL) is a 

public listed company of the esteemed Jubilant Bhartia 

Group. JACPL is listed on the leading national exchanges, 

the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and the 

BSE Limited (BSE). It has a diversified chemical products 

portfolio that caters to the varying needs of several sectors. 

Broadly, JACPL operates across two distinct and vital 

business verticals: Performance Polymers & Chemicals and 

Agri Products. The Performance Polymers & Chemicals 

Business contributes a substantial 71% to the total revenue 

from operations, while the Agri Business accounts for 29%. 

The Company’s product portfolio consists of both B2B and 

B2C products.

Presently, JACPL operates at four manufacturing locations, 

strategically located across India, with a total of 8 advanced 

manufacturing plants situated at Gajraula and Sahibabad, 

Uttar Pradesh, Kapasan (Chittorgarh), Rajasthan and Savli 

(Vadodara), Gujarat.

OUR STRENGTHS

JACPL’s operational strength is underpinned by robust 

infrastructure and a far-reaching presence, serving 

customers in several countries with 20% of its revenues 

derived from exports. The Company boasts a total capacity 

of 80,000 MTPA for Polymers and Chemicals and 400,000 

MTPA for Single Super Phosphate. With a committed 

workforce of over 1,400 employees (excluding contractual), 

a broad distribution network of 25,000+ distributors, 

dealers, and retailers, and a set of dedicated advanced 

Research & Development centres for continuous product 

and process innovation, JACPL is strategically positioned for 

continued growth.

OUR BUSINESSES

PERFORMANCE POLYMERS & CHEMICALS 

In the Performance Polymers & Chemicals Business, JACPL 

holds prominent positions across its sub-segments:

Consumer Products: Specializing in woodworking 

adhesives and wood finishes, JACPL boasts a widespread 

distribution network. Its firmly established brands, 

including ‘Jivanjor’, ‘Charmwood’, and ‘Ultra Italia’, are 

recognized as top-tier consumer brands in the adhesives 

market and reputable players in the wood finishes segment.

Food Polymers: The Company is a foremost global supplier 

of Polyvinyl Acetate (PVAc) in solid form for the chewing 

gum industry, holding the No.1 position in India and No. 2 

globally (for SPVA in solid form). Its ‘Vamipol’ series of 

brands (Vamipol 5, 14, 15, 17, 30, 60, 100) serve market 

leaders in the chewing gum industry worldwide.

Latex: JACPL is one of India’s largest manufacturers and a 

global leader (excluding China) of VP Latex, primarily used 

in automotive tire cord dipping and conveyor belt fabric. 

The Company also produces SBR and NBR Latex, supplying 

these in bulk to global automobile tyre manufacturers and 

tire cord dippers. Key products include ‘Encord VP Latex’, 

‘Encord SBR Latex’, and ‘Encord NBR Latex’, with the latter 

also used in automotive gasket jointing.

AGRI BUSINESS

The Agri Business segment offers an extensive range of 

agri-input products in the crop nutrition category under the 

widely recognised and favoured brand “Ramban.” This 

brand is well-regarded among the farming community and 

is firmly established in Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand and 

Bihar, as well as in Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh. The 

Company manufactures Single Super Phosphate (SSP) in 

both powder and granulated forms, fortified with vital 

elements like boron, zinc and magnesium, conforming to 

fertiliser control order standards. JACPL is the No.1 player 

for SSP in Uttar Pradesh. JACPL also provides Bio-stimulant 

& micro nutrient for enhanced plant growth and correcting 

deficiencies in crop. 
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Board of Directors
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In FY 2025, a Composite Scheme of Arrangement was sanctioned by the 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, via its order 

dated August 07, 2024, such that Jubilant Industries Limited (JIL) was 

amalgamated with and into JACPL. The amalgamation was done in two 

stages, where HSSS Investment Holding Private Limited, KBHB Investment 

Holding Private Limited, and SSBPB Investment Holding Private Limited were 

amalgamated into JIL effective September 04, 2024, and subsequently, JIL 

itself was amalgamated into JACPL effective October 03, 2024. Following this 

strategic consolidation, the equity shares of Jubilant Agri and Consumer 

Products Limited were listed and admitted to trading on BSE Limited and 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, effective February 14, 2025.

of Jubilant Industries Limited with and 

into Jubilant Agri and Consumer products 

Limited 

Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports
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Financial Highlights
Consolidated Financial Performance

FY21

6,218.08

FY22

11,551.66

FY23

14,670.78

FY24

12,532.63

FY25

15,610.30

Revenue from operations (  in )` Mn

FY21

492.53

FY22

1,014.50

FY23

1,012.56

FY24

1,072.15

FY25

1,457.19

EBITDA 
(excluding other income and adding exceptional items) (` in Mn)

FY21

2,813.80

FY22

7,021.70

FY23

5,846.80

FY24

17,674.50

FY25

18,954.40

Market Cap as on March 31 of each FY (` in Mn)

Notes:

1. Financial data/ratio for the FY 2021 & 2022 are available on Standalone basis

2. Market Cap of erstwhile Listed Company JIL which is merged into JACPL has been considered for previous years
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FY21

0.22

FY22

0.35

FY23

0.28

FY24

0.16

FY25

0.34

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

FY21

1.13

FY22

5.78

FY23

4.96

FY24

3.55

FY25

8.93

Interest Coverage Ratio

FY21

1.54

FY22

0.99

FY23

0.84

FY24

0.61

FY25

0.17

Debt Equity Ratio

Note: Financial data/ratio for the FY 2021 & 2022 are available on Standalone basis
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Awards and Accolades 2025

JACPL Gajraula plant has received 

“Grow Care Safety Award” in Platinum 

category for plant’s performance in 

Safety Excellence.

JACPL Gajraula plant has received 

Outstanding Achievement in “Green 

Tech Safety Excellence“ Category 

JACPL Sahibabad plant has received 

“Grow Care Safety Award” in Gold 

category for plant’s performance in 

Safety Excellence.
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JACPL Savli plant has 

received “Grow Care 

Safety Award” in Gold 

category for plant’s 

performance in Safety 
Excellence.

Jubilant’s Gajraula Plant has obtained an 
International Recognition from EcoVadis. 

The company has obtained a score of 
62/100 and, for this achievement, has been 

awarded a Bronze EcoVadis Medal.

This result places our plant among the top 35 

percent of companies assessed by EcoVadis.

Jubilant’s Savli (Vadodara) Plant has 
obtained an International Recognition 

from EcoVadis. 
The company has obtained a score of 
60/100 and, for this achievement, has 

been awarded a Bronze EcoVadis Medal.

This result places our plant among the top 

35 percent of companies assessed by 

EcoVadis.

JACPL Kapasan plant 

has received “Grow Care 

Safety Award” in Gold 

category for plant’s 

performance in Safety 
Excellence.
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Business Operations

SSP, SPVA, Adhesive, Wood Finishes and chemicals

Gajraula, Uttar PradeshGajraula, Uttar PradeshGajraula, Uttar PradeshGajraula, Uttar PradeshGajraula, Uttar PradeshGajraula, Uttar Pradesh

Adhesives

Sahibabad, Uttar PradeshSahibabad, Uttar PradeshSahibabad, Uttar PradeshSahibabad, Uttar PradeshSahibabad, Uttar PradeshSahibabad, Uttar Pradesh

Latex

Savli (Vadodara), GujaratSavli (Vadodara), GujaratSavli (Vadodara), GujaratSavli (Vadodara), GujaratSavli (Vadodara), GujaratSavli (Vadodara), Gujarat

SSP

Kapasan (Chittorgarh), RajasthanKapasan (Chittorgarh), RajasthanKapasan (Chittorgarh), RajasthanKapasan (Chittorgarh), RajasthanKapasan (Chittorgarh), RajasthanKapasan (Chittorgarh), Rajasthan

Manufacturing Manufacturing 
PlantsPlants

Manufacturing 
Plants
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Esteemed Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to address you as we present 

our Annual Report for the fiscal year 2024-25. Your 

unwavering trust and continued support remain the 

bedrock of our journey, and I am proud to share the 

progress and performance of Jubilant Agri and Consumer 

Products Limited (JACPL), our company, amidst a dynamic 

global landscape.

The fiscal year 2024-25 unfolded against a backdrop of 

complex macroeconomic shifts. Resilience carried the 

global economy through an environment characterised by 

rising geopolitical tensions, fluctuating food and 

commodity prices, and supply chain blockages, with a 

steady growth of 3.3%. The IMF's April 2025 report 

highlighted a downward revision in global growth forecasts 

for 2025 to 2.8%, reflecting the added uncertainties from 

increased trade protectionism. Domestically, India's GDP 

growth moderated to 6.5% from 9.2% in the previous fiscal 

year, influenced by factors such as a manufacturing and 

services slowdown, lower government spending on 

account of elections, volatile monsoon, and the impact of 

subsidies. The average CPI inflation in India for FY2024-25 

stood at a manageable 4.6% because of coordinated policy 

efforts. This created a conducive environment for the RBI to 

cut policy rates and prioritise economic growth in FY2025-

26. In this intricate environment, JACPL also demonstrated 

remarkable agility, adapting swiftly to emerging challenges 

and leveraging opportunities.

During the reported year, our company pursued strategic 

initiatives to strengthen its market position and enhance 

operational efficiency. We expanded our footprint in the 

consumer products segment, with our flagship brands 

JivanJor, Ultra Italia PU and Charmwood gained further 

traction in the wood working adhesives and finishes 

markets. We also expended our portfolio with new offerings 

in maintenance adhesives and construction chemicals. In 

the Agri and Performance Polymers segments, we invested 

in Research & Development and process optimisation to 

meet evolving customer needs. Our focus on sustainability 

and innovation remained central, with our state-of-the-art 

R&D centre driving the development of cutting-edge 

solutions tailored to market demands. Our commitment to 

Digital and IT Transformation has been unwavering, driving 

business process digitisation through new ERP system and 

other integrated IT tools. 

Financially, we delivered an excellent performance in 

FY2024-25, driven by increased market share across our 

product portfolio resulted in consolidated Revenue from 

Operations growing by 24.6% to `15,610.3 million from 

`12,532.6 million in FY2023-24. However, in comparison, 

our Consolidated Profit After Tax (PAT) from continuing 

operations for FY2024-25 stood at `883.0 million, nearly 

tripled from the `306.8 million level in the previous fiscal 

year. Despite volatile market conditions, we successfully 

improved our margins through better product and 

customer mix. At the same time, we continued to invest 

significantly in brand building, advertising and promotion 

(A&P). 

Our Consumer Products segment continued to 

demonstrate strength. The JivanJor brand maintained 

strong recall, supported by distribution expansion and 

brand affinity initiatives. Our Food Polymers business 

reinforced its global leadership, exploring new markets and 

applications. The Latex business introduced new 

formulations, enabling entry into new applications and 

enhancing customer satisfaction.

In Agri Business segment, we continued to innovate in 

fertilisers, expanding our SSP product range with nutrient-

rich variants like Boronated and Zincated SSP, and 

introducing advanced products such as Super Formula and 

Ultra Gold. Despite competition from alternative 

phosphatic fertilisers, our strong market presence and 

product diversification strategy allowed us to navigate 

these challenges effectively.

Looking ahead, JACPL is committed to transformative 

growth through strategic investments in Brand Building, 

processes, and technology. Our focus remains on 

innovation, sustainability, and operational excellence to 

drive value for customers, shareholders and communities.

I extend my deepest gratitude to our dedicated employees 

for their relentless efforts and commitment, our valued 

customers and partners for their continued trust, and my 

fellow Board members for their invaluable guidance. To our 

shareholders, thank you for your unwavering confidence in 

JACPL's vision. We look forward to a future of 

unprecedented growth and shared success.

Priyavrat Bhartia

Chairman
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Management Discussion & Analysis

AN OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

GLOBAL ECONOMY

The post-COVID burst in global economic output tapered 

off by 2023, when the global economy grew by 3.5%. 

However, despite persistent headwinds, including the 

continued impact of the war in Ukraine on food and energy 

prices, concerns about rising debt, and ongoing 

geopolitical risks, the world economy demonstrated 

resilience in 2024 by growing at a steady 3.3%. This 

performance and diminishing inflation drove the Central 

banks to begin a pivot toward a more accommodative 

stance, fueling expectations of a “soft landing”, a period of 

falling inflation without a severe recession.

The landscape changed drastically in 2025, as the continued 

prospect of trade wars triggered by tariffs announced by 

the US government, slower pace of decline in headline 

inflation, and escalating geopolitical conflicts across 

multiple fronts in Europe, Asia and the Middle East meant 

the governments and central banks around the world 

reordered their policy priorities towards managing risks to 

economic stability. This resulted in the forecasts for global 

growth in 2025 and 2026 seeing a marked reduction from 

3.3% for both years, as projected in the January 2025 World 

Economic Outlook (WEO) report of the International 

Monetary Fund (IMF), to 2.8% in 2025 and 3.0% in 2026, as 

per the April 2025 edition. As per the April 2025 edition of 

the WEO report, growth for the Advanced Economies is 

expected to slow down from 1.8% in 2024 to 1.4% in 2025, 

with the United States decelerating to 1.8% growth in 2025 

from 2.8% in 2024. Similarly, Emerging Market and 

Developing Economies (EMDE) are collectively projected to 

see a diminishing growth rate of 3.7% in 2025 as against 

4.3% in 2024. Intensifying downside risks dominate the 

outlook amid escalating trade tensions and financial market 

adjustments. 

INDIAN ECONOMY

The National Statistics Office (NSO)’s provisional estimates 

of the Annual GDP of the Indian economy saw the country’s 

GDP grow by 6.5% year on year in FY24-25 in real terms and 

by 9.8% in nominal terms. As compared to the expansion of 

Real GDP by 9.2% in FY23-24, this was a marked slowdown, 

which can be attributed to factors such as lower 

government spending in the first half due to elections, 

volatile monsoon, external headwinds such as a global 

manufacturing slump and weaker demand from trading 

partners, and others. The Real Gross Value Added (GVA) 

growth in FY2024-25 was 6.4% vs. 8.6% in the previous 

fiscal. The sectoral growth rates of Real GVA are given in the 

table below.

PERFORMANCE 

POLYMERS

LATEX

(INDUSTRIAL 

POLYMERS)

FOOD

POLYMERS

AGRI

PRODUCTS

1.7

2.9

0.4

4.7

6.1

3.6

1.8

2.8

0.9

4.3

5.3

3.4

1.4
1.8

0.8

3.7

4.5

2.1
1.5 1.7

1.2

3.9
4.6

2.1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Advanced

Economies

Economic Growth Rate (%)

2023 2024 2025 (F) 2026 (F)

United States Euro Area EMDEs EMDEs - Asia EMDEs - Europe

Source: https://www.imf.org/-/media/Files/Publications/WEO/2025/April/English/text.ashx 
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Sector-wise Growth Rates (%) of Real GVA in FY2023-24 

and FY2024-25

Inflation during fiscal 2024-25 moderated from 5.4% in the 

previous fiscal to 4.6%. It remained under 6%, the upper end 

of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)’s tolerance level, from 

September 2024 to June 2025 and hence, the central bank 

announced a total cut of 100 basis points in the repo rate 

between February 2025 - June 2025. While the global 

economic headwinds, geopolitical tensions, and 

uncertainty around tariffs on exports to the USA, India’s 

largest trading partner, are likely to be dampeners, the 

Indian economy is expected to remain resilient due to 

stable macroeconomic parameters, accommodative 

monetary policy, improved prospects for a normal 

monsoon, growth momentum in the services sector, and 

modest pick-up in industrial activity. The economic activity 

is also expected to be supported by robust private 

consumption and traction in fixed capital formation. RBI 

expects the investment activity to improve in light of higher 

capacity utilisation, recovery in government CAPEX, and 

increased credit offtake due to lower interest rates and 

healthy balance sheets of financial and non-financial 

corporates. RBI has therefore projected a growth of 6.5%, 

the same as FY2024-25, in India’s GDP and 3.7% inflation 

during FY2025-26.

Source:

https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=213

2688 

https://www.pib.gov.in/PressNoteDetails.aspx?NoteId=15

4573&ModuleId=3 

INDUSTRY SCENARIO

The Company’s range of products caters to diverse sectors 

of the economy. Hence, the economic prospects of these 

sectors are directly linked to demand for the Company’s 

products, and consequently, its financial performance. The 

product–sector mapping for its product portfolio is given 

below. 

Business Line Company Products Industry Sector

Consumer Products Wood-working Adhesive, 

Wood Finish, Construction 

Chemicals, and Maintenance 

Products 

Furniture & Fixtures/ 

Furnishings, Household 

Maintenance, and Home 

Improvement

Real Estate, Construction & Civil 

Engineering and Home Interior

Packaging Adhesive Packaging Manufacturing

Performance Polymers Food Polymers Confectionary Food & Beverages

Synthetic Latex Tire and conveyor belt Automotive & Farm Equipment

Agri Business Fertilisers, Agri Nutrients, 

Plant Growth Regulators

Fertiliser and Agri Input Agriculture

CONSUMER PRODUCTS DIVISION

The Global Wood Adhesives market is estimated at US$6.76 

billion in 2025 and is expected to reach US$9.43 billion by 

2030, at a CAGR of 6.89% during the forecast period (2025-

2030). By geography, the Asia Pacific held 42.11% revenue 

share of the wood adhesives market in 2024 and is forecast 

to grow at a 7.44% CAGR to 2030.

Sector FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Agr i cu l tu re ,  L i ves tock , 

Forestry & Fishing

4.6 2.7

Mining & Quarrying 2.7 3.2

Manufacturing 4.5 12.3

Electricity, Gas, Water Supply 

& Other Utility Services

5.9 8.6

Construction 9.4 10.4

Trade, Hotels, Transport, 

Communication & Services 

related to Broadcasting

6.1 7.5

Financial, Real Estate & 

Professional Services

7.2 10.3

Pub l i c  Admin i s t r a t ion , 

Defence & Other Services

8.9 8.8
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The Indian wood adhesives market is experiencing strong 

growth, driven by increasing construction activity, a 

booming furniture industry, and rising demand for eco-

friendly adhesives. The market is projected to grow at a 

Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 7.2% from 2023 

to 2030. 

Similarly, the Indian wood coatings market is also 

experiencing growth driven by the increasing demand for 

aesthetically appealing and durable wood finishes. It is 

expected to register a CAGR of 5.04% during the period 

2024 to 2032, as per a report from Market Research.com.

FURNITURE & FIXTURES INDUSTRY 

The products marketed by the Consumer Products division 

primarily cater to the Furniture & Fixtures industry in India. 

The prospects of the Furniture & Fixtures industry in India 

are driven by rising disposable incomes, rapid urbanisation, 

and evolving lifestyle preferences. The market is also 

shifting from a fragmented, unorganised structure to a 

more consolidated and competitive landscape, with 

increasing participation from both domestic and 

international players. 

The Indian furniture market was valued at US$24.75 billion 

in 2024 and is projected to reach US$47.34 billion by 2034, 

growing at a CAGR of 6.70% as per a January 2025 report 

from Expert Market Research. As per the report, India is the 

fifth-largest furniture producer globally. 

Key Industry Trends that affect the demand for the 

Company’s products: 

• Real Estate sector: Both the major segments of the 

Real Estate sector, such as Residential and Commercial 

Leasing, have seen a handsome growth in FY2024-25 

over the previous year. Increased demand for housing 

and commercial space is likely to translate to a greater 

demand for furniture and fixtures.

• Government Policy: Government push for ‘Housing 

For All’ and policy incentives for affordable housing are 

indirectly driving demand for more furniture.

• E-commerce Growth: The online furniture market is 

experiencing s ignificant growth due to the 

convenience of online platforms and increasing 

internet penetration. E-commerce platforms are also 

enab l i ng  sma l l - s ca l e ,  uno rgan i sed  sec to r 

manufacturers in this industry to find buyers nationally.

• Demand for Aesthetic, Modularity and Multi-

functional Furniture: The demand for modular and 

multi-functional furniture is rising, particularly in urban 

areas where space optimisation is crucial. However, 

consumers are increasingly seeking furniture that is not 

just functional but also aesthetically pleasing and in line 

with modern design trends. 

• Material Preference: Wooden furniture holds the 

dominant share of 61-62% in the furniture market over 

other materials like metal and plastic because of a 

cultural affinity for wood, perception of its durability, 

and its aesthetically pleasing look. 

• Sustainability: There’s a growing emphasis on 

sustainable furniture, with increasing adoption of 

engineered wood, certified timber, and hybrid 

materials. The output of engineered wood is steadily 

rising across the world, and this trend is seen especially 

in the Asia Pacific, where capacity climbed 8% in 2024. 

Greater use of engineered wood will anchor the 

demand for high-performance bonding solutions. 

• Challenges: The industry faces challenges related to 

the unorganised sector, lack of standardisation, and 

weak quality control. 

PERFORMANCE POLYMER DIVISION

Synthetic Latex: The Company’s products primarily serve 

the tire industry. The Indian tire industry caters to the 

growing demand from the Automotive OEMs and the 

replacement market, which is driven by the expanding 

vehicle base. Tire exports form a significant share of the 

industry’s revenues. To the total sales volume, the 

replacement category contributes the majority with a ~60% 

share. OEM’s share is 30% and the rest is contributed by 

exports. Tire sales in the Indian market are estimated to be 

~220 million, with 140 million tire demand from the 

replacement market and 80 million from OEMs. 

The Indian tire market size was US$16.3 billion in 2024 and 

was expected to touch US$25.8 billion by 2032 with a CAGR 

of 5.9%, as per a report by Credence Research. However, the 

Automotive Tyre Manufacturers Association estimates the 

current industry size to be ~`1 lakh crores. It reported that 

the tire exports in FY2024-25 touched ̀ 25,051 crores with a 

9% growth over the previous year. They were exported to 

more than 170 countries, with the United States being the 

largest market. 

Key Industry Trends that affect the demand for the 

Company’s products: 

• The Indian Automotive industry’s domestic sales in 

FY2024-25 grew 7.3% in volume terms, while exports 

rose 19.2%, reflecting strong global demand. 
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Passenger vehicle sales grew by a modest 2% in the 

domestic market due to the high base effect and 14.6% 

in the export market. 

 The industry is expected to see low to mid-single digit 

growth in FY2025-26 as a few segments, such as two-

wheelers, small cars and some commercial vehicle 

segments likely to see a decline.

• Access to Natural Rubber is one of the major concerns 

for the Indian tire industry, as 40% of the supply is from 

imports. Globally, Synthetic Rubber makes up 60% of 

the tire industry consumption, whereas in India, Natural 

Rubber dominates with a 60% share in the 

consumption. Hence, combining these trends presents 

a significant growth opportunity for the Company’s 

products, catering to this market.

Food Polymers: The Company’s products primarily serve 

the chewing gum and bubble gum industry. The chewing 

gum industry in India is expected to be US$125.49 million in 

size in 2025 and will experience significant growth to touch 

a projected market size of US$153.61 million by 2030, 

growing at a CAGR of 4.17% between 2025 and 2030. The 

market is seeing increased competition with new entrants 

and product innovations, particularly in the natural and 

functional gum segments. In FY2024-25, the industry 

recovered with growth supported by rising demand for 

sugar-free and functional gums, innovation in flavours and 

packaging, and expanding consumption in emerging 

markets. While the pace of recovery remains gradual, the 

long-term outlook for the industry is positive. The global 

chewing gum market size was estimated to be around 

US$28.69 billion in 2024. It is projected to reach $38.70 

billion by 2033, with a compound annual growth rate 

(CAGR) of 3.04% between 2025 and 2033, according to 

IMARC Group. 

Key Industry Trends that affect the demand for the 

Company’s products: 

• Competition and Innovation: The market is 

becoming more competitive, with new players entering 

and existing ones innovating with new flavours, 

formulations, and packaging. 

• Evolving Consumption Occasions: Brands are 

working to expand gum’s appeal by creating new 

consumption occasions, such as associating gum with 

oral hygiene or stress relief.

• Growth in Functional and Natural Gums: Consumers 

are increasingly seeking healthier and more natural 

options, leading to a rise in demand for functional 

gums with added benefits like probiotics or nicotine for 

smoking cessation, and natural ingredient-based 

gums. The functional chewing gum market in India is 

also growing, with a projected market size of US$54.6 

million by 2027, growing at a CAGR of 10.4% from 2020 

to 2027. 

• Health, Wellness and Sustainability Focus: Rising 

awareness about ingredients and health benefits is 

influencing consumer choices, pushing demand for 

healthier options. Eco-friendly and biodegradable 

options are gaining traction, reflecting a growing 

consumer interest in sustainable products.

AGRI BUSINESS

The Company’s products from its Agri Business play a key 

role in improving the productivity and yield of the 

Agriculture sector, which plays a vital role in shaping the 

Indian economy. The sector is not just a source of food and 

employment but also a foundation for the country’s 

economic stability and rural development. Agriculture is the 

largest source of employment in India witha 46.1% share in 

the total employment. The sector’s contribution to India’s 

Nominal Gross Value Added (GVA) in FY 2024-25 was 

~18%. 

India is self-sufficient in food grains and is among the top 

producers of rice, wheat, pulses, milk, fruits and vegetables 

globally. The Agriculture sector, therefore, plays a critical 

role in ensuring national food security and feeding over 1.4 

billion people. India is also a major exporter of rice, spices, 

tea, coffee, cotton, marine products, etc., and aims to 

double its agricultural exports to US$100 billion by 2030, up 

from US$51.91 billion in FY2024-25. 

The Role of Fertilisers in Agriculture

Fertilisers are vital in agricultural production, supplying 

essential nutrients to crops and boosting yields. In India, 

where a large proportion of agriculture relies on rain-fed 

systems and small-scale farming, challenges like low 

productivity and poor crop quality persist. Continuous 

cultivation on the same plots has led to declining soil 

fertility in many regions. To address these issues, the Indian 

government has promoted the use of nitrogen-based 

fertilisers and introduced economic reforms to make 

fertilisers more affordable. Subsidised fertilisers have 

played a crucial role in enhancing productivity and ensuring 

food security.
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Key Phosphatic Fertilisers

The most commonly used phosphatic fertilisers in India are 

Diammonium Phosphate (DAP), NPKs, and Single Super 

Phosphate (SSP). Among nitrogenous fertilisers, Urea 

remains the most widely used.

1. Single Super Phosphate (SSP): SSP is a multi-nutrient 

fertiliser that primarily provides Phosphate, along with 

secondary nutrients like Sulphur and Calcium. 

Additionally, it is fortified with Magnesium, Boron and 

Zinc to address micronutrient deficiencies prevalent in 

Indian soils. 

2. Diammonium Phosphate (DAP): DAP is the most 

widely used phosphatic fertiliser globally due to its 

high nutrient content and excellent physical properties. 

It serves as a rich source of Phosphorus (P) and 

Nitrogen (N), which are crucial for plant growth and 

development.

3. NPK Fertilisers: NPK fertilisers are compound 

fertilisers that combine Nitrogen, Phosphorus, and 

Potassium in varying proportions. These versatile 

formulations are tailored to meet the specific nutrient 

needs of different crops, enhancing productivity and 

quality.

As a phosphorus-rich fertiliser, SSP is particularly important 

for promoting root development, improving crop yield, and 

maintaining soil fertility. The Indian government recognises 

this crucial role of SSP in enhancing agricultural 

productivity, and because SSP is also cost-effective, it 

supports the use and adoption of SSP through:

• The government promotes the use of SSP due to its 

nutrient profile that includes secondary nutrients like 

Sulphur (S) and Calcium (Ca), essential for balanced 

crop nutrition. In addition, because of the increasing 

micronutrient deficiencies in Indian soils, the 

government supports the application of fortified SSP 

containing Boron and Zinc to address these gaps 

effectively.

• The Government has covered SSP under the Nutrient-

Based Subsidy (NBS) Scheme, which will make SSP 

affordable for farmers to use, promoting widespread 

adoption. The government supports domestic SSP 

manufacturers through subsidy allocations and 

encourages increasing production capacity to reduce 

dependency on imported phosphatic fertilisers.

• To make agriculture sustainable, the Government 

focuses on balanced and integrated nutrient 

management by promoting SSP as a complementary 

product to nitrogen fertilisers, especially in regions 

where soil phosphorus levels are low, and thus 

preventing the overuse of urea (nitrogenous fertilisers), 

which can degrade soil health. 

• Government’s agricultural extension programs 

promote the benefits of SSP to farmers, highlighting its 

role in improving crop quality and soil health. Research 

institutions and agricultural universities, supported by 

the government, conduct studies to enhance SSP 

formulations and increase their efficiency.

The total sales of fertilisers in India stood at an all-time high 

of 655.94 lakh metric tonne in FY2024-25, as against 600.79 

lakh mt in FY2023-24, up by 9.2%. The previous high was 

621.91 lakh MT in FY2020-21 during the COVID pandemic. 

Import of fertilisers also dropped 9.7% to 152.22 lakh MT 

from 168.49 lakh MT , in which DAP dipped 17.1% to 45.69 

lakh MT from 55.14 lakh MT. But MOP import surged 29.8% 

27.34 lakh MT from 21.06 lakh MT, and Complex rose 3.9% 

at 22.72 lakh MT from 21.87 lakh MT.

Fertilisers FY2024-25 FY2023-24 Variation % Contribution 
in FY2024-25

DAP 93 108 -13.9% 32.7%

NPK 142 111 27.9% 50.0%

SSP 49 45 8.9% 17.3%

Phosphatic Fertilisers 284 264 7.6% 100%

Phosphatic Fertiliser Sales in India (lakh MT)
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Key Industry Trends that affect the demand for the 

Company’s products: 

• Government Support: The Indian government’s 

support to the Agriculture sector through various 

reforms, policies and subsidies empowers and protects 

the farmers. The key among these includes Minimum 

Support Price (MSP), Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samman 

Nidhi (PM-KISAN) with direct income support of ̀ 6,000 

annually to small and marginal farmers, Pradhan Mantri 

Fasal Bima Yojana (PMFBY) provides a crop insurance 

scheme, e-NAM (National Agriculture Market) to 

connect farmers with buyers across India through a 

digital marketplace, Agri-Infra Fund of `1 lakh crore to 

develop post-harvest infrastructure and PM-KUSUM 

Scheme to promote the use of solar energy in 

agriculture by providing subsidies.

• Technology Adoption: Technological innovations 

such as use of GPS, sensors, and data analytics to 

optimise the use of water, fertiliser, and pesticides, use 

of Mobile Apps and Agri-Tech Platforms to find market 

prices, expert advice, and logistic support, etc.

• Organic and Natural Farming: With growing 

awareness of sustainability, farmers are shifting 

towards chemical-free farming methods with 

government support.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES

• Growing demand for sustainable and eco-friendly 

products: Consumers are increasingly demanding 

environment-friendly options, creating a market for 

bio-based adhesives and coatings. The development of 

high-performance, sustainable alternatives to 

traditional petrochemical-based adhesives could be a 

key area for growth. 

• Expansion into new markets and new products: 

Economic growth in other emerging economies, which 

are similar to India, makes them attractive export 

markets for the Company. With a strong R&D 

capability, the Company can innovate to develop more 

durable, high-performance, and specialised products 

to create a competitive advantage. The Company can 

also develop products for adjacent markets, e.g., 

expand the portfolio of maintenance products that 

cater to the markets adjacent to the furniture and 

fixture market for its wood adhesive and finish 

products.

• Alternative uses and applications of the current 

product portfolio: The Company can focus on 

growing alternative markets for its existing products, 

e.g., medical and healthcare use for its synthetic latex 

products, etc. 

THREATS

• Rising raw material costs: Fluctuations in the prices of 

wood, oil, and other key ingredients can significantly 

impact production costs. Rising input costs, particularly 

for natural rubber and crude-based materials, may 

pressure margins, though long-term fundamentals 

remain strong.

• Stringent environmental regulations: Regulations 

regarding VOC emissions, hazardous materials, and 

waste disposal can increase compliance costs and 

necessitate product reformulation. 

• Logistic costs and disruptions:  Continued 

geopolitical crises and closure of shipping lanes due to 

military actions result in increased freight costs and 

transit times for the Company’s supply chain. 

• Competition from alternatives: Use of alternative 

materials such as plastics, composites, metals, and 

other materials reduces the use of wood for certain 

applications, impacting demand for wood adhesives 

and finishes. Similarly, an increase in the use of 

alternative phosphatic fertilisers can impact the 

Fertilisers FY2024-25 FY2023-24 Variation % Contribution 
in FY2024-25

DAP 37.68 42.93 -12.2% 18.5%

Complex 113.29 95.48 18.7% 55.7%

SSP 52.43 44.45 18.0% 25.8%

Phosphatic Fertilisers 203.4 182.86 11.2% 100%

Phosphatic Fertiliser Production in India (lakh MT)
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demand for SSP. Across the Company’s product 

portfolio, increasing demand and use for natural 

alternatives is a significant threat.

• Labour shortages: A lack of skilled workers can hinder 

production and innovation. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The highlights of the Consolidated Financial Results of the 

Company are presented below:

Revenue: The Consolidated Total Revenue from 

Operations during FY2024-25 stood at `15,610 million 

against `12,533 million in FY2023-24, resulting in a growth 

of 24.6% due to market share gained in all businesses and 

high double-digit growth in the Agri Products business.

Other Income went up from ̀ 14 million in FY2023-24 to ̀ 18 

million in FY2024-25, an increase of 23.2%. Collectively, the 

Total Revenue grew by 24.6% in FY2024-25 to touch 

`15,628 million from ̀ 12,547 million in FY2023-24.

Total Expenditure: Total Expenditure increased from 

`11,460 million in FY2023-24 to `14,153 million in FY2024-

25, an increase of 23.5%. Major expense heads for the 

Company include Raw Material costs, Manufacturing costs, 

Employee benefits expenses and Selling General and 

Administrative expenses. 

The Gross Margin went up marginally from 43.3% in the 

previous financial year to 44.1% in FY2024-25, as 

realisations improved in all businesses except LATEX. 

Employee Expenses were higher by 28% over FY2023-24, 

whereas Other Expenses increased by 23.5%.

EBITDA: In FY2024-25, the Company’s EBITDA stood at 

`1,475 million compared to ̀ 1,087 million in FY2023-24, an 

increase of 35.7%. Hence, the EBITDA margin also saw an 

increase of ~70 basis points from 8.7% to 9.4%.

PBT before Exceptional Items: The Profit before 

exceptional items and tax jumped 59.4% from `740 million 

in FY2023-24 to `1,179 million in FY2024-25. The relatively 

higher increase in the PBT vis-à-vis EBITDA was primarily 

due to a decrease of 31.4% in Finance Cost from `196 

million to ̀ 135 million.

PBT: The Company’s PBT nearly tripled with a 191.3% 

growth from `405 million in FY2023-24 to `1,179 million in 

FY2024-25. This was primarily on account of a one-time 

impact from an Exceptional Item of ̀ 335 million in FY2023-

24. This Exceptional Item included the impact of change in 

realisable value of Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) receivable 

due to a revision in rates and a provision made for one-off 

ex gratia payment to the legal heir of the deceased CEO & 

Managing Director of the Company.

Consolidated Profit and 

Loss (` in millions)

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Total Revenue from 

Operations

15,610 12,533

Other Income 18   14

Total Revenue 15,628   12,547

Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 7,856   6,862

Purchase of Stock-in-trade 722   325

Change in Inventories of 

Finished Goods, Work-in-

progress and Stock-in-trade

127   (91)

Employee Expense 1,661   1,298

Other Expenses 3,787   3,066

Total Expenses 14,153   11,460

EBITDA 1,475   1,087

Depreciation and 

Amortisation Expenses

161   151

Finance Cost 135   196

Profit/(Loss) before 

exceptional items and tax 

from continuing 

operations

1,179   740

Exceptional items -   335

Profit/(Loss) before tax 

from continuing 

operations

1,179   405

Tax Expenses 296   98

Net Profit After Tax 883   307
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BUSINESS SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

• Performance Polymers & Chemicals: A moderate 

recovery for replacement tyres and tyre cord fabrics in 

the Indian Market could not compensate for the muted 

demand in global markets, resulting in lower-than-

expected volume growth in industrial polymers. The 

Food Polymer business performed better on account of 

the share gained in key customers and an improved 

customer mix. The Chemical business recorded high 

double-digit growth in terms of value due to higher 

demand and input costs that were passed on to the 

customers. Overall, the segment showed below-

average growth of 16.3% in FY2024-25 on a YOY basis. 

Segment profits grew more than the revenue, despite 

continued lower margins in the Industrial Polymer 

business due to higher input costs and higher freight 

costs for exports. 

• Agri Business (P&K Fertilisers and Agri Nutrients): 

The P&K Fertilisers segment saw a high double-digit 

growth in the Q4 of FY2024-25 due to the anticipation 

of a normal monsoon and shortage of other 

phosphatic fertilisers. This 56.4% jump in the P&K 

Fertiliser segment revenue translated into a higher-

than-average growth of 54.6% in the Agri Business 

revenues. The segment margins improved due to 

better realisations.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Note:

1. Interest Coverage Ratio increased due to better 

earnings.

2. Debt-Equity Ratio decreased largely due to an increase 

in Shareholders’ Equity and a decrease in borrowings.

3. Operating Profit Margin increased due to better 

realisations and sourcing resulting in higher Gross 

Margins (lower % increase in Other Expenses vis-à-vis 

% increase in Revenue).

4. Net Profit Margin increased largely on account of 

Improved Operating Profit Margins, cost optimisation 

and impact of Exceptional Items in the previous year.

5. Return on Net Worth increased due to increase in Profit 

after Tax resulting in increase in Shareholders’ Equity.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CONSUMER PRODUCTS AND PERFORMANCE 

POLYMERS 

CONSUMER PRODUCTS

Product Portfolio: The Consumer Products division 

specialises in Wood Working Adhesives and Wood Finishes. 

The key brands and product details are as follows:

• ‘Jivanjor’ stands out as a prominent name in the 

woodworking adhesives sector. The Company’s water-

based adhesives are known for their quick setting time 

at room temperature and superior bond strength, 

which significantly enhances the durability of furniture 

and fixtures. The product portfolio also encompasses a 

variety of speciality adhesives that cater to diverse 

requirements within the water-based category. 

Additionally, the Company offers synthetic rubber-

based contact adhesives that provide rapid drying and 

Segment Revenue 
(` in millions)

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

a)    Performance Polymers & 

Chemicals

11,283  9,704

b)    P&K Fertilisers 4,415  2,823

c)    Agri Nutrients 153  132

Total 15,851  12,659

Less: Inter-segment revenue 241  126

Revenue from Operations 15,610  12,533

Segment Results (Profit 

before tax and interest)

a)    Performance Polymers & 

Chemicals

1,650  1,347

b)    P&K Fertilisers (110)  (216)

c)    Agri Nutrients 53  22

Total 1,593  1,153

Ratio FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Debtors Turnover 5.66 4.68

Inventory Turnover 4.28 3.53

Interest Coverage Ratio 8.97 3.38

Current Ratio 1.45 1.21

Debt Equity Ratio 0.17 0.62

Operating Profit Margin (%) 0.08 0.06

Net Profit Margin (%) 0.06 0.02

Return on Net Worth 0.32 0.12
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excellent performance in vertical lamination 

applications. During FY2024-25, the Company further 

strengthened the portfolio by introducing new 

products to meet the market demand like: a 

polyurethane-based D4 PUR moisture curing adhesive, 

‘Lambond’ – a specialised laminate-to-laminate 

pasting adhesive, and Aquashield – a waterproof 

category glue that we introduced in our portfolio, 

catering to markets of Upper North.

• With an already well-established name in the Water 

Base Adhesives category, the Company has adopted 

the brand extension strategy for Jivanjor and extended 

its product line to include products for the Packaging 

Adhesives industry. It launched various grades of 

Water-Base Packaging Adhesives for Offset/ Rigid and 

Flexible Packaging to provide flexibility to its 

customers. The products are currently undergoing 

trials in the market and have received positive feedback 

from customers. The Company will add more products 

in the future targeted at the Packaging industry, to tap 

the growth opportunities in the sector.

• Under the Wood Finishes brands ‘Charmwood’ and 

Ultra Italia PU, the Consumer Products division offers a 

comprehensive wood finishing system, as well as stains 

and ancillary products for the decoration and 

protection of wooden furniture. The wood finishing 

system comprises Gloss and Matt variants of Melamine 

finish, Nitrocellulose finish, and PU Alkyd finish. These 

systems exhibit remarkably fast drying properties and 

offer resistance against stains and scratches. Moreover, 

the division’s wide range of Wood stains allows for the 

creation of unique colours that cater to various 

consumer preferences. To ensure a successful 

application, the Company also provides ancillaries such 

as sealers and thinners. Furthermore, it has ventured 

into the premium wood-finish market with the 

exclusive Ultra-Italia range of PU products. The 

Company also strengthened the products under Ultra 

Italia Brand. 

With a nationwide distribution network, our brands 

‘Jivanjor’, ‘Charmwood’ and ‘Ultra Italia’ are major players in 

their respective segments.

Wood Working Adhesive Portfolio

D3 certified, 

waterproof Fast 

drying (1 hour*)

Water proof 

adhesive

Heat & water 

proof adhesive

All purpose adhesive 

Hybrid polymer 

technology

Aerosol spray for 

wood working 

industry
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New Product Launches

Maintenance Division: Product Portfolio

Construction Chemical Division: 
Product Portfolio
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Packaging Adhesives

Wood Finish

COMPLETE RANGE OF WOOD FINISHES
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Participated in the IIID Synthesis Design Week exhibition at the Indira Gandhi Pratishthan in Lucknow. This prestigious event 

provided an incredible platform to showcase our latest innovations in interior design and architecture.

IIID Synthesis Design Week – 2025

National Level Event- 

INDIA WOOD-DELHI 

EDITION

INDIAWOOD 2025 aims to boost 

India’s furniture manufacturing and 

woodworking industry, making it a 

top manufacturing hub.

• Diverse Industry Presence

• Engage with Experts

• Discover New Products Find 

Partners

Events in FY2024-25: 
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Experience Studio: The Company 

announced the launch of its 

Experience Studios in a few major 

cities, in collaboration with its 

valued dealer partners, marking a 

significant step forward in 

enhancing customer engagement 

and brand presence.

Business Performance: The division delivered a double-

digit revenue growth despite weak consumer demand and 

increased competition. It ended FY2024-25 with a marginal 

improvement due to the urban market demand in the 

financial year 2025. The Company continued to invest in 

brand building through digital and social media platforms 

by increasing Advertising & Promotion spending. 

Business Strategy: This category of products depends 

heavily on the loyalty of channel partners and influencers to 

achieve sales. Hence, a key element of the business strategy 

for this segment is to drive activities during the year to 

continually engage with these communities through 

events, introduce new products to improve their size and 

returns, and invest in branding and promotions targeted at 

these communities. Continuous product innovation to 

address many market niches related to functional and 

aesthetic requirements. Targeting adjacent markets 

through product extensions and innovation is another 

strategy adopted by the Company. 

Outlook: The division’s outlook for FY2025-26 is optimistic 

with support from an improving domestic demand 

environment in the Real Estate sector due to the prediction 

of a normal monsoon and increased government spending. 

Its continued investment in product innovation and brand 

building is likely to pay dividends. Escalation in the global 

geopolitical crises and resulting economic stresses may 

affect consumer sentiments in the Indian market, which 

might dampen demand for the Company’s products in this 

segment.
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FOOD POLYMERS

Product Portfolio: The Company is among the leading 

suppliers of Polyvinyl Acetate (PVAc), which is a major raw 

material for making gum base for chewing gum and bubble 

gum. It is the largest PVAc manufacturer in India and the 

second largest globally. It markets PVAc to the chewing 

gum industry under the brand names ‘Vamipol, with 

variants like ‘Vamipol 5’, ‘Vamipol 14’, ‘Vamipol 15’, 

‘Vamipol 17’, ‘Vamipol 30’, ‘Vamipol 60’ and ‘Vamipol 100’. 

The Company also sells different grades of Ester Gum, 

another primary ingredient in making the gum base for 

chewing gum and bubble gum, worldwide under the brand 

name ‘Jubigum’. The customer profile of the Company in 

this business includes market leaders of the chewing gum 

industry worldwide. 

Business Performance: Despite substantial challenges this 

year, the Solid PVAc (SPVA) business achieved improved 

profitability, which is attributed to enhanced cost 

management strategies and improved price realisations 

from customers. It increased the global market share in this 

segment through its regular customers, which, along with 

an improved customer mix, helped to increase the sales 

volume during the reported year. 

Business Strategy: The business strategy revolves around 

two key pivots – New Customers and New Products/ 

Application Development. During FY 2024-25, the business 

has worked around these pivots and has been able to 

include some new customers in Japan, Mexico, and Europe. 

Outlook: The sale of sugary chewing gum is declining due 

to consumers’ preference for sugar-free confectionery. 

However, sugar-free chewing gums, which provide 

additional benefits of dental care, and functional gums like 

‘energy gums’, ‘caffeine gums’ are expected to see a 

stronger growth rate, albeit with a lower base. Chewing 

gum has several direct substitutes, such as mints, mouth-

freshening sprays, and bubble gum. Apart from the direct 

substitutes, there are some indirect ones, like candies and 

toffee. The preference for mints over chewing gum is likely 

to affect the demand for gums in the coming times. With 

strong plans for new customer acquisition in international 

markets and market share gain in the Food Polymer space, 

the Company is likely to perform better than the market 

growth in the medium term. 

LATEX BUSINESS

Product Portfolio: The Company is the largest 

manufacturer in India and the second-largest globally of VP 

Latex, which is used in the dipping of automobile tyre cord 

and conveyor belt fabric. The Company also produces 

Styrene Butadiene Rubber (SBR) and Nitrile Butadiene 

Rubber (NBR) Latex. The Company is a bulk supplier of 

these latices to global automobile tyre manufacturers and 

dippers. The products under this category are branded as 

‘Encord’.

Encord NBR Latex is used in automotive gasket jointing. 

Encord VP Latex is used to impregnate man-made fabrics 

and enable the adhesion of fabrics to the rubber of 

automobile tires and conveyor belts.

Business Performance: In FY2024-25, the latex business 

maintained a dominant market share in India and focused 

on acquiring new customers in the export market. The 
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volume growth for the latex business was lower than 

expected during FY2024-25, despite a moderate recovery in 

the demand for replacement tires and tire cord fabrics in 

India, because the demand in global markets remained 

muted. Margins for the business remained constrained due 

to higher input costs and export freight costs.

Business Strategy: In FY2025-26, business development 

activities in the Domestic and International markets will 

continue to be a focus area, while maintaining share and 

margins in respective markets. At the same time, the 

Company intends to explore potential opportunities to 

enter into other segments that use latex. The Company 

strategically broadened its product portfolio with the 

launch of Construction Latex in FY2024-25, which is 

expected to drive market share gains and strengthen the 

Company’s position in the construction chemicals space, 

underpinned by a superior product quality. The products 

under this category are branded as ‘ENBUILD’. 

Outlook: The Indian Automotive sector is likely to deliver 

muted growth in FY2025-26, with a few key segments 

expected to see a decline. Hence, the demand for tires from 

OEMs may not grow significantly in FY2025-26; however, 

the replacement tire segment and tire exports are likely to 

continue their growth trajectory. Overall, the segment is 

likely to maintain its growth trend with the addition of a new 

market through the introduction of a new product like 

Construction Latex. 

AGRI BUSINESS

Product Portfolio: In the Agri Business segment, the 

Company offers a diverse range of agri-input products 

under the renowned brand “Ramban” in the crop nutrients 

category. The brand has established a strong presence 

across Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar, Rajasthan, and 

Madhya Pradesh, becoming a reputed player in the agri-

nutrient sector. The primary product manufactured by the 

division is SSP in both powdered and granulated forms, 

enriched with essential nutrients such as Boron, Zinc, and 

Magnesium, adhering to the standards set by the Fertiliser 

Control Order (FCO). The Company also produces Bio-

Poshan and Shakti Zyme in the Bio-stimulant category. 

Additionally, it produces and markets sulphuric acid under 

the chemical category and Plant Growth Regulator under 

the brand name VAM-C (VAM-C chlormequat Chloride 50% 

SL). Thus, the Company supplies a diverse range of nutrients 

to provide essential macronutrients and micronutrients, 

including Phosphorus, Sulphur, Zinc, Calcium, Boron, Iron, 

Copper, Molybdenum, Manganese, Mycorrhiza, and Plant 

Growth Regulators. The “Ramban” brand is highly regarded 

and trusted within the farming community. Jubilant leads 

the SSP market segment in Uttar Pradesh, Uttarakhand, and 

Rajasthan.

New Product Launches: 

1. S u p e r  U l t r a  G o l d 

(MgBorZ): Super Ultra 

Gold is more than a 

fertiliser, it is a catalyst for 

health ier  roots ,  lush 

foliage, and higher yields. 

I t  i s  a  6 - i n - 1  g a m e 

changer, a Phosphatic 

fertiliser, which delivers 

16% Phosphorus, 11% Sulphur, 21% Calcium, 0.5% 

Zinc, 0.2% Boron and 0.5% Magnesium to boost root 

growth, flowering, fruiting and photosynthesis in the 

crop. It ensures uniform nutrient distribution, reduces 

labour costs and is covered under the Fertiliser Control 

Order (FCO). It is available in granulated form in a 50 kg 

bag.

 Crops: Paddy, Sugarcane, Wheat, Cotton, Soybean, 

Potato, Mustard, Kinnow, Mango, Onion, Garlic, 

Pomegranate, etc.

2. C a l c i u m  N i t r a t e : 

Ramban Calcium Nitrate 

supplies Nitrogen and 

Calcium, offering slow-

release nutrients that 

remain ava i lab le  for 

p r o l o n g e d  p e r i o d s , 

promoting sustained 

p l an t  g rowth .  100% 

soluble in water and 

provides both Calcium & Nitrogen to crops. It is 

available in 5 kg and 10 kg packs.

 Crops: Paddy, Sugarcane, Wheat, Cotton, Soybean, 

Potato, Mustard, Kinnow, Mango, Onion, Garlic etc.
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3. JUBISTAR:  JUBISTAR 

stands out with its unique 

formulat ion,  sourced 

from Australian bull kelp 

using a proprietary cold 

extraction process. It is 

r i c h  i n  s i g n a l l i n g 

molecules to boost rapid 

growth and improve 

stress resistance. It is available in 250 ml, 500 ml and 1 l.

 Crops: Paddy, Sugarcane, Wheat, Cotton, Soybean, 

Potato, Mustard, Kinnow, Mango, Onion, Garlic, etc.

Market Development Activities: 

To raise awareness about the benefits of Ramban products 

and strengthen the brand, the Company has implemented a 

range of targeted marketing activities.

1. Farmer Meeting: The Company organises interactive 

meetings with farmers to educate them about the 

advantages of using Ramban Products. These sessions 

provide valuable insights into best practice for crop 

nutrients and address farmers’ queries directly.

2. Jeep Campaign: To effectively promote Ramban 

products, the Company conducts focused Jeep 

campaigns tailored to specific products such as Super 

Ultra Gold, Shakti Zyme, Bio-Poshan, JUBISTAR and 

specific crops like sugarcane, potato, mustard, 

kinnow, etc. The Jeep Campaigns foster direct 

interaction, building trust and credibility. Real-time 

feedback from farmers helps to understand their 

challenges and improve product recommendations.

3. On Field Demonstrations: The Company sets up 

demonstration plots in key agriculture areas. These 

plots are strategically designed to compare treated and 

untreated sections, allowing farmers to observe the 

difference in crop growth. Through this approach, the 

Company highlights the significant improvement in 

root development, flowering and yield that result from 

using Ramban products. During the demonstrations, it 

also educates farmers on the proper application 

methods, including accurate dosage and optimal 

timing to ensure that farmers understand how to 

maximise the Ramban product’s benefits. Additionally, 

the Company emphasises how Ramban products 

enhance soil health and plant vigour, ultimately 

contributing to healthier and more productive crops.

4. Farm Fair Exhibition: A vital part of the Company’s 

outreach strategy for its products is a Farm Fair 

exhibition. These events provide an excellent platform 

to directly engage with farmers, agriculture experts and 

industry stakeholders. At the exhibition booths, the 

Company showcases the unique benefits of Ramban 

products through informative displays and live 

demonstrations.

5. Shop Painting & Branding: 

The Company gave a fresh and 

vibrant makeover with the new 

branding of Rambaan and 

Jubilant to the shops selling its 

products. With this new look, 

the Company reaffirmed its 

dedication to serving the 
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farming community with the best quality Agri products 

and trusted service.

6. Retailer Meetings: Retailer meetings are critical for 

the Company to maintain their enthusiasm and get 

their feedback. The Company shares its latest 

innovations, sales strategies, and promotions with its 

valued partners. 

7. The Company shares its latest innovations, sales 

strategies, and promotions with its valued partners.

Business Performance: The company’s strategic 

expansion into new states has significantly boosted 

business growth for the segment in FY2024-25, growing 

54.5% over the previous financial year. The progress was 

driven by a strong focus on innovation, leading to a more 

diverse and enriched product portfolio. The Company was 

able to narrow down the loss due to the return of sales 

growth and improved realisations.

Business Strategy: The Company is revolutionising 

agriculture by adopting Smart Farming Practice, including 

the use of biologicals and alternative fertilisers, to enhance 

crop health and promote environmental sustainability. The 

strategic focus involved expanding into Gujarat, 

Maharashtra, Chhattisgarh, and West Bengal while 

simultaneously strengthening the dealer network in Bihar, 

Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Haryana and Punjab states. As 

part of its strategic growth plan, the Company is poised to 

enter the bulk complex fertiliser segment, specifically 

targeting NPS 20:20:0:13. This fertiliser, which contains 

20% Nitrogen, 20% Phosphorus and 13% Sulphur, is 

particularly beneficial for plant growth, especially in soils 

with low labile Phosphorus and Sulphur contents. 

The Company’s objective is to strengthen its presence by 

catering to the high-demand markets in key states such as 

Uttar Pradesh and Rajasthan. Additionally, the company is 

actively promoting Shakti zyme, Bio-Poshan and 

JUBISTAR within the bio-stimulant category. This move 

aligns with our commitment to offering diverse and 

efficient nutrient solutions to support sustainable growth.

Outlook: With a prediction of a favourable monsoon in 

2025, the demand during FY2025-26 for SSP and Agri 

Nutrients, in the division’s portfolio, is likely to remain high. 

Given high imports of Phosphatic Fertilisers by the country, 

and push for self-reliance by the Government, the volume 

of SSP and associated fertilisers is likely to rise at a 

handsome pace. Continued Government support is also 

likely to play an important role in continued traction for this 

division’s products. Margins for this segment are likely to 

improve in a limited manner. 

FUNCTIONAL PERFORMANCE

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT: DRIVING 

INNOVATION AND GROWTH

The Company is committed to Research and 

Development (R&D), which is a cornerstone of 

its innovation-led growth strategy. With 

advanced R&D and Technology Centres that 

adhere to global standards, it focuses on 

deve lop ing d i f fe rent ia ted products , 

optimising formulations, and enhancing 

process efficiencies. In FY2024-25, the R&D 

function significantly pushed innovation 

across the Company’s Consumer and Latex 

businesses, leading to the successful launch of 

several new products specifically designed to 

meet evolving customer needs.
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Location Products

Gajraula (Uttar Pradesh) • Agri Products: SSP & Agri Chemicals

• Consumer Products: Wood Finishes & Adhesives 

• Food Polymers: SPVA & ESTERGUM

Kapasan (Rajasthan) Agri Products: SSP ( Single Super Phosphate)- Fertilizer

Samlaya, Savli(Gujarat) Synthetic Latex ( VP, SBR & NBR)

Sahibabad(Uttar Pradesh) Consumer Products: Adhesives

The Company’s capabilities in collaborative product 

development were strengthened while working closely with 

end-users to co-create solutions for unmet market 

demands. Its R&D teams were actively engaged in recipe 

optimisation, sustainability-driven innovation, and 

technology platform development, particularly in the Latex 

segment, where new formulations have enhanced 

performance and customer satisfaction. Furthermore, R&D 

continues to support Six Sigma initiatives, contributing to 

operational excellence and scalability throughout the 

Company’s manufacturing operations.

MANUFACTURING

The Company consistent ly  appl ies  wor ld-c lass 

manufacturing processes in its daily operations, ensuring 

unmatched product quality and timely delivery through 

continuous innovation and cutting-edge technology. The 

core focus of the Company’s manufacturing function is 

operational excellence, sustainability and upholding a total 

quality culture of “zero tolerance to any non-compliance.” 

During the year, significant initiatives were undertaken 

across all manufacturing plants in areas such as energy 

conservation, water conservation, batch cycle time 

reduction, cost optimisation, and improving machine 

uptime through sustainable engineering practices. At the 

Gajraula facility of the Company, it exclusively uses 

renewable fuels like Rice Husk (or Mustard husk) for hot air 

generators, completely replacing coal consumption. To 

embed continuous improvement within the Company’s 

DNA and enhance its People, Process, and System 

capabilities, various transformation methodologies, 

including Greenbelt, have been deployed across the 

manufacturing function. The Company maintains a 

continuous emphasis on compliance with regulations and 

Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) through ongoing 

assessment and review of quality systems against industry 

guidelines and regulatory standards. Numerous other 

initiatives have been implemented across manufacturing 

plants to strengthen Environment, Health, and Safety (EHS) 

systems. Specific measures to control fugitive emissions 

were also taken at the Gajraula fertiliser plant. 

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH, AND SAFETY (EHS) POLICY

The Company has formulated a comprehensive 

Environment, Health, and Safety (EHS) Policy, which applies 

to all locations regardless of operation type or geography. 

This policy underscores the Company’s belief that EHS is an 

essential pillar of Business Wellness. It outlines a 

fundamental ideology of not only complying with 

regulatory standards but also excelling in EHS performance 

through a continuous improvement approach. The EHS 

policy acts as a guiding principle for identifying, addressing, 

and eliminating or mitigating any impacts or risks arising 

from resource utilisation, processes, unsafe working 

conditions, waste, effluent generation, or emissions. The 

Company prioritises the health and safety of people above 

all else and is committed to pollution prevention. EHS 

management systems are an integral part of business 

operations at all manufacturing locations.

Environment & Sustainability: The Company aims to 

protect the environment and the health of its stakeholders 

Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited30

and aligns with the global commitments towards climate 

change and carbon neutrality. It has implemented robust 

monitoring mechanisms and taken multiple steps to ensure 

compliance with environmental legislation, extending 

support to vendors and partners to enhance their 

environmental adherence, and not just prevent non-

compliance that could result in substantial fines, penalties, 

or operational suspensions, significantly impacting its 

financial condition. Environmental excellence is deeply 

embedded in the Company’s culture, reflected in its 

sustainability policies, responsible care practices, and green 

supply chain initiatives. It actively involves the community, 

including employees, in environmental initiatives and 

continuously invests in process and technology 

advancements to minimise its environmental footprint. 

Efforts are focused on energy efficiency, waste heat 

recovery, water conservation, renewable energy 

integration, rainwater recharge, and community 

participation to enhance overal l  environmental 

performance. The Company prioritises waste reduction at 

the source and strives to convert waste into reusable 

resources. Understanding that sustainability and 

environmental concerns require collaborative effort, it 

actively engages with government bodies, industry forums, 

and academia to contribute to developing responsible 

regulations. The Company’s commitment to environmental 

stewardship remains unwavering, with consistent capital 

expenditure allocated to ensure continuous improvement 

in its environmental management practices. It has 

consistently incorporated internationally recognised tools 

into its business processes, aiming to maintain operational 

e ffic iency  and sus ta inab le  e f fec t i veness .  Th i s 

institutionalisation of best practices has significantly 

contributed to its long-term success, strengthening 

resilience and positioning the Company to achieve 

ambitious growth targets while adhering to sustainability 

principles.

Safety and Health: The well-being and safety of the 

workforce are paramount for the Company. Safety is a core 

value, with a firm emphasis on ‘Zero Harm’ and ‘100% 

compliance’. The commitment to maintaining safe 

conditions at its plants safeguards assets and minimises 

business interruptions. The Company is dedicated to 

protecting the health and wellness of its entire ecosystem, 

encompassing employees, partners, communities, 

customers, and stakeholders. This ‘Safety-First’ culture is 

evident in daily operations at every site and in every 

decision, demonstrating its steadfast commitment to 

operational health and safety. To reinforce this 

commitment, the Company has integrated the principles of 

the Occupational Health and Safety Management System, 

adhering to the ISO-45001 standard, across all operating 

sites. This institutionalisation ensures robust safety 

measures and protocols to protect employees and 

effectively mitigate risks.

Key Achievements:

The Gajraula plant received the following awards during the 

year: 

• Greentech Safety Excellence Award, for the plant’s 

performance in Safety Excellence.

• Grow Care Safety Award in Platinum Category for Plant 

performance in Safety Excellence

• EcoVadis certificate for Sustainable Performance

The Savli plant received the following awards during the 

year:

• Grow Care Safety Award in Gold Category for Plant 

performance in Safety Excellence

• EcoVadis certificate for Sustainable Performance

The Sahibabad plant received the following award during 

the year:

• Grow Care Safety Award in Gold Category for Plant 

performance in Safety Excellence

The Kapasan plant received the following award during the 

year:

• Grow Care Safety Award in Gold Category for Plant 

performance in Safety Excellence

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Company maintains a robust and strategic approach to 

supply chain management, which fosters collaborative 

partnerships with its valued suppliers and a commitment to 

excellence and exceeding customer expectations. The 

supply chain management strategy is meticulously 

engineered to proactively identify and mitigate potential 

supply chain risks, but also ensure an uninterrupted flow of 

high-quality materials and components. By fortifying these 

measures, it ensures stable and sustainable sourcing, 

safeguarding the reliability of its products and services.

The global supply chain has faced unprecedented 

disruptions in recent years, with conflict in the Middle East 

and logistical challenges in the Red Sea affecting the 

Company the most. This has not only led to increased ocean 

freight costs but also extended shipping times from India to 

Europe and the Americas due to the rerouting of vessels. 
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The Company, however, successfully maintained its delivery 

commitments to customers, though at significantly higher 

shipment costs. To counter this increase, the Company 

undertook major initiatives to reduce costs through 

improved inventory management, extended supplier credit 

terms, and the development of alternate vendors for A-

class raw materials, packing materials, and indirect 

purchases. The finished goods, logistics, and distribution 

structure of the Company’s consumer products business 

were remodelled during the reported year. This re-

engineering aimed to lower inventory levels without 

compromising product availability and On-Time, In-Full 

(OTIF) dispatches. Several geographically closer 

warehouses were merged to achieve overall inventory 

reduction. The business planning cycle was also 

strengthened through enhancements in Sales & 

Operations Planning (S&OP) and the Source-to-Fulfil (S2F) 

process. Moving forward, the Company will continue to 

focus on developing alternate suppliers for key raw 

materials (especially imported raw materials, indirect 

purchases, and capital equipment) and packing materials, 

and enhancing storage capacity for critical raw materials to 

ensure availability. 

HUMAN RESOURCES – “OUR KEY DIFFERENTIATOR” 

Employees are a central element of the Company’s vision 

and the strategy to fulfil it. The Company aspires to be an 

employer of choice by fulfilling its vision to be and remain 

one of the top 10 most admired companies to work for. In 

line with this vision, during FY2024-25, the Company 

continued to fine-tune alignment of its people processes, 

which include organisation design, talent acquisition, 

onboarding, engagement, and capability building, with its 

business goals. This consolidation exercise maintained a 

strong focus on ethical practices, governance, and market-

competitive policies. 

The Company’s workforce planning remained agile, 

ensuring customer-centric structures and timely talent 

deployment through internal mobility and strategic hiring. 

Succession planning and talent dashboards were actively 

monitored to address critical capability needs. In line with 

its value of ‘Inspiring Confidence’, the Company’s digital 

transformation initiative addressed the key imperative of 

empowering customer-facing teams. The “Power to You” 

principle continued to drive employee enablement to 

achieve superior customer experience and satisfaction. 

Sales Excellence initiatives strengthened B2C capabilities 

through competency assessments and nationwide training, 

reinforcing “The Jubilant Way of Selling” and delivering 

measurable business impact.

The Company has prioritised open and consistent 

communication with its workforce to build a foundation of 

trust and transparency. This proactive approach to 

employee engagement is a key factor in fostering 

harmonious labour relations and preventing disputes, 

thereby ensuring uninterrupted operations and zero 

production loss at its manufacturing plants. This is further 

reinforced by a strong commitment to employee well-

being and safety, which is established as a core value. 

Digital and IT Transformation: Driving Future-Ready 

Operations

To navigate the evolving business landscape, the Company 

has committed itself to an all-round digital transformation 

of its business processes with a ‘Digital First’ philosophy to 

deliver superior customer value and leverage advanced 

technologies. These technologies enhance agility, simplify 

processes, improve efficiency, minimise manual efforts and 

errors, ensure compliance and quality, and equip the 

Company to seamlessly navigate future disruptions. Its 

transformation journey redefines customer and partner 

experiences while optimising operations across the entire 

value chain, building a solid foundation for a promising 

digital future.

Key Achievements:

• Over the past year, the Company has made substantial 

progress in its digital transformation journey. It has 

invested in state-of-the-art IT systems, including the 

implementation of latest SAP S/4 HANA ERP, alongside 

advanced SMART SFA (Sales Force Automation) and 

DMS (Distributor Management System) tools, to 

enhance productivity, data-driven decision-making, 

and real-time business visibility.

• On the information security front, the Company has 

significantly enhanced its cyber resilience. It 

established a 24/7 Managed Security Services, 

including a Security Operations Centre with an 

independent partner, which has substantially increased 

coverage and monitoring, alongside a heightened 

focus on compliance. 

• Key initiatives in Cloud Security, Attack Simulation, and 

Identity threat detection were executed, ensuring the 

robust protection of its digital and IT assets. 

• The establishment of a Data Loss Prevention (DLP) Desk 

has further boosted its cyber resilience, leading to a 

substantial reduction in security incidents. 

• The Company also successfully managed multiple 

Customer  Cyber  Audi ts ,  demonstrat ing i t s 
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commitment to high security and compliance 

standards. 

• Furthermore, it completed the transfer of key business 

data to the Cloud, improving accessibility and data 

protection, and implemented real-time asset tracking 

for greater infrastructure visibility.

These strategic investments and process improvements 

have enhanced the Company’s efficiency, agility, and 

security. Looking ahead, it will build upon this strong 

foundation through strategic investments in human capital, 

operational processes, and cutting-edge technologies, 

poised for transformative evolution and unprecedented 

growth.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

At Jubilant, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a 

fundamental pillar of the group’s commitment to 

sustainable and responsible growth. The CSR initiatives of 

the group companies are driven collectively by the Jubilant 

Bhartia Foundation (JBF), a not-for-profit entity established 

in 2007. JBF serves as the vehicle for conceptualising and 

implementing impactful CSR activities, focusing on the core 

impact areas of Healthcare, Education, and Livelihood.

Through a robust 4P (Public-Private-People-Partnership) 

model, the Foundation actively collaborates with 

government bodies, civil society organisations, and local 

communities to create lasting social value. It strategically 

focuses on uplifting and adding value to the communities 

surrounding its manufacturing facilities, ensuring the 

Company and Group’s growth is inclusive and benefits all 

stakeholders.

In FY2024-25, JBF continued to champion progressive social 

change by forging strategic  mult i-stakeholder 

partnerships. These collaborations are designed to 

generate and share knowledge, provide experiential 

learning opportunit ies ,  and cult ivate a vibrant 

entrepreneurial ecosystem. Its dedicated efforts are 

focused on improving the quality of life and fostering self-

reliance for communities in the operational areas of the 

group companies, creating a ripple effect of positive 

change that extends beyond its businesses.

The brief information on ongoing and one-time CSR 

projects carried out by JBF is stated below.

A. Arogya: A healthcare initiative that provides affordable 

basic and preventive healthcare to a population of 

33,000 across 16 villages in Kapasan. This is delivered 

through the “Jubilant Aarogya” program, which utilizes 

mobile and static clinics, supported by the JUBICARE 

digital platform, and offers regular health awareness 

camps. 

B. Muskaan – Supporting Rural Government Primary 

Education: This project is dedicated to strengthening 

rural primary education. It aims to benefit over 2,000 

students and teachers by digitising government 

schools and enhancing the learning environment. The 

JBF’s “Edulab Program” is implemented in these 

schools, which helps bridge the urban-rural divide by 

integrating advanced educational tools and 

methodologies into these schools. 

C. JubiFarm: This program is focused on holistic rural 

development and enhances farmers’ access to modern 

and sustainable farming methods. It also works to 

d ivers i fy  income-generat ing opportuni t ies , 

contributing to the overall economic well-being of the 

rural communities. 

D. Rural Development: This program focuses on 

strengthening rural infrastructure for the larger rural 

community to enhance the quality of their lives with the 

Foundation’s support. 

E. BHARAT IMPACT - Jubilant Bhartia Centre for 

Social Entrepreneurship:  In FY2024-25, the 

Foundation launched a new centre to promote social 

entrepreneurship. This centre’s mission is to support 

social entrepreneurs through focused incubation, 

education, and research programs.

I N T E R N A L  C O N T R O L  S Y S T E M S  A N D  R I S K 

MANAGEMENT

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Company has put in place its Internal Financial Controls 

(IFC) system in line with the requirements of Section 

134(5)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013 to ensure effective 

governance and compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations. The Company has put in place and adopted 

Policy and Procedures as part of the IFC system that include 

rules and guidelines governing the Company’s operations 

and financial transactions. Such a system is adequate and 

operating effectively to address the key objectives specified 

in the Act: 

• Orderly and efficient conduct of business 

• Safeguarding of its assets

• Adherence to the Company’s policies

• Prevention and detection of frauds and errors

• Accuracy and completeness of the accounting records 

and timely preparation of reliable financial information
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The policy, procedure and structures adopted by the 

Company to achieve the key objectives of the IFC are given 

below. These are appropriate for the nature, size and 

complexity of the Company’s business and operations.

In addition, we have a transparent framework for periodic 

evaluation of the  internal controls via Internal Audit and 

quarterly controls self-assessment by certifying ~1500 

controls by ~130 users in each quarter. This reinforces the 

Company’s commitment to adopt the best corporate 

governance practices.

Orderly and Efficient Conduct of Business

• A well-defined organisational structure with clearly 

outlined role definitions, responsibilities and inter-

relationships. 

• Long-term planning for efficient capital allocation and 

short-term planning through the Annual Financial 

Planning and Budgeting system that includes periodic 

reviews to ensure achievement of business goals. 

• Delegation of authority to enable empowered decision 

making is captured in the Authority & Responsibility 

Matrix formulated under the guidance of and approved 

by the Company’s Board of Directors.

• Our risk management structure comprises the Audit 

Committee and Risk Management Committee, 

supported by the Executive Director, Business Heads, 

Functional Heads, and Unit Heads. As risk owners, the 

Heads are entrusted with the responsibility of 

identification and monitoring of risks. These are then 

discussed and deliberated at various review forums 

chaired by the Executive  Director and actions are 

drawn upon. 

Safeguarding Assets

• The Company’s Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 

for its plants and offices focus on maintaining safe 

conditions, prioritise preventive maintenance of assets, 

and ensure adequate physical security to help 

safeguard its assets and minimise business 

interruptions.

• It has also taken necessary insurance policies to protect 

its financial interest in assets.

Adherence to the Company’s Policies

• The Company’s IT systems have built-in controls to 

ensure alignment with its Policies and Procedures in its 

business processes.

• It has also put in place a strong budgetary and authority 

control framework for financial transactions. 

• The Company’s entity level controls, such as Code of 

Conduct ,  Da ta  P ro tec t ion/  P r i vacy  Po l i cy , 

Ombudsperson office, etc., are established.

• There is also a performance review mechanism with 

monthly reviews for all businesses and quarterly 

reviews for all functions by the Chief Executive Officer 

(CEO). 

• A Big Four firm conducts the Company’s internal audits 

to perform a systematic check of every aspect of the 

business to provide independent assurance on the 

effectiveness of the internal controls and highlight the 

gaps for continuous improvement.

Accuracy and Completeness of the Accounting Records 

and Timely Preparation of Reliable Financial 

Information

• Financial data and accounting was done using the Baan 

Enterprise Resource Planning system to avoid errors in 

accounting operations, and capture data in a timely 

and accurate manner. However, the Company has 

migrated to the latest version of SAP in April 2025. 

• The Company has appointed statutory auditors in line 

with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, who 

review and audit the financial information and reported 

financial statements periodically, as per the applicable 

regulations and guidelines, to ascertain compliance 

with accounting standards and accuracy. Their notes 

and independent report on the internal financial 

controls and financial statements are published as part 

of the Annual Report and quarterly results.

The Audit Committee, Executive Director and CFO form the 

governing body that, on periodical basis, reviews the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the IFC system adopted by 

the Company, and its recommendations on any required 

changes are implemented in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT: AN INTEGRATED APPROACH

The Company has designed its risk management approach 

such that it proactively enables the Company’s strategic 

objectives and is not merely a reactive control measure. The 

Company has taken effective steps to embed a 

comprehensive risk management culture that anticipates, 

identifies, and mitigates potential threats to ensure 

sustainable growth and protect stakeholder value.

STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE

A robust risk management framework to facilitate 

continuous identification, assessment, and mitigation of 

both internal and external risks has been put in place. The 

Company also promotes a strong risk culture, driven from 
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the top by the senior management team, who set the tone 

through defined corporate values, clear risk responsibilities, 

and delegated authority. The Board and senior 

management maintain a strong oversight and monitoring 

system, with established procedures for informing the 

Board on risk assessments and mitigation strategies. This is 

complemented by an unwavering commitment to strong 

ethical values and integrity across all operations, which 

serves as a fundamental risk mitigator.

STRUCTURE AND OVERSIGHT

A multi-level risk management structure with the Board of 

Directors and the Audit Committee at the apex provides 

overarching governance. This is supported by the 

leadership team, including the Executive Director, CEO, and 

CFO, along with Business, Functional, and Unit Heads. As 

designated risk owners, these heads are responsible for 

identifying and monitoring risks within their respective 

domains. These risks are then thoroughly discussed in 

various review forums led by the CEO, where mitigation 

actions are decided upon. 

MITIGATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

Risk mitigation strategy is integrated into the Company’s 

core business processes through integration with a 

comprehensive internal audit plan. This approach enables 

the Company to identify risks at an early stage and take 

timely corrective action. It has appointed an external 

consultant to independently assess the effectiveness and 

maturity of the risk management processes through 

periodic reviews. The Company has therefore taken care to 

ensure the ongoing effectiveness of its risk management 

processes and foster a culture of continuous improvement 

in managing its risk landscape.

MANAGEMENT’S ASSESSMENT OF RISK

The Company identifies and evaluates several risk factors 

and draws out appropriate mitigation plans associated with 

the same. Some of the key risks affecting the businesses and 

their mitigation plans are detailed below:

Risk 1: Competition and Climate

The Company operates in a highly competit ive 

environment; however, the nature and intensity of 

competition for each of its business lines is different. 

Consumer Products: The primary challenge for this 

business line is the low consumer involvement and high 

price sensitivity, which necessitates dependence on 

channels and influencers to drive sales. To counter 

competition, the Company has executed a multi-pronged 

strategy to expand distribution channels and build its 

product portfolio. It is also strengthening its brand with 

influencers through loyalty and interactive marketing 

programs and launching a dedicated brand affinity 

campaign to establish ‘JivanJor’ with End Consumer as a 

strong player in the adhesives category.

Food Polymers and Latex:  There is significant 

international competition, particularly from cost-

advantaged players like China and rivalry from European 

counterparts, in this low-growth industry. This dynamic 

creates persistent pricing pressures. The Company’s 

successful mitigation approach for this risk is robust 

customer and account management initiatives to secure 

long-term commitments. 

Agri Products: In addition to the competition, a key risk for 

the Company’s Agri Products business is the unpredictable 

influence of climatic conditions, particularly monsoon 

variability, on cropping patterns, pest outbreaks, and 

commodity prices. These factors directly impact the 

demand and supply balance for fertilisers like SSP. The 

timely movement of our bulk fertilisers is also a risk, as it can 

be hindered by a limited availability of carriers and railway 

wagons due to competing logistics demands.

In addition to competition from other players, this business 

faces intense market competition from alternative products 

such as DAP and NPK complexes. The demand for SSP is 

highly sensitive to the international prices of these 

alternatives and their raw materials (rock phosphate, sulfur), 

as well as to government policies like the Nutrient Based 

Subsidy (NBS). 

Risk 2: Cost Competitiveness

Rising input prices and inflationary pressures can affect the 

Company’s growth and market position. These also pose a 

significant risk to profitability and its ability to remain price 

competitive in the market, as volatility in raw material and 

logistics costs can severely impact the operating margins.

To mitigate this, the Company has undertaken a series of 

strategic initiatives such as cost reduction through business 

excellence programs, value engineering in raw and 

packaging materials with support from R&D and 

diversification of the supplier base. Securing long-term 

contracts with suppliers to stabilise prices and ensure 

volume commitments is a key strategy for cost control 

through supplier management. The Company has further 

concentrated on enhancing profitability by improving the 

efficiency of supply chain and R&D processes, thereby 

reducing overall manufacturing costs. While remaining cost 

competitive, the Company is not losing focus on quality and 
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customer service, which are the key pillars of its market 

standing. 

Risk 3: Foreign Currency Fluctuations

The Company faces exposure to foreign currency 

fluctuations due to international revenues and significant 

imports of key raw materials. As the Company’s operations 

are India-based, any depreciation in the Indian Rupee poses 

a direct risk to its profit margins by making imports more 

expensive. Additionally, the volatility and uncertainty in 

exchange rates complicate accurate product pricing in the 

market. 

However, as the net foreign currency exposure is not 

considered significant, the Company currently does not 

employ derivative financial instruments or other hedging 

techniques to mitigate this risk.

Risk 4: Capacity Planning and Optimisation

A key risk to the Company’s growth strategy and market 

leadership is suboptimal capacity planning and utilisation, 

which are two sides of a coin. Beyond planning and 

utilisation, capacity creation also comes with risks such as 

delayed commissioning of new projects, cost overruns, and 

failure to meet quality standards. These can severely impact 

revenue targets, margins, and the expected Return on 

Investment (ROI). These risks can also lead to customer 

dissatisfaction and reputational damage. Furthermore, the 

Company can also face operational risks from factors that 

cause unforeseen downtime or idle capacity, such as power 

breakdowns, labour strikes, or transport disruptions. These 

inefficiencies can hinder its ability to meet customer 

demand and capture market share.

To mitigate these risks, the Company has implemented 

robust processes to continuously monitor planned 

capacities and utilisation rates, adhering to strict Good 

Manufacturing Practices (GMP) and a comprehensive 

preventive maintenance plan. It seeks regular inputs from 

the business teams to actively track product trends to 

ensure sufficient capacity to match supply with demand. 

This proactive approach, coupled with prioritisation of 

debottlenecking and efficiency improvement initiatives at 

the existing plants over creating new capacities, helps in 

achieving growth objectives profitably because of efficient 

resource utilisation.

Risk 5: Portfolio and Mix – Product and Customer 

Concentration

A balanced portfolio across customers, markets, and 

products is crucial for the Company’s sustained success. 

Any sudden changes in customer behaviour, needs, or 

expectations can adversely impact its financial performance 

and long-term competitive position, if the customer 

concentration is high. A similar logic applies to market and 

product concentration. The Company addresses these risks 

across its different business lines in a unique and targeted 

manner.

Consumer Products: The Company has addressed product 

concentration risk through line extensions that address 

various micro niches in terms of application and brand 

extensions into the maintenance and construction chemical 

segments. It is also continuously innovating to launch new 

products to address any emerging customer needs and 

changing preferences. 

Food Polymers and Latex: The Company faces a risk of 

over-dependence on a single product or a small number of 

customers in this business. This could jeopardise long-term 

objectives and sustainability, particularly if regulations were 

to limit the end-use application of a key product. To address 

this, it is actively diversifying the customer base and 

exploring new applications for its products. The challenge 

of a limited customer universe in this segment remains, as a 

handful of customers hold a majority market share. Another 

related risk is the potential for suboptimal utilisation of co-

products, which could lead to inventory build-up, distress 

sales, and financial losses. The Company continuously 

strives to identify new markets and downstream 

opportunities to ensure it can effectively utilise all products 

within its portfolio.

Agri Products: These risks are mitigated by continuously 

innovating to meet emerging nutrient deficiencies in crops. 

In collaboration with the Government of India, the 

Company has expanded its product portfolio to include 

nutrient-rich fertilisers such as Boronated SSP (Granular) 

and Zincated SSP (Powder, Granular), along with advanced 

products like SSP fortified with Boron and Zinc (Super 

Formula – Granular) and SSP fortified with Boron, Zinc and 

Magnesium (Ultra Gold). It also has a pipeline of new 

products, including Mono Zinc, Nutri mix 5% (State Grade), 

and Bio-Poshan, to ensure relevance to farmers’ needs and 

maintenance of a diversified offering. The Company 

identifies and explores new profitable markets and 

alternative applications for its products through business 

planning and review processes.

Risk 6: Human Resources – Digital Experience

The Company is transitioning to a Digital First work 

environment, which presents the challenge of managing 

change across the organisation and with external partners. 

Any mismanagement of this change process could lead to 
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productivity loss, lower morale or loss of Return on 

Investment in this initiative. The key approach to mitigating 

these risks is through communication of a clear vision with 

conviction to all stakeholders. The Company is also 

deploying adequate resources to ensure the digital 

infrastructure is user-friendly, secure, and rigorously tested 

through User Acceptance Testing (UAT). By providing 

comprehensive training on these new digital interfaces that 

fosters a sense of ownership, it aims to ensure a smooth and 

effective transition to a digital-first culture.

Risk 7: Human Resources-Acquire and Retain 

Professional Talent

The Company’s success hinges on its ability to attract and 

retain top talent. The primary mitigation of this risk is 

through a proactive and data-centric HR strategy. Some of 

the important elements of this HR strategy are:

• Continuously refine hiring and onboarding processes 

based on candidate feedback

• Actively seek external talent to accelerate growth 

initiatives

• A robust talent and succession management process to 

identify and develop ‘High-Performance, High-

Potential’ employees, which is led by senior leadership

• Performance management and incentive programs 

that are directly tied to financial targets, effectively 

rewarding high performance and driving commitment

• Invest in targeted capability building through training 

and focus on improving gender and skill diversity to 

ensure the right workforce mix

• Competitive and simple compensation and benefits 

packages that are designed to have a strong link 

between performance and pay. 

This comprehensive approach not only attracts the best 

talent but also fosters a culture of continuous development 

and loyalty.

Risk 8: Distribution Channel and Brand Recall

Maintaining strong brand recall and an effective 

distribution channel is crucial to our market position. 

Consumer Products: In the Wood Adhesives and Wood 

Finishes business, where the Company competes nationally, 

the key risk is maintaining the loyalty and commitment of its 

strong network of distributors and dealers because they 

play a significant role in driving consumer behaviour. To 

manage this, it undertakes targeted brand-building 

initiatives, expansion of distribution footprint into new 

markets, and streamlines inventory management processes 

to improve distributor profitability and secure their long-

term loyalty. Additionally, in the Consumer Products 

business, the Company is leveraging interactive Digital 

tools like DMS tool, Dealer App, Influencers Loyalty Apps 

and Employee Apps to enhance its reach and engagement 

with various stakeholders.

Food Polymers and Latex: The Company is a leading 

national and global player in these markets, where it 

supplies its products to market leaders in the chewing gum 

industry and the tire/ tire cord industry. Hence, the risk 

mitigation approach for Distribution and Branding Risk in 

the B2B segment is different from the other two B2C 

segments. By maintaining strong customer relationships 

and a partnership approach, the Company aims to 

communicate a consistent value proposition and ensure 

reliable supply to its customers. Its Distribution and 

Branding strategy revolves around ensuring the 

achievement of these objectives. 

Agri Products: Brand recall and effective distribution are 

achieved through extensive field-level promotional 

activities like farmer meetings, demonstrations, and Kisan 

melas, which raise product and brand awareness among 

farmers and channel partners. 

Risk 9: R&D Effectiveness

Innovation, whether it is in developing new products or 

researching new applications or developing cost-effective 

manufacturing techniques, is critical to the Company’s 

sustained success. The primary risk is the failure to develop 

and commercialise a robust pipeline of new products, 

applications, and cost-saving manufacturing techniques in 

a timely manner, which would erode its competitive 

position. A related risk is the development of products that 

fail to meet quality standards, which could significantly 

damage reputation and result in lost business.

To mitigate this, the Company has strategically aligned its 

R&D initiatives with the business plans, and these are 

supported by dedicated budgets and investments. The 

business teams act ively monitor technological 

advancements and collaborate with the R&D team to 

sponsor specific projects. The Company has invested in 

acquiring experienced R&D professionals, who regularly 

upgrade their skills and keep themselves abreast of the 

regulatory and technological advances. They are part of 

teams tasked with developing new, cost-effective processes 

and products that are scalable and meet market needs, 

through a culture of continuous innovation.
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Risk 10: Compliance and Regulatory

The Company is exposed to the risk of non-compliance with 

a broad range of statutory and regulatory requirements. 

The failure to obtain or renew essential approvals, licenses, 

registrations, and permits in a timely manner could disrupt 

operations. This risk is particularly high in its Latex and Solid 

Poly Vinyl Acetate (SPVA) businesses, where key customers 

demand specific international approvals. Non-compliance, 

or even accusations of it, could lead to significant fines and 

penalties, negatively impacting the business.

The introduction of new products also faces the risk of 

delayed or denied regulatory approvals, which could 

adversely affect its market entry and revenue potential. 

Changes in regulations or a reassessment of a product’s 

safety and efficacy could lead to the amendment or 

withdrawal of existing approvals, resulting in revenue loss. 

To mitigate these stricter regulations, the Company has 

increased the efficiency of its R&D process, reducing testing 

timelines to ensure its products can be brought to market 

faster. It has also put in place a comprehensive compliance 

management system to monitor and manage compliance, 

approvals, licenses, registrations, and permits under all 

applicable laws and regulations.

Risk 11: Environment, Health and Safety (EHS)

The Company has recognised that EHS excellence is a 

critical business imperative In an environment of increasing 

public scrutiny and reputational threats. In this domain, it 

faces the risk of non-compliance with stringent emission 

standards and other environmental regulations, as its 

operations involve hazardous chemicals and by-products. 

The proximity of its manufacturing plants to residential 

areas due to rapid urbanisation adds to this risk. Failure to 

meet these standards could not only lead to regulatory 

penalties but also erode public trust in the case of any 

mishap.

The Company anticipates that environmental laws and 

customer demands for product safety will become even 

more stringent. To proactively address this, it has invested 

substantial resources to enhance the manufacturing 

processes, increase adherence to environmental standards, 

and improve industrial safety levels. It has adopted an 

approach that is systematic and disciplined, with policies 

and procedures to mitigate EHS-related risks to its business, 

employees, and society. It has a dedicated EHS team that 

conducts periodic audits and training, and the 

manufacturing facilities are equipped with Occupational 

Health Centres to ensure the well-being of its workforce. 

The Company also engages with government and industry 

forums to advocate responsible EHS regulations. In 

recognition of its performance, the Company has received 

Various awards/ accolades for its EHS standards and 

achievements.

Risk 12: Business Interruption

The Company’s business faces a significant risk of 

disruption due to its concentration of manufacturing 

facilities. The core manufacturing facility for most of its 

business is at Gajraula, and the Latex facility is at Samlaya 

and other manufacturing plants are located at Kapasan and 

Shaibabad. Any prolonged stoppage at these sites could 

severely impact its operations. One of the mitigation 

approaches adopted by the Company for this risk is by 

having a majority of its workforce working in a facility in an 

adjoining residential colony or nearby area to ensure 

continuity under challenging circumstances.

External factors also pose risks. In Agri Products, business 

can be interrupted by changes in government policies 

related to fertiliser subsidies such as Direct Benefit Transfer 

(DBT). Similarly, changes in rainfall patterns could also affect 

business activity. The Company manages these risks 

through continuous training for its staff and awareness 

programs for dealers and farmers to ensure smooth 

implementation of changes in government policies. In the 

Food Polymers business, the Company maintains a limited 

but strategic inventory of finished goods near key markets 

to sustain supplies during a potential stoppage. 

A specific supply chain risk in the Latex business is the 

limited availability of Butadiene, a critical raw material with 

few domestic suppliers. An unplanned shutdown by a 

supplier could halt production. To mitigate this, the 

Company has established relationships with multiple 

suppliers and maintains an adequate inventory. It is also 

exploring an increase in its Butadiene storage capacity. To 

protect against these various forms of business 

interruption, it has also secured the Industrial All Risk 

insurance.

Risk 13: CYBER THREATS RISK (EMERGING RISK)

The Company relies heavily on its digital backbone and 

hence it is exposed to cyber threats that could compromise 

data integrity, confidentiality, and operational continuity. 

These threats range from intellectual property theft and 

operational technology (OT) attacks to database exposure, 

credentials stuffing to phishing, malware, and ransomware.

It has adopted a multi-faceted approach to mitigate these 

risks. The Company has a robust information security 

governance structure, to direct resources and manage its 
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cybersecurity posture. Its IT processes are ISO-27001 

certified and adhere to the National Institute of Standards 

and Technology (NIST) Cyber Security framework, ensuring 

it complies with international standards. An annual audit of 

various IT components is conducted, with findings leading 

to continuous corrective and preventive actions. Most 

importantly, it recognises that the employees are a critical 

line of defence. For them, it conducts regular, structured 

training and awareness programs to educate them about 

current cyber risks and best practices for safeguarding 

sensitive information.

Risk 14: Labour Unions Risk

While the Company’s relations with its employees are 

cordial, there is an inherent risk of labour union issues that 

could adversely affect its production capacity and 

profitability. It proactively mitigates this risk by engaging in 

a voluntary negotiation and mediation process to amicably 

resolve any disputes over wages or other matters. Regular 

discussions and involving union representatives in various 

joint decision-making processes are key to maintaining 

positive labour relations and substantially reducing the 

likelihood of a strike or production disruption.

Risk 15: Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) 

Risk

In an era of increasing consumer and investor demand for 

climate action, failure to meet benchmarked ESG 

performance standards poses a significant risk. Poor ESG 

ratings can negatively impact the Company’s relationships 

with shareholders and investors, alter demand for its 

products and services, and damage its reputation.

To mitigate this, the Company is committed to enhancing 

its ESG capabilities and performance. It is providing 

extensive training to the personnel on various ESG 

standards and reporting frameworks. It has also allocated 

resources and developed strategies in collaboration with 

relevant departments.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those, which 

relate to Management Discussion & Analysis, describing 

the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and 

expectations, may constitute forward- looking statements 

within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. 

Although the expectations are based on reasonable 

assumptions, the actual results might differ significantly.
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Board’s Report
The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 17th (Seventeenth) Annual Report of Jubilant Agri and Consumer
Products Limited (“the Company”) together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 (“FY 2025”).

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
(` in million)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Continuing operations
Total Revenue from Operations 15,610.30 12,532.63 15,405.57 12,260.71
Total Expenses 14,448.73 11,807.30 14,246.80 11,571.68
Operating Profit/(Loss) 1,161.57 725.33 1,158.77 689.03
Other Income 17.49 14.19 17.26 14.08
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and 1,179.06 739.52 1,176.03 703.11
Tax from continuing operations
Exceptional items - 334.82 - 334.82
Profit/(Loss) after Exceptional Items but 1,179.06 404.70 1,176.03 368.29
before Tax from continuing operations
Tax Expenses 296.00 97.92 288.84 94.35
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing 883.06 306.78 887.19 273.94
operations
Discontinued operations
Profit/(Loss) before Tax from discontinued (5.47) (9.59) (5.47) (9.59)
operations
Tax Expenses - - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued (5.47) (9.59) (5.47) (9.59)
operations
Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing 877.59 297.19 881.72 264.35
and discontinued operations
Other Comprehensive loss (2.02) (2.94) (2.62) (3.31)
Total Comprehensive Income for the 875.57 294.25 879.10 261.04
year (comprising profit and other
comprehensive income for the year)
Retained Earnings brought forward from 723.03 425.84 691.45 427.10
previous year
Retained Earnings to be carried forward 1,600.62 723.03 1,573.17 691.45

2. OVERVIEW

The Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing of Performance Polymers & Chemicals
and Agri Products comprising Single Super Phosphate,
a wide range of Crop Nutrition, Crop Growth at its
manufacturing facilities situated at Gajraula &
Sahibabad in Uttar Pradesh, Kapasan in Rajasthan and
Savli in Gujarat. JACPL is the sole manufacturer of food
grade Polyvinyl Acetate (PVAc) in India having state of
the art manufacturing facility situated at Gajraula in
Uttar Pradesh and also the dominant player in
manufacturing of VP Latex having state of the art

manufacturing facility situated at Savli in Gujarat.

Further, the Company has a Branch Office in the Dubai
Development Authority Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab
Emirates under the operating name ‘Jubilant Agri and
Consumer Products MEA’ which was setup to explore
the business opportunity to market the products in the
Middle East and other countries.

The Company’s brand ‘Jivanjor’ & ‘Vamicol’ in Wood
Adhesive, ‘Charmwood’ & ‘Ultra Italia’ in Wood
Finish and ‘Ramban’ in Agri Products are well known
brands in their segments.
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There has been no change in the nature of business of
the Company during the FY 2025.

Consolidated Financials

In FY 2025 the consolidated revenue from operations
was ` 15,610.30 million. EBITDA for the year stood at
` 1,474.68 million. Net Profit after tax from continuing
operations was ` 883.06 million and Basic EPS from
continuing operations on consolidated basis stood at
` 58.61.

The Consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred as the ‘Act’) and Ind-AS 110
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, forms part of the Annual Report.

Standalone Financials

In FY 2025 total revenue from operations from
continuing operations was ` 15,405.57 million. EBITDA
for the year stood at ` 1,471.65 million and Basic EPS
from continuing operations on standalone basis stood
at ` 58.88.

3. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have not recommended any
dividend for the financial year 2024-25.

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved
a Dividend Distribution Policy in line with Regulation
43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). The said policy
is available on the website of the Company at https://
www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/image/12imguf_JACPL-
DividendDistribution-Policy.pdf.

4. RESERVES

During the FY 2025, the Company has not transferred
any amount to the Reserves.

5. CAPITAL STRUCTURE & STOCK OPTIONS

Authorised Share Capital

The authorised share capital of the Company as at
March 31, 2025 was ` 77,97,76,170/- (Rupees Seventy-
Seven Crore Ninety-Seven Lacs Seventy-Six Thousand
One Hundred and Seventy Only) divided into
7,79,77,617 equity shares of ` 10/- each.

During FY 2025, the authorised share capital of the
Company was enhanced from ` 9,44,76,170/- (Rupees
Nine Crore Forty-Four Lac Seventy-Six Thousand One
Hundred and Seventy only) divided into 58,24,000
equity shares of ` 10/- each, 26,23,617 10% optionally
convertible non-cumulative redeemable preference
shares of ̀  10/- each and 10,00,000 10% non-cumulative

redeemable preference shares of ` 10/- each to
` 77,97,76,170/- (Rupees Seventy-Seven Crore Ninety-
Seven Lacs Seventy-Six Thousand One Hundred and
Seventy Only) divided into 7,79,77,617 equity shares of
` 10/- each, effective from October 03, 2024 pursuant
to Composite Scheme of Arrangement between HSSS
Investment Holding Private Limited (“Amalgamating
Company 1”), KBHB Investment Holding Private Limited
(“Amalgamating Company 2”), SSBPB Investment
Holding Private Limited (“Amalgamating Company 3”),
Jubilant Industries Limited (“JIL”) and Jubilant Agri and
Consumer Products Limited (“Amalgamated Company”)
(“Composite Scheme”) as sanctioned by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench
(“NCLT”) vide its pronouncement order dated August
07, 2024.

Paid-up Share Capital

As at March 31, 2025, the paid-up share capital was
` 15,06,71,010 (Rupees Fifteen Crore Six Lakh Seventy-
One Thousand and Ten only) consisting of ̀  1,50,67,101
(One Crore Fifty Lakh Sixty Seven Thousand One
Hundred and One) equity shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten)
each.

During FY 2025, pursuant to the sanction of the said
Composite Scheme, 56,08,552 (Fifty-Six Lac Eight
Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Two) Equity Shares of INR
10/- each, held by JIL along with its nominees in the
Company were cancelled. Concurrently, the Board of
Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on
November 4, 2024, allotted 1,50,67,101 (One Crore Fifty
Lakh Sixty-Seven Thousand One Hundred and One)
equity shares of INR 10 each to the eligible equity
shareholders of JIL, based on their entitlement as of
the record date, October 28, 2024. Consequently, the
paid-up capital of the Company enhanced from
5,60,85,520 (Five Crore Sixty Lakh Eighty-Five Thousand
Five Hundred Twenty) equity shares of ` 10 each to
15,06,71,010 (Fifteen Crore Six Lakh Seventy-One
Thousand and Ten) equity shares of ` 10 each.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

At present, the Company has two Employees Stock
Option Schemes, namely JACPL Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2013 (“Scheme 2013”) and JACPL
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018 (“Scheme 2018”).

During FY 25, pursuant to the Composite Scheme, the
Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC” or
“Committee”) of the Company in its meeting held on
November 04, 2024 (“Date of Institution of Scheme”)
adopted the JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme
2013 (“Scheme 2013”) and JACPL Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2018 (“Scheme 2018”).

https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/image/12imguf_JACPL-DividendDistribution-Policy.pdf
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Further, the Company has filed applications with BSE
Limited (“BSE”) and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”) seeking in-principle approval for the
issuance and allotment of 4,72,303 (Four Lakhs Seventy-
Two Thousand Three Hundred and Three) equity shares
under the JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme 2013,
and 5,00,000 (Five Lakhs) equity shares under the JACPL
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018. These
applications have been submitted in compliance with
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021, and are currently pending
approval from BSE and NSE.

The NRC Committee of the Board is empowered to
administer this scheme including to determine the
eligible employees, the vesting period and exercise price
of the options.

6. UPDATE ON COMPOSITE SCHEME OF
ARRANGEMENT

During FY 2025, the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (‘NCLT’), vide its order
pronounced on August 07, 2024 (a certified true copy
of order was received on September 03, 2024) has
sanctioned the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
among HSSS Investment Holding Private Limited
(“Amalgamating Company 1”), KBHB Investment
Holding Private Limited (“Amalgamating Company 2”),
SSBPB Investment Holding Private Limited
(“Amalgamating Company 3”), Jubilant Industries
Limited (“JIL”) and Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited (“Company / Amalgamated Company”) and
their respective Shareholders and Creditors under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
(the ‘ Composite Scheme’).

The Composite Scheme provides for:

(i) the amalgamation of Amalgamating Company 1,
Amalgamating Company 2 and Amalgamating
Company 3 into JIL (“Amalgamation-1”); and

(ii) Following Amalgamation-1, the amalgamation of
JIL into the Amalgamated Company
(“Amalgamation-2”)

The certified copy of the NCLT Order, which was
received on September 03, 2024, was filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, on September 04, 2024,
by Amalgamating Company 1, Amalgamating Company
2, Amalgamating Company 3 and JIL to give effect to
Amalgamation-1. Hence, as per the terms of the
Composite Scheme, the Effective Date for
Amalgamation-1 is September 04, 2024.

For the purpose of giving effect to Amalgamation-2
(i.e. amalgamation of JIL into JACPL) JIL and JACPL have
filed the certified copy of the NCLT Order with the RoC
(Kanpur) through E-Form INC-28 on October 3, 2024.
Hence, pursuant to the Composite Scheme, JIL stands
amalgamated into the Amalgamated Company and
dissolved without being wound up with effect from
October 03, 2024.

Following the amalgamation of JIL with and into JACPL,
JACPL filed a listing application with BSE Limited and
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(collectively referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”) for
the listing and trading of its shares. Accordingly, the
Company received listing and trading approval from
the Stock Exchanges on February 12, 2025.
Subsequently, the Equity Shares of the Company were
listed and admitted to dealings on the Stock Exchanges
effective from February 14, 2025.

The Composite Scheme along with certified copy of
NCLT Order are available on the website of the
Company at https://www.jacpl.co.in/investors

7. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has one Wholly-
owned Subsidiary, Jubilant Industries Inc., USA (“JIL
USA”).

Previously, JIL USA was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the erstwhile Jubilant Industries Limited (“Holding
Company”), which was merged with and into the
Company effective from October 03, 2024, pursuant to
the Composite Scheme of Arrangement. Following the
amalgamation of JIL into JACPL, JIL USA became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company effective from
October 03, 2024.

JIL USA is engaged in overseas trading of Solid Poly
Vinyl Acetate and VP Latex.

During FY 2025, it had Revenue from Operations
` 1,198.42 million. Net Profit after tax for the year 2025
is ` 17.49 million.

On April 07, 2025, Jubilant Agri Solutions Limited
(“JASL”) was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary
of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited. JASL
is engaged in the business of manufacturing, marketing,
and trading of agricultural products and chemicals,
among other related activities. The Company, along with
its nominees, has subscribed to 100% of the share
capital of JASL.

A statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of Company’s subsidiary including therein
contribution of subsidiaries to the overall performance
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of the Company is given in Form AOC 1 attached to
the financial statements.

During FY 2025, there were no associates or joint
ventures of the Company.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Appointment, Re-appointment and Resignation of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, Mr. Shamit Bhartia
(DIN: 00020623) will retire at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, has offered
himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his
re-appointment to the members in the ensuing 17th

AGM.

During the financial year under review:
• Mr. Jagat Sharma (DIN: 02997958), has resigned

from the office of Whole-time Director and
Directorship of the Company w.e.f. June 26, 2024,
however he is continuing as an employee of the
Company;

• Mr. Mohandeep Singh (DIN: 10661432), has
appointed as Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time
Director (‘CEO & WTD’) of the Company for a period
of 5 years effective from June 27, 2024.

• Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia (DIN: 00020603), has been
designated as Chairman of the Board of the
Company effective from November 04, 2024.

• Mr. Brijesh Kumar, has resigned from the position
of Company Secretary effective from November 13,
2024; and

• Mr. Hariom Pandey was appointed as Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company
effective from February 01, 2025.

As on March 31, 2025, Mr. Mohandeep Singh, CEO &
Whole-time Director, Mr. Umesh Sharma, Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Hariom Pandey, Company Secretary are
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors have given declaration that
they meet the criteria of independence with relevant
integrity, expertise, experience and proficiency as
provided under Section 149 read with Schedule IV of
the Act and Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations
and have also confirmed for compliance of inclusion of
name in the data bank, being maintained with ‘Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs’ as provided under the
Act read with applicable rules made thereunder. The
Company has also received declaration from the
Independent Directors that they have complied with

the Code for Independent Directors prescribed under
Schedule IV to the Act.

Meetings of the Board

During the FY 2025, 7 (Seven) meetings of Board of
Directors were held. The details of Board Meetings and
the attendance of Directors have been provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, attached to this Report.

Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation
Policy

The Company has implemented a Nomination,
Remuneration and Compensation Policy pursuant to
the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation
19 read with Schedule II, Part D of the Listing
Regulations. Salient features of the Policy and other
details have been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report, attached to this Report.

Annual Performance Evaluation of the Board

The Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating
its performance and as well as that of its Committees
and individual Directors, including the Chairperson of
the Board. The evaluation was carried out through a
structured questionnaire covering various aspects of
the functioning of Board and its Committees. The
detailed process of annual performance evaluation of
the Board, its Committees, Chairperson and of individual
Directors is disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report attached to this Report.

9. AUDIT COMMITTEE

As on date, the Audit Committee consists of four
members: Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma, Chairman,
Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma, Member, Mr. Mohandeep
Singh, Member and Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan, Member.

All the recommendations made by Audit Committee
were accepted by the Board of Directors.

Further information about the Audit Committee is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report attached
to this Report.

10. AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditor

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, the
Members of the Company in the 16th (Sixteenth) Annual
General Meeting held on September 23, 2024 has re-
appointed M/s BGJC & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.003304N/
N500056), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive
years from conclusion of the 16th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 21st Annual General
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Meeting of the Company, to be held for the financial
year 2028-29.

The reports of Statutory Auditors on Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements forms part of the
Annual Report. There are no qualifications, reservations,
adverse remarks, disclaimer or emphasis of matter in
the Auditors’ Reports.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had
appointed M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates (ICSI Firm
Registration No.: P2001DE052900), Company
Secretaries, in its meeting held on February 14, 2025,
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report is attached
as Annexure 1 to this report and does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors of the Company in its Meeting held
on May 29, 2025 has approved and recommend the
appointment of M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates,
Company Secretaries, a Peer Reviewed Firm of Company
Secretaries in practice, as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for a period of five consecutive years
commencing from financial year 2025-26 till financial
year 2029-30, subject to approval of members at the
ensuing 17th AGM

Cost Auditor

The cost accounts and records as required to be
maintained under Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act,
2013 are duly made and maintained by the Company.

M/s. J. K. Kabra & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No.: 0009) were the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. The cost audit
report for the financial year 2023-24 submitted by the
said Cost Auditors during the FY 2024-25 does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
Also the Cost Auditors of the Company have not
reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in their report for FY 2023-24.

The Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee has appointed M/s. J. K. Kabra & Co.,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 0009), as the
Cost Auditors for FY 2025-26.

A resolution seeking approval of the members for
ratifying the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors
for FY 2025- 26 is provided in the Notice to the 17th

Annual General Meeting.

11. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year, there were no instances of fraud
reported by auditors under section 143(12) of the Act.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company in its Meeting
held on November 04, 2024 has constituted a Risk
Management Committee to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management plan for the Company.
The Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk
management plan and its effectiveness.

The Board of Directors of your Company has approved
a Risk Management Policy in line with Regulation 21 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”). The said policy is available
on the website of the Company at https://
www.jacpl.co.in/Risk Management Policy and its Charter

A detailed section on Risk Management is provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forming an integral part of the Annual Report.

13. HUMAN RESOURCES

At Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products, our people
are the cornerstone of our success. Guided by our core
values of Caring, Sharing, and Growing, we are
committed to building a high-performance, inclusive,
and future-ready workforce that aligns with our business
strategy and growth ambitions.

People-Centric Policies and Culture

Our human resources policies are designed to attract,
develop, and retain top talent while fostering a values-
driven culture. We emphasize diversity, transformation,
and critical skills development to ensure our teams are
equipped for both current performance and future
growth.

People Agenda and Workforce Development

We continue to build a skilled, experienced, diverse,
and productive workforce that supports safe, reliable,
and sustainable operations. Our inclusive talent
management philosophy ensures that the right talent
is in the right place at the right time, enabling
transformation and business continuity.

Digital Transformation

Over the past three years, we have made significant
strides in becoming a digitally empowered organization.
Our digital strategy, developed in collaboration with
strategic partners, enables our customer-facing teams
to leverage technology for enhanced customer
satisfaction and improved business outcomes.
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Talent Management and Internal Mobility

Talent management remains a key focus area. We
promote job enlargement, rotation, and internal
mobility, ensuring employees are deeply integrated into
our culture and business. Transparent communication
from CEO Town Halls to structured updates fosters trust,
collaboration, and alignment across the organization.

Training and Capability Building

We invest in continuous learning through training
programs, on-the-job learning, and special projects. Our
Sales Excellence vertical partners with the B2C business
to deliver “The Jubilant Way of Selling” across
geographies, supported by Pan-India training and
certification programs that drive performance and
customer engagement.

Compliance and Workplace Safety

We are committed to maintaining a safe, respectful,
and compliant workplace. An Internal Complaints
Committee is in place in accordance with the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013, and we are proud
to report zero cases during the year under review.

14. AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

During the FY 2025, the Company plant’s received below
awards during the year:

• Gajraula plant has received “Grow Care Safety
Award” in Platinum category for plant’s
performance in Safety Excellence.

• Gajraula plant has received Outstanding
Achievement in “Green Tech Safety Excellence
“category.

• Sahibabad plant has received “Grow Care Safety
Award” in Gold category for plant’s performance
in Safety Excellence.

• Savli plant has received “Grow Care Safety Award”
in Gold category for plant’s performance in Safety
Excellence

• Kapasan plant has received “Grow Care Safety
Award” in Gold category for plant’s performance
in Safety Excellence.

• Gajraula Plant has obtained an International
Recognition from EcoVadis, and has been awarded
a Bronze EcoVadis Medal; and

• Savli (Vadodara) Plant has obtained an International
Recognition from EcoVadis and has been awarded
a Bronze EcoVadis Medal.

15. SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The Company firmly believes in inclusive growth of its
business with the Environmental enrichment and Social
development based on the triple bottom line concept
of Sustainable Development.

The Company will publish its Corporate Sustainability
Report 2024-25 conforming to Global Reporting
Initiative GRI STANDARDS fulfilling the ‘In Accordance’-
Comprehensive reporting criteria. As a green initiative,
this report will be available on the website of the
Company (www.jacpl.co.in ) and GRI database. As an
extension of the green initiative to minimise the impact
on environment, the Annual Report is emailed to
shareholders whose email id is registered with the
Company/Depositories to reduce use of paper.

Sustainability initiatives have been undertaken for
reduction of emission parameters, energy consumption
and greenhouse gas emission. Energy Conservation
drive have been carried out to strengthen the awareness
and participation of employees in reducing avoidable
Energy losses. Steam and Power consumptions norms
improvement achieved while taking Energy
Conservation drive in SPVA, Sulphuric Acid, SSP-
Gajraula and Adhesive- Sahibabad plants. Wastewater
generated in fertilizer plant is completely recycled and
reused. In other plants it is treated and disposed as per
Consent conditions. Natural Resource conservation
measures have been strengthened through reuse of
hazardous wastes i.e. silica sludge, Sulphur sludge and
fly-ash in the fertilizer plant. Further Renewable fuel
(Rice Husk, Fuel Wood, Saw Dust & Mustard Husk
Briquettes) have been successfully used, completely
eliminating use of coal in hot air generators at our
Gajraula Plant in the reporting year. This has resulted
in considerable GHG reduction. Replacement of existing
Diesel Gensets with PNG Gensets at Sahibabad (Clean
Fuel), benefits on the same with regard to GHG emission
has been achieved in FY24.

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CSR constitutes a fundamental pillar of Jubilant’s
corporate philosophy and is implemented in strict
adherence to Section 135, read with Schedule VII of
the Companies Act, 2013. The initiatives are strategically
aligned with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

The Jubilant Bhatia Foundation (JBF), founded in 2007,
serves as the not-for-profit arm of the Jubilant Bhartia
Group. It concentrates on CSR initiatives in Healthcare,
Education, and Livelihood through a 4P (Public-Private-
People-Partnership) model, aiming to uplift and add
value to the communities surrounding the company’s
operational areas.



Annual Report 2024-25 45

In FY 2025, JBF followed its vision of promoting
progressive social change by forming strategic multi-
stakeholder partnerships. These collaborations focus on
generating and sharing knowledge, experiential
learning, and cultivating an entrepreneurial ecosystem.
The foundation’s efforts are dedicated to improving the
quality of life for communities near their manufacturing
sites.

For more detailed information, you can visit their
website: www.jubilantbhartiafoundation.com

The brief information of CSR activities carried out by
the Company is stated below:

A. Arogya- Providing affordable basic & preventive
health care- 33000 population 16 Villages in
Kapasan through Jubilant Aarogya (Providing
affordable healthcare through mobile & static clinic
enabled with JUBICARE- platform along with need-
based health awareness camps.

B. Muskaan-Supporting Rural Government
Primary Education- The foundation aims at
strengthening education and learning environment
in rural areas more than 2000 beneficiaries
(students & teachers) through school digitization
and school strengthening program. To bridge the
urban and rural divide and to enhance the mode
of learning in government schools, the foundation
is implementing school digitization program
through Edu lab Program which focuses on
improving the learning needs of students by
integrating advanced educational tools and
methodologies.

C. JubiFarm-To achieve holistic development in rural
villages by enhancing farmers’ access to modern
and sustainable farming methods and diversifying
income-generating opportunities.

D. Rural Development- The foundation supported
infrastructure strengthening initiative to enhance
the quality of lives of the community.

E. Bharat Impact Jubilant Bhartia Centre for Social
Entrepreneurship- This year a centre to promote
social entrepreneurship was launched which
focuses on incubation, education, and research to
support social entrepreneurs.

During FY 2024-25, the Company contributed ̀  127
Lakh on a standalone basis towards CSR activities.

The Annual Report on CSR including contents of the
CSR Policy and composition of Sustainability &
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is attached
as Annexure 2 to this Report.

17. INVESTOR SERVICES

In its endeavour to improve investor services, your
Company has taken the following initiatives:

• The Investor Section on the website of the
Company (www.jacpl.co.in) is updated regularly for
information of the shareholders.

• Disclosure(s) made to the Stock Exchanges are
promptly uploaded on the website of the Company,
as per the requirement of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, for information of the Investors.

• There is a dedicated e-mail id
investorsjacpl@jubl.com for sending
communications to the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer.

Members may lodge their requests, complaints and
suggestions on this e-mail as well.

18. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company’s internal control framework are
commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations. BGJC & Associates LLP, Statutory Auditors
have audited the financial statements of the Company
included in this annual report and have also confirmed
the adequacy and operational effectiveness of its
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Section 143 of the Act) as on March 31, 2025. A detailed
section on Internal Controls and their Adequacy is
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report forming an integral part of the Annual Report.

19. OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

i. Extract of Annual Return: In terms of Sections
92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act, annual return is
available under the ‘Investors’ section of the
Company’s website and can be viewed at the
following link: www.jacpl.co.in.

ii. Deposits: The Company did not invite/accept any
deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
Accordingly, no disclosure or reporting is required
in respect of details relating to deposits covered
under the said Chapter.

iii. Loans, Guarantees and Investments: Details of
loans, guarantees/ securities and investments along
with the purpose for which the loan, guarantee or
security is proposed to be utilised by the recipient
have been disclosed in Note nos. 07, 08 and 40 to
the Standalone Financial Statements.

iv. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with
the Related Parties: The Company had formulated
a policy on Related Party Transactions (‘RPTs’),
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dealing with the review and approval of RPTs. Prior
omnibus approval is obtained for RPTs which are
of repetitive nature. All RPTs are placed before the
Audit Committee for review and approval.

All RPTs entered into during FY 2024-25 were in
the ordinary course of business and were entered
on arm’s length basis. No material RPTs were
entered into during FY 2024-25 by the Company
as defined in the Policy on Materiality of Related
Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party
Transactions. Accordingly, the disclosure of RPTs
as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in
Form AOC 2 is not applicable. Your Directors draw
attention of the members to Note no. 39 to the
Standalone Financial Statements which sets out the
Related Party disclosures.

v. Material Changes in Financial Position: No
material change or commitment has occurred after
the close of the Financial Year 2024-25 till the date
of this Report, which affects the financial position
of the Company.

vi. Significant or Material orders: No significant or
material orders have been passed by the Regulators
or Courts or Tribunal impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations.

vii. Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy: The
details of Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)
adopted by the Company have been disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report, which forms an
integral part of this report.

viii. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: The
Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturing of Performance Polymers &
Chemicals and Agri Products comprising Single
Super Phosphate, a wide range of Crop Nutrition,
Crop Growth and the information as required under
Section 134 of the Act, read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended,
has been given in Annexure 3 and forms part of
this Report.

ix. Particular of Employees: Particulars as required
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are given in
Annexure 4 and forms part of this Report. The
statement containing particulars of employees, as
required under Section 197 of the Act, read with
Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Rules, is provided in
a separate annexure forming part of this Board’s
Report. However, in terms of the provisions of

Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report is being
sent to the members of the Company, excluding
the said annexure. The said annexure is available
for inspection by the shareholders at the Registered
Office of the Company during working hours of
the Company i.e. on Monday to Friday between
11:00 a.m. (IST) to 05:00 p.m. (IST). Any shareholder
interested in obtaining a copy of the said annexure
may write to the Company Secretary of the
Company or send an email at the following email
address: investorsjacpl@jubl.com .

x. Secretarial Standards of ICSI: The Company has
complied with the Secretarial Standard-1 on
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and Secretarial
Standard-2 on ‘General Meetings’ issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

xi. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection
Fund: The details of unpaid or unclaimed dividend
and shares thereof transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund have been disclosed
in Corporate Governance Report and forms an
integral part of this report.

xii. The details of application made or any proceeding
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along-with
their status as at the end of the financial year: Not
Applicable

xiii. The details of difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from the
Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof: Not Applicable.

xiv. The disclosures as required under Rule 4, Rule 8,
Rule 12 and Rule 16 of the Companies (Share
Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

20. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors, based on the representation received
from the management, confirm that:

• in the preparation of annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

• the Directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as on March 31, 2025 and of the
profit or loss of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025;
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• the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

• the Directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

• the Directors have laid down adequate internal
financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and

• the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is
committed to maintain the highest standards of
Corporate Governance and believes in adhering to the
best corporate practices prevalent globally.

A detailed Report on Corporate Governance pursuant
to the requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule
V of the Listing Regulations, is attached as Annexure 5
and forms part of this Report. A certificate from the
Statutory Auditor confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in
Clause E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations, 2015
as amended time to time, is attached to the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
for Directors and Senior Management for the year
ended March 31, 2025. A certificate from the CEO &
Whole-time Director confirming the same is attached
to the Corporate Governance Report.

A certificate from the CEO & Whole-time Director and
Chief Financial Officer confirming correctness of the
financial statements, adequacy of internal control
measures, etc. is also attached to the Corporate
Governance Report.

22. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as
stipulated under the Listing Regulations, is presented
in a separate Section forming part of this Annual Report.

For the sake of brevity the items covered in the Board
Report are not repeated in the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report.

23. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude the co-
operation and assistance received from the Central and
State Government Authorities. Your Directors thanks
the Shareholders, Banks/other Lenders, Customers,
Vendors and other business associates for the
confidence reposed in the Company and its
management and look forward to their continued
support. The Board places on record its appreciation
for the dedication and commitment of the employees
at all levels, which has continued to be our major
strength. We look forward to their continued support
in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyavrat Bhartia
Place : Gurugram Chairman
Date : May 29, 2025 DIN : 00020603

Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited48

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Jubilant Agri and Consumer
Products Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
We report that-
a. Maintenance of secretarial records are the responsibility

of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

b. We have followed the audit practices and processes as
were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c. We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of the financial statements of the
Company.

d. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the compliances of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

e. The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards
is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

f. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we

hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March
31, 2025 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025,
according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made

thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)

and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and

Bye-laws framed thereunder; and
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules

and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Non Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; [Not applicable to the

Annexure 1

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
(CIN: U52100UP2008PLC035862)
Bhartiagram, Jyotiba Phule Nagar, Gajraula,
District-Amroha, Uttar Pradesh-244223
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Company during the audit period]
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act,
2013 and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; [Not
applicable to the Company during the audit
period];

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-
back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not
applicable to the Company during the audit
period]

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the
Board of Directors and on General Meetings issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India which has
been generally complied with.
During the Audit Period, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Standards and Guidelines, to the extent applicable, as
mentioned above.

(vi) The Company has manufacturing facilities of Fertilizers,
Wood Finish and Sulphuric Acid at Gajraula (Uttar
Pradesh); Latex at Savli (Gujarat); Fertilizers at
Chittorgarh (Rajasthan) and Adhesive at Sahibabad
(Uttar Pradesh). As informed by the management,
Essential Commodities Act, 1955; Legal Metrology Act,
2009; and The Fertilizer Control Order, 1985 are some
of the the laws specifically applicable to the Company.
On the basis of management representation and our
check on test basis, we are on the view that the
Company has system to ensure compliance of laws
specifically applicable on it.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors. Further, the
changes in the board of directors that took place during
the audit period were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.
Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance of the
meetings and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting for meaningful participation at the
meeting.
Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent

and therefore, no dissenting views were required to be
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We also report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.
We also report that during the audit period:
- the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad

Bench (‘Hon’ble NCLT) approved the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement between HSSS Investment
Holding Private Limited (“Amalgamating Company 1”),
KBHB Investment Holding Private Limited
(“Amalgamating Company 2”), SSBPB Investment
Holding Private Limited (“Amalgamating Company 3”),
Jubilant Industries Limited (“Amalgamating Company
4”) and Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
(“Amalgamated Company”) on August 07, 2024 (the
“Scheme”).

- in accordance with the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company at their Meeting held on November
04, 2024, allotted 1,50,67,101 Equity Shares of INR 10/
- each to the shareholders of Jubilant Industries Limited
(‘JIL’) as of the Record Date (October 28, 2024) in the
ratio of one Equity Share of the Company for every one
Equity Share of JIL. Further, as per the Scheme, the
equity shares of the Company got listed on National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited with
effect from February 14, 2025.

- the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting
held on February 09, 2024 provided inprincipal approval
for the scheme of demerger of Agri Products and
Sulphuric Acid Business of the Company into a new
separate company.

- the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting
held on March 24, 2025 approved the proposal to
incorporate “Jubilant Agri Solutions Limited” (JASL) as
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with the
main object to carry out the business of manufacturing,
marketing and trading of Agriculture products and
Chemicals etc.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900
Peer Review Certificate No.: 6311/2024

Kapil Dev Taneja
Partner

New Delhi M No.: F4019; CP No.: 22944
May 29, 2025 UDIN: F004019G000482926
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1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

At Jubilant, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a
natural extension of our core values. Guided by the
vision of enriching lives and empowering communities,
our CSR initiatives are designed to create sustainable
impact. CSR initiatives are executed through the Jubilant
Bhartia Foundation, a Section 8 not-for-profit
organization. CSR Policy is regularly updated and
publicly available on the company website. All activities
are approved by the CSR Committee.

We align our programs with the Schedule VII of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs), focusing
on:

Education: Enhancing access to quality learning
opportunities

Healthcare: Improving community health and well-
being

Farmer Empowerment: Supporting sustainable
agricultural practices

Social Entrepreneurship: Encouraging innovative
solutions for social change.

Annexure 2

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

2 Composition of CSR Committee:
Sl. Name of Director Designation/ Number of meetings Number of meetings

No. Nature of of CSR Committee of CSR Committee
Directorship held during the year attended during

the year
1 Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma Chairman 2 2
2 Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma Member 2 2
3 Mr. Jagat Sharma(Refer note i) Member 1 1
4 Mr. Mohandeep Singh (Refer note ii) Member 1 1

Note:
i. Mr. Jagat Sharma, ceased as a member of the committee effective from June 26, 2024, due to his resignation from the post

of Whole Time Directorship & Director of the Company. Therefore, during his tenure only one meeting was held.

ii. Mr. Mohandeep Singh, inducted as a member of the committee effective from June 27, 2024, due to his appointment as CEO
& Whole time Director on the Board of the Company. Therefore, during his tenure only one meeting was held.

3 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy
and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website
of the company

4 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in Not Applicable
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

5 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) Nil
of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) ` 6344.963 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) ` 126.90 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of Nil
the previous financial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) ` 126.90 Lakhs

8. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other ` 127.00 Lakhs
than Ongoing Project).

https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/
image/64imguf_CSR-policy.pdf

https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/image/64imguf_CSR-policy.pdf
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(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. ` 127.00 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year Nil

Amount Unspent (in `̀̀̀̀)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund
Spent for the Account as per section 135(6) specified under Schedule VII as per
Financial Year (`̀̀̀̀) second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer

` 127.00 Lakhs Not Applicable

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. Particulars Amounts
No.
(1) (2) (3)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) ` 126.90 Lakhs
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ` 127.00 Lakhs
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] ` 0.10 Lakhs
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the Not applicable

previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] ` 0.10 Lakhs

9. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sl. Preceding Amount transferred Amount spent Amount transferred to any Amount
No. Financial to Unspent CSR in the reporting fund specified under remaining to

Year (in `̀̀̀̀) Account under Financial Year Schedule VII as per be spent in
section 135 (6) (in `̀̀̀̀) (in `̀̀̀̀) section 135(6), if any succeeding

financial years
(in `̀̀̀̀)

Name of Amount Date of
the Fund (in `̀̀̀̀) transfer

Not applicable

10. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in
the Financial Year: Nil

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired: Not applicable

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the Financial Year : Not applicable

1 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two Not applicable
per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

For Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma Mr. Mohandeep Singh
Chairman Member

Place : Gurugram DIN: 03411214 DIN: 10661432
Date : May 29, 2025 (Chairperson CSR Committee) (Chief Executive Officer & Whole-time Director)
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Annexure 3

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

• Power consumption norms improvement in SPVA
plant by 1,16,266.18 units.

• Steam Norms savings in SPVA plant by 523.2 MT
• Power consumption norms improvement in SSP

plant by 3,28,159 units
• Power consumption norms improvement in SAP

plant by 5,64,891 units
• Power consumption norms improvement in

Adhesive Plant (Sahibabad) by 25,742 units
• PNG consumption norms improvement in Adhesive

Plant (Sahibabad) by 7,373 SCM.
Through these initiatives, Power consumption reduction
achieved is 10,35,058 Units (KWH), Steam Saving of
523.2 Tons, Coal Saving of 2,697.09 Tons & PNG Saving
7,373 SCM.
Energy consumption reduction achieved through these
initiatives is 5,480 GJ for the year 2024-25

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy
The Company recognizes that climate change
mitigation requires significant consideration in business
decisions. To bring down carbon footprint, the
Company replaced 2,697.09 MT of coal with carbon
neutral fuel rice husk resulting into reduction of GHG
emission by 4,520 tCO2.

(iii) Capital investment on energy conservation
equipments
Nil.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i) Efforts made towards technology absorption

Research & Development plays a fundamental role in
innovation, developing and absorbing new technologies
to build a robust pipeline of products in a timely manner
and ensures product leadership. New technologies are
conceptualized at the lab scale followed by scale up,
leading to commercialization, with a lead-time
comparable to the best in the industry. R&D technology
inputs further enhance the operational efficiencies. Six
Sigma initiatives at R&D and plant, also play a critical
role for the adoption of new technologies and enhance
the efficiency of our manufacturing plants. Efforts are
also on to make products more sustainable &
environment friendly wherever possible.

ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import
substitution
Introduction of cost effective products & process
improvements in all the areas of the business enables
the company to achieve global leadership position. R&D
has a constant thrust on integrating superior but cost
effective technologies through product improvements
and new product developments. R&D is also constantly
working towards protecting the product margins by
efficient recipe optimizations and Raw material
qualifications. R&D constantly endeavors to find out
new applications for existing & new products. R&D
provides an in-depth knowledge and application
research, which ensures timely technical support to
customers. This helps our customers to profit from
emerging opportunities.

iii) Imported Technology
1. The details of technology imported: Disclosure to

the process and know-how for Polyurethane
Coatings.

2. The year of import: Technology handover on April
21, 2017.

3. Whether the technology been fully absorbed:
Technology transfer is done but manufacturing is
not done in the organization.

4. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place, and the reasons thereof: As per
strategic planning.

iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development
`̀̀̀̀ in million

Description Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Capital 1.65 0.57
(b) Recurring 63.52 61.02
(c) Total 65.17 61.59
(d) Total R&D expenditure as a 0.42% 0.50%

percentage of total turnover

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: –
`̀̀̀̀ in million

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Foreign Exchange Earned 2955.68 2694.35
Foreign Exchange Outgo 2694.04 3400.33

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyavrat Bhartia
Place: Gurugram Chairman
Date: May 29, 2025 (DIN: 00020603)
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Annexure 4

Particulars prescribed under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

PART-A

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for the financial year 2024-25, the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year 2024-25:

Sl. Name and Designation of Remuneration during % increase in Ratio of remuneration
No. Director/KMP the financial year Remuneration of each Director to

2024-25 (in INR) median remuneration
of employees

1. Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia1 – – –
Chairman (Non-Executive)

2. Mr. Shamit Bhartia1 – – –
Non-Executive Director

3. Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma2 11,10,000 73.44% 1.80
Independent Director

4. Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma2 11,60,000 77.10% 1.88
Independent Director

5. Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan3 7,50,000 Not applicable 1.21
6. Mr. Mohandeep Singh4 3,08,04,302 Not applicable 498.45

Whole Time Director & CEO
7. Mr. Jagat Sharma5 28,83,942 Not applicable Not applicable

Whole Time Director
8. Mr. Umesh Sharma 1,83,51,744 17.19% Not applicable

Chief Financial Officer
9. Mr. Brijesh Kumar6 21,82,225 Not applicable Not applicable

Company Secretary
10. Mr. Hariom Pandey7 4,39,436 Not applicable Not applicable

Company Secretary

Note:
1) Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia and Mr. Shamit Bhartia have opted not to take sitting fee.
2) Change in remuneration of Independent Directors vis-a-vis previous year is due to increase in sitting fees and

number of meetings held & attended by the Independent Director.
3) Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan was appointed as an Independent Director effective from February 10, 2024
4) Mr. Mohandeep Singh was appointed as Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company effective from June 27,

2024.
5) Mr. Jagat Sharma has stepped down from the position of Whole Time Director and Director effective from June

26, 2024;
6) Mr. Brijesh Kumar has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company

effective from November 13, 2024.
7) Mr. Hariom Pandey was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company effective from

February 01, 2025.
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ii) Median of Total Cost to Company (CTC) on payable basis has been taken for all on-roll employees as on
March 31, 2025: Median Salary of all on-roll employees is ` 6,17,990.

iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2024-25: 8.70%

iv) Permanent employees were on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025: 1,404

v) Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with the percentage increase in managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Not applicable

vi) Average increase in remuneration of the employees other than managerial remuneration was during the
Financial Year 24-25: 8.70%

vii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Policy
for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

* Note: Remuneration comprises basic salary, allowances, perquisites/taxable value of perquisites (including ESOP
perquisite, if any), provident fund contribution, performance linked incentives, other incentives paid in FY 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyavrat Bhartia
Place : Gurugram Chairman
Date : May 29, 2025 DIN: 00020603
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A) Company’s Philosophy:

At Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“the
Company” or “Jubilant”), Corporate Governance is both
a tradition and a way of life. We believe in delivering
on our promise of Caring, Sharing, Growing, which
translates into:

“We will, with utmost care for the environment, continue
to enhance value for our customers by providing
innovative products and economically efficient solutions
and for our shareholders through sales growth, cost
effectiveness and wise investment of resources.”

The Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy is
led by core principles of:

• Caring for the environment which includes caring
for the society around us;

• Enhancement of stakeholders’ value through
pursuit of excellence, efficiency of operations, quest
for growth and continuous innovation;

• Transparency, promptness and fairness in
disclosures to and communication with all
stakeholders including shareholders, government
authorities, customers, suppliers, lenders,
employees and the community at large; and

• Complying with laws in letter as well as in spirit.

Highlights of Company’s Corporate Governance regime
are:

• Broad based and well represented Board with fair
mix of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Directors bringing in expertise in diverse areas with
half of the Board being Independent;

• Constitution of several Board Committees for
focused attention and proactive flow of information
and informed decisions;

• Emphasis on ethical business conduct by the Board,
management and employees to ensure integrity,
transparency, independence and accountability in
dealing with stakeholders;

• Established Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management, Instituted Whistle Blower
policy and Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading and Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information;

• Detailed Policy for Disclosure of material events and
information;

• Focus on hiring, retaining and nurturing best talent
and to promote a culture of excellence across the
organisation. Exhaustive HR policies cover
succession planning, training and development,
employee grievance handling, etc.;

• Employees Stock Option Plan – to attract, reward
and retain key senior executives;

• Online monitoring of internal controls on all
operations spanning nearly 1,500 control assertions
through a specially designed software to
institutionalize a quarterly system of certification
to enable CEO/CFO certification of internal controls
as per Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred as Listing Regulations);

• Robust Risk Management framework for identifying
various risks, assessing their probability as well as
likely impact and finalizing risk mitigation and
minimization plans;

• Timely, transparent and regular disclosures;

• Effective control on statutory compliances by
quarterly online reporting and presentation;

• Paperless meetings of Board and Committees; and

• Communication with shareholders including
emailing of Annual Reports, Corporate
Sustainability Report, and other documents.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) regulates
Corporate Governance practices and disclosures for
listed companies through the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”). Jubilant is in full compliance with
the Listing Regulations.

B) Board of Directors:

(i) Composition

The Board of the Company comprises of six
Directors out of which three are Non-Executive
Independent Directors including one Woman
Independent Director, two are Non-Executive
Promoter Directors and one Executive Director.

Annexure-5
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Further, the policy on Board Diversity of the
Company requires the Board to have balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company. The said policy is
available at https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/
image/14imguf_JACPL_BoardDiversityPolicy.pdf

The skills, expertise and competencies of the
Directors as identified by the Board in the context
of business of the Company, are provided and
forming part of this Report. These skills, expertise
and competencies are available in the present mix
of the Directors of the Company.

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is upto five consecutive years from the date of their appointment.
However, they can be re-appointed for another term of five consecutive years. The date of appointment/ re-
appointment and tenure of the existing Independent Directors are given below:

Sl. Name of Independent Director Date of Appointment/ Date of Completion
No. Re-Appointment of Tenure

1 Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan February 10, 2024 February 9, 2029
2 Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma October 25, 2023 October 24, 2028
3 Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma September 3, 2020 September 2, 2025

The letters of appointment/re-appointment are
issued to the Independent Directors and the terms
and conditions thereof are posted on the
Company’s website at https://www.jacpl.co.in/
Terms-and-Conditions-for-appointment-of-IDs.pdf

The Board of Directors along with its Committees
provides effective leadership and strategic
guidance to the Company’s management while
discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby
ensuring that the management adheres to high
standards of ethics, transparency and disclosures.

(ii) Key functions of the Board

The Board performs various statutory and other
functions in connection with managing the affairs
of the Company. The key functions performed by
the Board of the Company are:

a. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy,
major plans of action, annual budgets and
business plans, setting performance objectives,
monitoring implementation & corporate
performance and overseeing major capital
expenditures, acquisitions and divestments;

b. Monitoring effectiveness of the Company’s
governance, policies & practices and making
changes as needed;

c. Selecting, compensating, monitoring and when
necessary, replacing Key Managerial Personnel
and overseeing succession planning;

d. Aligning Key Managerial Personnel and
Directors remuneration with the long term
interests of the Company and its shareholders;

e. Ensuring a transparent Board nomination
process with the diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective and
gender in the Board;

f. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts
of interest of management, board members
and shareholders, including misuse of
corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions;

g. Ensuring integrity of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting systems, including the
independent audit and that appropriate
systems of control are in place, in particular,
systems for risk management, financial and
operational controls and compliance with the
laws & regulations and relevant standards in
force;

h. Overseeing the process of disclosure and
communications; and

i. Monitoring and reviewing Board’s Evaluation
framework.

(iii) Meetings of the Board

During the year, the Board met (7) seven times i.e.
on May 27, 2024; June 27, 2024; August 12, 2024;
November 04, 2024; February 01, 2025; February
14, 2025 and March 24, 2025. The Company has
held minimum one Board Meeting in each quarter
and maximum gap between two consecutive
meetings did not exceed prescribed limit of 120
days which is in compliance with Listing Regulations
and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

An annual calendar of meetings is prepared well in
advance and shared with the Directors in the
beginning of the year to enable them to plan their
attendance at the meetings. Directors are expected
to attend Board and Committee Meetings, spend
the necessary time and meet as frequently as the
situation warrants to properly discharge their
responsibilities.
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Concerned executives of the Company
communicate the matters requiring approval of the
Board to the Company Secretary, well in advance,
so that these can be included in the Agenda for
the scheduled Board/Committee meeting.

Agenda papers are sent electronically to the
Directors, well in advance, before the meetings.
Draft Minutes of the Board and Committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors of the
Company for their comments thereon and,

thereafter, noted by the Board/ Committee in its
next Meeting.

The composition of Board of Directors, their
attendance at Board Meetings during the financial
year 2024-25 and at the last Annual General
Meeting duly held on September 23, 2024 along
with details of other Directorship and Committee
Membership/Chairmanship as at March 31, 2025
are as follows:

Name of DIN Category Directorships in No. of Directorships and No. of Board Last
Director other Listed Committee memberships Meetings AGM

Entity and and Chairmanships attended Attended
category of (excluding private (Total held
Directorship companies) during tenure)

Director- Chairman Member
ships

Mr. Priyavrat 00020603 Chairman, • Hindustan 7 Nil 4 7(7) Yes
Bhartia4 Non-Executive- Media Ventures

Non Limited-Non-
Independent Executive-Non-
Director, Independent
related to Director
Promoter • HT Media Limited-

Non-Executive –
Non-Independent
Director

• Jubilant Pharmova
Limited –
Executive Director,
Managing Director

• Jubilant Ingrevia
Limited Non-
Executive – Non
Independent
Director

• Digicontent
Limited-Chairman,
Non-Executive –
Non Independent
Director

Mr. Shamit 00020623 Non-Executive- • Hindustan Media 7 Nil 1 2(7) No
Bhartia Non- Ventures Limited-

Independent Non-Executive-
Director and Non Independent
related to Director
Promoter • HT Media Limited-

Non-Executive-
Non-Independent
Director

• Jubilant
FoodWorks
Limited- Non-
Executive-Non
Independent
Director
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Name of DIN Category Directorships in No. of Directorships and No. of Board Last
Director other Listed Committee memberships Meetings AGM

Entity and and Chairmanships attended Attended
category of (excluding private (Total held
Directorship companies) during tenure)

Director- Chairman Member
ships

Mr. 10661432 Chief Nil 1 Nil 2 6(6) Yes
Mohandeep Executive
Singh5 Officer &

Whole Time
Director

Mr. Radhey 00013208 Independent Polycab India 4 2 6 7(7) Yes
Shyam Director Limited -
Sharma Independent

Director

Mr. Ravinder 03411214 Independent None 1 1 2 7(7) Yes
Pal Sharma Director

Ms. Sanjanthi 00431379 Independent None 1 Nil 1 5(7) Yes
Sajan Director

Mr. Jagat 02997958 Whole-time None 1 Nil Nil 1(1) Not
Sharma6 Director applicable

Notes:
1. Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia and Mr. Shamit Bhartia being brothers are related to each other. Except this, there is no inter-se

relationship among the Directors.
2. The directorships, held by Directors, as mentioned above includes directorships in Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products

Limited, and do not include the directorships held in Section 8 Companies & private limited companies .
3. Committees considered for the purpose are those prescribed under Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations viz. Audit

Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Indian Public Limited companies including Jubilant Agri and
Consumer Products Limited. Committee membership’s details provided includes chairmanship of committees.

4. Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia (DIN: 00020603), has been designated as Chairman of the Board of the Company effective from
November 04, 2024.

5. Mr. Mohandeep Singh (DIN: 10661432), was appointed as Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time Director (‘CEO & WTD’)
of the Company for a period of 5 years effective from June 27, 2024.

6. Mr. Jagat Sharma (DIN: 02997958), has resigned from the office of Whole-time Director and Directorship of the Company
w.e.f. June 26, 2024, however he is continuing as an employee of the Company

(iv) Information given to the Board

The Board and Committees thereof have complete
access to all relevant information. Such information
is submitted either as part of the agenda papers of
the meetings in advance or by way of presentations
and other discussion material during the meetings.
Such information, inter-alia, includes the following:

• Annual operating plans, budgets and any
updates thereon;

• Capital budgets and any updates thereon;

• Annual and Quarterly results of the Company
and its operating divisions or business
segments;

• Minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee
and other Committees of the Board of
Directors;

• Information on recruitment and remuneration
of senior officers just below the Board level,
including appointment or removal of the Chief
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary;

• Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and
penalty notices, which are materially important;

• Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous
occurrences, any material effluent or pollution
problems;

• Material default in financial obligations to and
by the Company, or substantial non-payment
for goods sold by the Company;

• Issue which involves possible public or product
liability claims of substantial nature;

• Details of any joint venture or collaboration
agreement;
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• Transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property;

• Significant labour problems and their proposed
solutions including any significant
development in Human Resources/ Industrial
Relations front;

• Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which
are material in nature and not in normal course
of business;

• Quarterly details of foreign exchange
exposures and the steps taken by the
Management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material;

• Minutes of Board Meetings of unlisted
subsidiary company(s);

• Statement of significant transactions or
arrangements made by unlisted subsidiary
companies;

• Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory
or listing requirements and shareholder’s
services such as non-payment of dividend,
delay in share transfer, etc;

• Quarterly statement showing status of
investors complaints;

• Compliance Reports pertaining to applicable
laws and steps taken to rectify instance of non–
compliance, Overseeing the process of
disclosure and communications;

• Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporate
Governance;

• Quarterly Shareholding Pattern; and

• Quarterly Share Price Movement with
comparison.

(v) Independent Directors’ Meeting

Independent Directors meeting held on April 16,
2025 without the attendance of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management of the
Company. The Independent Directors, inter alia,
evaluated the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors, the Chairperson of the
Company and the Board of Directors as a whole
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. They
also assessed the quality, content and timeliness
of flow of information between the Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

(vi) Familiarisation Programme for Independent
Directors

The Company familiarises its Independent Directors
about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the
Company, legal updates and other relevant
information relating to the Company. In this regard,
the Company follows a structured familiarisation
programme for the Independent Directors. The
details related thereto are displayed on the
Company’s website at https://www.jacpl.co.in/
Familiarisation-Programmes.pdf.

(vii)List of Core Skills/ expertise/ competencies
identified by the Board

The following core skills/ expertise/ competencies
have been identified by the Board of Directors as
required in the context of business(es) and sector(s)
of the Company to function effectively:

1. Deep understanding of Company’s business/
strategy and structure (Business Strategy);

2. Financial acumen;

3. Knowledge in Accounting and Auditing
Standards and tax matters (Accounting & Tax
Matters);

4. Knowledge of the Companies Act, 2013,
applicable SEBI and Stock Exchange
Regulations (SEBI & Corporate Laws);

5. Knowledge on Employee Benefit Schemes and
matters related to employee hiring / skill
development, gender diversity, etc. (HR &
ESOPS);

6. Entrepreneurial skills to evaluate risk and
rewards and perform advisory role (Risk
Management);

7. Focus on compliance;

8. Understanding of the processes and systems
for defining high corporate governance
standards (Corporate Governance);

9. Understanding rights of Shareholders and
obligations of the Management (Shareholders
Management);

10. Knowledge in global standards on Corporate
Sustainability and Sustainability Reporting
based on Global Reporting initiatives
Standards (GRI Standards); and

11. Knowledge of national and global business
scenario (National & Global Business).

Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited60

Area of Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies available with the Board:

Name of the Director Area of Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies

Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia, Business Strategy; Financial acumen; Accounting & Tax Matters; SEBI &
(Chairman) Corporate Laws; HR & ESOPS; Risk Management; Focus on compliance;

Corporate Governance; Shareholders Management; GRI Standards; and
National & Global Business.

Mr. Shamit Bhartia, Business Strategy; Financial acumen; Accounting & Tax Matters; SEBI &
(Director) Corporate Laws; HR & ESOPS; Risk Management; Focus on compliance;

Corporate Governance; Shareholders Management; GRI Standards; and
National & Global Business.

Mr. Mohandeep Singh Business Strategy; Financial acumen; Accounting & Tax Matters; SEBI &
(Whole-time Director & CEO) Corporate Laws; HR & ESOPS; Risk Management; Focus on compliance;

Corporate Governance; Shareholders Management; GRI Standards; and
National & Global Business.

Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma, Business Strategy; Financial acumen; Accounting & Tax Matter, SEBI &
(Director) Corporate Laws; Risk Management, Focus on compliance; Corporate

Governance; Shareholders Management; and National & Global Business.
Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma, Business Strategy; Financial acumen; Accounting & Tax Matters; SEBI &
(Director) Corporate Laws; HR & ESOPS; Risk Management; Focus on compliance;

Corporate Governance; Shareholders Management; National & Global
Business, GRI Standards.

Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan, SEBI & Corporate Laws; HR & ESOPS; Focus on compliance; Corporate
(Director) Governance; Shareholders Management.

(viii)Confirmation of Independence

The Independent Directors of your Company have
confirmed that:

(a) they meet the criteria of Independence as
prescribed under Section 149 read with
relevant rules of the Act and Regulation 16 of
the Listing Regulations, and

(b) they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which could impair or impact their
ability to discharge duties with an objective
independent judgement and without any
external influence.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions
prescribed under the Act, the Listing Regulations
and are independent of the management of the
Company.

(ix) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary
on qualification of Directors

The Company has obtained a certificate from a
Practicing Company Secretary, Mr. Kapil Dev Taneja,
Partner of M/s. Sanjay Grover & Associates,
Company Secretaries, as per the provisions of
Schedule V(C) of the Listing Regulations, confirming
that none of the Directors on the Board of the

Company have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors of
companies by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such statutory authority as on 31st March,
2025. The Certificate is attached as Annexure A.

x) Total Fees paid to Statutory Auditor

The total fees paid (including other certification &
Reimbursement) during the year by the Company
and its Holding & subsidiaries to BGJC & Associates
LLP, Statutory Auditor, amounting to ̀  3.72 million
(approx.). They does not have any network firm/
network entity. The said fee includes payments for
certifications and out of pocket expenses also.

xi) During the period under review, no independent
director has resigned from the Board before the
completion of the tenure.

C) Committees of the Board

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient
resolution of diverse matters, the Board has constituted
several Committees of Directors with specific terms of
reference. The Committees operate as empowered
agents of the Board as per their terms of reference that
set forth the purposes, goals and responsibilities.
Committee members are appointed by the Board of
Directors. The Committees meet as often as required
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or as statutorily required. Committees that are
constituted voluntarily for effective governance of the
affairs of the Company may also include Company
executives.

The minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the
Board are circulated quarterly to the Board for noting.

Major Committees are:
• Audit Committee
• Nomination and Remuneration Committee
• Stakeholders Relationship Committee
• Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee
• Finance Committee
• Business Strategy Committee
• Restructuring Committee
• Risk Management Committee

Recommendations made by these Committees have
been accepted by the Board. The Company Secretary
officiates as the Secretary of the Committees. Detailed
terms of reference, composition, quorum, meetings,
attendance and other relevant details of these
committees are as under:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee primarily constitutes a formal and
transparent arrangement for accurate financial
reporting and strong internal controls. The Committee
through regular interaction with external and internal
auditors and review of financial statements ensures that
the interests of stakeholders are properly protected.
The committee have powers to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference, seek information from any
employee, obtain outside legal or other professional
advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

All members of the Audit Committee are financially
literate and a majority has accounting or financial
management expertise.

(i) Terms of Reference:

The Audit Committee functions according to its
terms of reference that define its authority,
responsibility and reporting functions in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and
Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II to
the Listing Regulations and SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, which, inter-alia,
includes the following:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
cost auditors and statutory auditors including
their replacement or removal.

3. Approval for payment to statutory auditors for
any other permitted services rendered by
statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditors’ report
thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the

Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgement by management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements arising out of audit
findings.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial
statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party
transactions.

g. Draft auditors’ reports including
qualifications, if any.

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

6. Reviewing with the management, the
statement of uses/ application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/ prospectus/ notice and
the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take steps
in this matter.

7. Reviewing and monitoring with the
management, independence and performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
internal control systems and effectiveness of
the audit processes.
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8. Reviewing adequacy of internal audit function
including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

9. Discussion with internal auditors on any
significant findings and follow up there-on.

10. Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

11. Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern.

12. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment
of declared dividends) and creditors.

13. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
Policy (Vigil Mechanism).

14. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the
Whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate.

15. Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related
parties.

16. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments.

17. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary.

18. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management system.

19. Review of management discussion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operations.

20. Review of management letters/ letters of
internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors.

21. Review of internal audit reports relating to
internal control weaknesses.

22. Review of financial statements, in particular,
investments made by the subsidiary
company(ies).

23. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or
advances from/ investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding Rupees
100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including
existing loans/ advances/ investments.

24. Review compliance with the provisions of the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 and verify that the systems
for internal control are adequate and are
operating effectively.

25. Discharge any other duties or responsibilities
as may be prescribed by law or as may be
delegated by the Board from time to time.

(ii) Composition

As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr.
Ravinder Pal Sharma-Chairman, Mr. Radhey Shyam
Sharma- Member, Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan-Member and
Mr. Mohandeep Singh- Member.

Invitees:

Mr. Umesh Sharma, Chief Financial Officer is a
permanent invitee to the Audit Committee
meetings.

The representatives of Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors, and other executives, as required
by the Committee, attend the meetings as invitees.

(iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance

Audit Committee meets at least four times in a year
with a gap of not more than one hundred and
twenty days between two consecutive meetings.
The quorum for the meeting is either two members
or one third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher with at least two Independent
Directors.

During the year, the Committee met (5) five times
i.e. on May 27, 2024; August 12, 2024; November
04, 2024; February 01, 2025 and February 14, 2025.
Attendance details of the members are given in
the table below:

Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Ravinder Pal 5 5
Sharma, Chairman

Mr. Radhey Shyam 5 5
Sharma-Member

Ms. Sanjanthi 5 4
Sajan-Member
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Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Mohandeep 4 4
Singh1 -Member

Mr. Jagat 1 1
Sharma2 - Member

1. Mr. Mohandeep Singh, was appointed as Member
of the Committee effective from June 27, 2024.

2. Mr. Jagat Sharma ceased to be the Member of
Committee effective from June 26, 2024.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’)
functions according to its terms of reference that define
its authority, responsibility and reporting functions in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and
Regulation 19 read with Part D (A) of Schedule II to the
Listing Regulations:

(i) Terms of Reference:

The duties and responsibilities of the Committee
are:

1. To identify persons who are qualified to
become directors in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommend to the
Board, their appointment/ removal.

2. To identify persons who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommend to the
Board, their appointment/ removal.

3. Specify manner for effective evaluation of
performance of Board, Directors and its
committees and review its implementation and
compliance.

4. To formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

5. For appointment of an Independent Director
on the Board, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and
on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required
of an Independent Director to be appointed.

The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director shall
have the capabilities identified in such
description. For the purpose of identifying
suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agency, if
required.

b. consider candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the
candidates.

6. Devising a policy on Board diversity.

7. To formulate and recommend to the Board,
policies relating to the remuneration of:

a) Directors

b) Key Managerial Personnel

c) Other employees of the Company

8. To discharge the role envisaged under the SEBI
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021.

9. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration,
in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

10. Extend or continue the term of appointment
of the independent director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.

11. Discharge any other duties or responsibilities
as may be prescribed by the law or as may be
delegated to the Committee by the Board,
from time to time.

(ii) Composition

As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr. Radhey
Shyam Sharma, Chairman, Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia-
Member and Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma-Member.

Invitees:

Mr. Mohandeep Singh, Chief Executive Director &
Whole-time Director and Mr. Umesh Sharma, Chief
Financial Officer are the permanent invitee to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s
meetings.

(iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance

The Committee meets as often as required. During
the year, the Committee met (4) four times i.e. on
May 27, 2024; June 27, 2024; November 04, 2024;
and February 01, 2025.The quorum for the meeting
is either two members or one third of the members
of the Committee, whichever is higher with at least
one independent director.
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Attendance details of the members are given in
the table below:

Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Radhey Shyam 4 4
Sharma- Chairman

Mr. Priyavrat 4 4
Bhartia-Member

Mr. Ravinder Pal 4 4
Sharma-Member

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board
of the Directors of the Company was constituted on
November 04, 2024. It oversees various activities that
lead to improve the effectiveness of shareholder
services viz. review of adherence to the service standards
adopted for shareholder services, measures taken for
reducing the timelines for redressal of shareholder and
investor grievances, transfer/ transmission of shares,
issue of duplicate share certificates, dematerialisation/
rematerialisation of shares and related matters in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and
Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II to the
Listing Regulations. The Committee meets as often as
required.

(i) Terms of Reference:
The role of Committee is:
1. Resolving grievances of the security holders

of the Company including complaints related
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt
of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new/ duplicate certificates,
general meetings, etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise
of voting rights by the shareholders.

3. Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of various measures and initiatives
taken by the Company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual
reports/ statutory notices by the shareholders
of the Company.

5. To deal with all matters relating to issue of
duplicate share certificate, transmission of
securities etc.

6. To approve transfer of securities as per powers
delegated by the Board and to note transfer
of securities approved by the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company.

7. Discharge any other duties or responsibilities
as may be prescribed by law or as may be
delegated by the Board from time to time.

(ii) Composition

As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr. Radhey
Shyam Sharma, Chairman, Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma,
Member and Mr. Mohandeep Singh, Member.

Compliance Officer

As on date, Mr. Hariom Pandey, Company Secretary
of the Company is the Compliance Officer in terms
of Regulation 6 of Listing Regulations.

(iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance

The Committee meets as often as required. During
the year, the Committee met once, i.e., on February
14, 2025.

The quorum for the meeting is either two members
or one third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher.

Attendance details of the members are given in
the table below:

Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Radhey Shyam 1 1
Sharma, Chairman
Mr. Ravinder Pal 1 1
Sharma, Member
Mr. Mohandeep 1 1
Singh, Member

(iv) Investors’ Grievances/Complaints

The details of investor grievances received and
resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders
during the financial year 2024-25 are detailed
below:-

S. Particulars No. of
No. complaints
1. Pending at the beginning 0

of the year
2. Received during the year 5
3. Resolved during the year 5
4. Pending at the end of the year 0

The Company had 17,428 Shareholders as on March
31, 2025.
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SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Sustainability & Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee has been constituted to review and oversee
the Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
(‘CSR’) initiatives of the Company.

(i) Terms of Reference:
The role of the Committee is:
1. Sustainability

• To take all steps and decide all matters
relating to triple bottom line indicators viz.
Economic, Environmental and Social
factors.

2. Corporate Social Responsibility
• To formulate and recommend to the

Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the
Company;

• To recommend the amount of expenditure
to be incurred on the activities referred in
the CSR Policy and review the same; and

• To monitor the CSR Policy including CSR
projects/programmes.

3. Any other as may be prescribed by law or as
may be delegated to the Committee by the
Board, from time to time.

(ii) Composition
As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr.
Ravinder Pal Sharma, Chairman, Mr. Radhey Shyam
Sharma-Member and Mr. Mohandeep Singh-
Member

(iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance
During the year, the Committee met twice i.e., on
May 27, 2024 and February 14, 2025.
The quorum for the meeting is two members or
one third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher.
Attendance details of the members are given in
the table below:

Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Ravinder Pal 2 2
Sharma
Mr. Radhey Shyam 2 2
Sharma

Name of the Meetings Meetings
Committee Held During Attended
Member Tenure

Mr. Mohandeep Singh1 1 1
Mr. Jagat Sharma2 1 1

1. Mr. Mohandeep Singh, was appointed as Member
of the Committee effective from June 27, 2024.

2. Mr. Jagat Sharma ceased to be the Member of
Committee effective from June 26, 2024.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company has delegated
to the Finance Committee, the powers to borrow and
to avail financial assistance from banks, financial
institutions etc.

(i) Terms of Reference:

The role of the Committee is:

1. To borrow upto an aggregate amount of INR
1,250 Crores outstanding at any point of time
from Banks / Financial Institutions / NBFCs /
Mutual Funds / Insurance Companies / Other
Companies / Bodies corporate or any other
category of lenders out of which the term loan
shall not exceed INR 500 Crores outstanding
at any point of time.

2. To raise funds by issuing commercial paper or
any other money market instrument(s) as may
be required, from time to time, in one or more
tranches, upto an amount of INR 60 Crores to
one or more permitted investor(s), including
Scheduled Banks, Foreign Institutional
Investors, etc. in accordance with the guidelines
issued by Reserve bank of India (RBI).

3. To create mortgage and/or charge on any
movable and / or immovable properties of the
Company for securing the borrowings from
time to time including working capital facilities/
any other financial assistance from any
category of lenders upto an aggregate amount
of INR 1,250 Crores outstanding at any point
of time.

4. To give Inter Corporate Loan upto an
aggregate amount of INR 5 Crores,
outstanding at any point of time, in one or
more tranches, to any subsidiary Company
(ies).

5. To avail Structured Trade Finance facility
including Channel Finance, Domestic Factoring,
Cross-border Factoring, Reverse Factoring,
Payable Financing, Bill Discounting and / or any

Standalone
Financial Statements

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited66

other financial facility of similar nature by
whatever name called from time to time as may
be deemed necessary.

6. To give guarantee or provide security upto an
aggregate amount of INR 20 Crores
outstanding at any point of time in connection
with Structured Trade Finance facility like
Channel Finance to any other body corporate
or person from any category of lenders from
time to time.

7. To make investments, from time to time, in one
or more bodies corporate, whether in India or
outside, which may or may not be
subsidiary(ies) whether short term or long term,
in securities including Equity Shares, Preference
Shares, Debentures (whether convertible or
non-convertible), Mutual Funds or any other
financial instrument(s) whether by way of
subscription or otherwise, provided that the
aggregate of such investments outstanding at
·any point of time shall not exceed INR 50
Crores.

8. To open demat account, give such instructions
as may be necessary to operate the same
including change in authorised signatories and
to close such account as and when it is
required.

9. To allot the Securities which includes but not
limited to Equity Shares, Preference Shares,
Warrants, Debentures, etc. as and when it is
required to do so.

10. To avail e-Services from Banks/ Financial
Institutions including but not limited to TF-
Connect service, internet banking service or
any other services of like nature.

11. To open Bank Accounts, give such instructions
as may be necessary to operate the same
including change in authorised signatories and
to close such accounts as and when it is
required.

12. To deal with matters related to transaction(s)
of purchase or sale of spot and forward Foreign
Exchange against exports, imports and foreign
currency loans of the Company and other forex
transactions including Derivatives etc.

13. To do all such deeds and acts as may be
incidental and consequential thereto to give
effect to the above actions.

(ii) Composition

As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr.

Priyavrat Bhartia, Chairman, Mr. Shamit Bhartia,
Member and Mr. Mohandeep Singh, Member.

(iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance

The Committee meets as and when necessary.
During the FY 2024-25, the Committee met 3
(Three) times i.e. on June 28, 2024, November 04,
2024 and February 01, 2025.

The quorum for the meeting is either two members
or one third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of Listing Regulations, your
Company has constituted a Risk Management
Committee of the Board with effect from November
04, 2024. The Committee comprises of three (3)
members including one (1) Independent Director of the
Company. The Committee is authorised to monitor and
oversee implementation of the risk management policy,
including evaluating the adequacy of risk management
systems, if any.

(i) Terms of Reference:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management
policy which shall include:

a) A framework for identification of internal
and external risks specifically faced by the
listed entity, in particular including
financial, operational, sectoral,
sustainability (particularly, ESG related
risks), information, cyber security risks or
any other risk as may be determined by
the Committee.

b) Measures for risk mitigation including
systems and processes for internal control
of identified risks.

c) Business continuity plan.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology,
processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business
of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the
risk management policy, including evaluating
the adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management
policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics
and evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about
the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;
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(6) The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk
Management Committee.

ii) Composition

As on date, the Committee comprises of Mr.
Ravinder Pal Sharma, Chairman, Mr.
Mohandeep Singh, Member and Mr. Umesh
Sharma, Member

iii) Meetings, Quorum and Attendance

Since the Committee constituted with effect
from November 04, 2024 During the FY 2024-
25, the Committee met once i.e. on February
14, 2025. All the Members were present during
the Meeting

The quorum for a meeting of the Risk
Management Committee shall be either two
members or one third of the members of the
committee, whichever is higher, including at
least one member of the board of directors in
attendance.

D) Performance Evaluation and its Criteria

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Listing
Regulations and the Performance Evaluation Policy
of the Company, the Board has carried out annual
evaluation of its performance, its Committees,
Chairperson and Directors, through the structured
questionnaires.

Performance of the Board was evaluated by each
Director on the parameters such as its role and
responsibilities, business risks, contribution to the
development of strategy and effective risk
management, understanding of operational
programmes, availability of quality information in
a timely manner, regular evaluation of progress
towards strategic goals and operational
performance, adoption of good governance
practices and adequacy and length of meetings,
etc. Independent Directors also carried out
evaluation of the Board performance.

Board Committees were evaluated by the
respective Committee members on the parameters
such as its role and responsibilities, effectiveness
of the Committee vis-a-vis assigned role,
appropriateness of Committee composition, timely
receipt of information by the Committee,
effectiveness of communication by the Committee
with the Board, Senior Management and Key
Managerial Personnel.

Performance of the Chairperson was evaluated by

the Independent Directors after taking into account
the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
on the parameters such as demonstration of
effective leadership, contribution to the Board’s
work, relationship and communications with the
Board and shareholders, use of time and overall
efficiency of Board meetings, quality of discussions
at the Board meetings, process for settling Board
agenda, etc.

Directors were evaluated individually by the Board
of Directors (except the Director himself) on the
parameters such as his/ her preparedness at the
Board meetings, attendance at the Board meetings,
devotion of time and efforts to understand the
Company and its business, quality of contribution
at the Board meetings, application of knowledge
and experience while considering the strategy,
effectiveness of follow-up in the areas of concern,
communication with Board members, Senior
Management and Key Managerial Personnel, etc.
Independent Directors were additionally evaluated
for their performance and fulfilment of criteria of
independence and their independence from the
Management. The performance evaluation of the
Non - Independent Directors was also carried out
by the Independent Directors.

Outcome of the evaluation was submitted to the
Chairman of the Company. The Chairman briefed
the outcome of the performance evaluation to the
Board.

E) Remuneration of Directors

(i) Remuneration to Executive Directors

Mr. Jagat Sharma (DIN: 02997958) was
appointed as the Whole-time Director of the
Company for a period of 3 years from
December 12, 2023 to December 11, 2026,
after taking due consent of the shareholders
in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
February 16, 2024. Further, Mr. Sharma was
stepped down from the position of
Directorship and Whole Time Directorship
effective from June 26, 2024. During the
Financial Year under review, the total
remuneration was paid to him ` 28,83,942 as
Whole Time Director. He is continuing as an
employee of the Company.

Further, Mr. Mohandeep Singh was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time
Director on the Board of the Company effective
from June 27, 2024 for a period of 5 years from
June 27, 2024 to June 26, 2029 in place of Mr.
Jagat Sharma, after taking due consent of the
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shareholders in the Annual General Meeting
held on September 23, 2024. During the
Financial Year under review, the total
remuneration was paid to him ` 3,08,04,302.
Mr. Mohandeep Singh was granted 21,524
stock options under the erstwhile ‘JIL
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2013’ and
52,608 stock options under the erstwhile ‘JIL
Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018’.

Service Contracts, Notice Period and
Severance Fees:

Appointment of Executive Director is
contractual and is terminable on 3 months’
notice. No severance fee is payable.

(ii) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia and Mr. Shamit Bhartia,
Non-Executive Directors, have opted not to
receive any remuneration.

The details of sitting fees paid to the other
Non-Executive Directors for year ended March
31, 2025 are as follows:

Name Sitting Fees
(in INR)

Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan 7,50,000
Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma 11,10,000
Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma 11,60,000
Total 30,20,000

As on March 31, 2025, Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia and
Mr. Shamit Bhartia holds 253 and 6,561 equity
shares of the Company, respectively. Other
Non-Executive Directors do not hold any equity
share of the Company. No stock options have
been granted to any Non-Executive Director.

Other than holding shares and payment of
sitting fees as indicated above, the Non-
Executive Directors did not have any pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company,
during the year.

(iii) Criteria for making payment to Non-
Executive Directors

The Company considers the time and efforts
put in by the Non-Executive Directors in
deliberations at Board/Committee meetings.
They are remunerated by way of sitting fees
for attending the meetings and through
commission, if any, approved by the Board and
members of the Company, wherever
applicable. The criteria has been defined in the
Nomination Remuneration and Compensation
Policy of the Company. The criteria is also
displayed on Company’s website at https://
w w w . j a c p l . c o . i n / U p l o a d s / i m a g e /
11imguf_JACPL-Nomination-Remuneration-
andCompensation--Policy.pdf

F) Particulars of Senior Management

As on date, following persons are the senior management personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2025:

Name & Designation Designation Date of appointment
Mr. Umesh Sharma Chief Financial Officer May 10, 2018
Mr. Jagat Sharma Chief of Manufacturing March 03, 2021
Dr. Prashant S. Samant Head – Technology November 06, 2020
Mr. Aviral Gautama Head - Food Polymer July 03, 2017
Mr. Rahul Garg Head – Latex Business March 20, 2015
Mr. Amit Kumar Yadav CMO & VP - Sales Ops & B2B November 20, 2018
Mr. Hariom Pandey Company Secretary February 01, 2025

Following changes in the Senior Management Personnel has been made during the period under review:

Name & Designation Designation Date of Cessation
Mr. Brijesh Kumar Company Secretary November 13, 2024

https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/image/11imguf_JACPL-Nomination-Remuneration-andCompensation--Policy.pdf
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G) General Body Meetings

(i) The details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) of the Company are as follows:
Financial Year Date Time Location
2023-24 (16th AGM) September 23, 2024 02:00 P.M Physical Meeting at Plot 1-A, Sector 16-A,

Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh, India
2022-23 (15th AGM) September 20, 2023 11:00 A.M. Physical Meeting at Plot 1-A, Sector 16-A,

Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh, India
2021-22 (14th AGM) September 20, 2022 11:00 A.M. Physical Meeting at Plot 1-A, Sector 16-A,

Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh, India

(ii) Special Resolutions passed during last three AGMs:

Annual General Subject Matter of Special Resolutions Passed
Meetings

16th • Appointment of Mr. Mohandeep Singh (DIN: 10661432) as a Chief Executive
Officer & Whole Time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years.

15th • Re- appointment of Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma (DIN: 00013208) as an
Independent Director

• Revision / increase in remuneration payable to Mr. Manu Ahuja, CEO & Whole-
time Director of the Company

• Waiver of excess remuneration paid to Mr. Manu Ahuja, CEO & Whole-time
Director

14th No Special Resolution was passed at 14th AGM of the Company

(iii) Special Resolutions passed through Postal
Ballot during FY 2024-25:

No Special Resolution has been passed
through Postal Ballot during FY 2024-25.

(iv) Whether any Special resolution is proposed
to be passed through Postal Ballot: None

(v) Procedure for Postal Ballot

No postal ballot held during the Financial Year
2024-25

H) Codes and Policies

The Company has established a robust framework
of Codes and Policies that facilitates and reflects
adoption of good governance practices. The
Company has established the following salient
codes and policies:

i. Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior
Management

The Company has formulated and
implemented a Code of Conduct for all Board
members and Senior Management. Requisite
annual affirmations of compliance with the
Code have been received from the Directors

and Senior Management of the Company. A
declaration signed to this effect by Mr.
Mohandeep Singh, Chief Executive Officer &
Whole-time Director is enclosed as Annexure
B. The Code of Conduct is posted on the
Company’s website at https://www.jacpl.co.in/
Uploads/image/16imguf_CodeofConduct
forDirectorandSeniorManagement.pdf

ii. Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view
to regulate trading in securities of the
Company by the Designated Persons.

The Company has also implemented Policy and
procedure for inquiry in case of leak or
suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information, pursuant to the Insider Trading
Regulations. Dealing in the shares of the
Company by the Designated Persons is
effectively monitored for ensuring compliance
with the Code. Report on dealing in the shares
of the Company by the Designated Persons is
placed before the Board of Directors and
Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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iii. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information

The Company has adopted a Code of Practices
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information with
a view to facilitate prompt, uniform and
universal dissemination of unpublished price
sensitive information. Pursuant to the Insider
Trading Regulations the Code also includes the
Policy for Determination of Legitimate
Purposes. The Code is posted on the
Company’s website at https://www.jacpl.co.in/
U p l o a d s / i m a g e /
25imguf_CodeofPracticeandFairdisclosureofUPSI.pdf.

iv. Policy for Determining Materiality of Events
and Information

The Company has adopted a Policy for
Determining Materiality of Events and
Information for the purpose of making
disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. This policy
aims to ensure timely and adequate disclosure
of all material and price sensitive information
to the Stock Exchanges. The Policy is displayed
on the Company’s website at https://
w w w . j a c p l . c o . i n / U p l o a d s / i m a g e /
17imguf_Policy-on-materiality-of-event.pdf.

v. Policy for Preservation of Documents

The Company has a Policy for Preservation of
Documents. The Policy facilitates preservation
of documents in compliance with the laws
applicable to various functions and
departments of the Company.

vi. Archival Policy

The Company has adopted an Archival Policy
that lays down the process and manner of
archiving the disclosures made to the Stock
Exchanges under the Listing Regulations. The
Policy provides that such disclosures shall be
hosted on the website of the Company for a
period of five years from the date of disclosure
to the Stock Exchanges. The Policy also lays
down the manner of archiving these
disclosures after the period of 5 years. The
Policy has been posted on the Company’s
website www.jacpl.co.in

vii. Nomination, Remuneration and
Compensation Policy

The Company has a Policy on appointment
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel (‘KMP’) and Senior Management /
other employees (‘Employees’) of the
Company.

The Policy aims to ensure that the persons
appointed as Directors, KMP and Employees
possess requisite qualifications, experience,
expertise and attributes commensurate to their
positions and level and that the composition
of remuneration to such persons is fair and
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate the personnel to manage the
Company successfully. The Policy contains,
inter alia, provisions pertaining to qualification,
attributes and process of their appointment
and removal as well as components of
remuneration. The Policy is displayed on the
Company’s website and the web-link for the
same is: https://www.jacpl.co.in/Uploads/
i m a g e / 1 1 i m g u f _ J A C P L - N o m i n a t i o n -
Remuneration-andCompensation--Policy.pdf.

viii. Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries is
displayed on the Company’s website. The web-
link for the same is: https://www.jacpl.co.in/
uploads/prospectus/96invpdctfile_Policy-on-
determining-material-subsidiaries.pdf

ix. Policy on Materiality of Related Party
Transactions and Dealing with Related Party
Transactions is displayed on the Company’s
website at https://www.jacpl.co.in/uploads/
prospectus/236invpdctfile_JACPL_Policy-for-
Related-Party-Transactions.pdf.

x. Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a robust Whistle Blower
Policy for vigil mechanism and Ombudsman
Process to make the workplace at Jubilant
conducive to open communication regarding
business practices. It enables the Directors and
employees to voice their concerns or disclose
or report fraud, unethical behaviour, violation
of the Code of Conduct, questionable
accounting practices, grave misconduct, etc.
without fear of retaliation/ unlawful
victimization/ discrimination which is a sine qua
non for an ethical organization.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on
the Company’s website https://
www. jacp l . co . in/uploads/prospectus/
94invpdctfile_Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

The Audit Committee periodically reviews the
functioning of the Policy and Ombudsman
Process. During the year, no Director or
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employee was denied access to the Audit
Committee.

xi. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

The Company has a Policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility which outlines the Company’s
philosophy and responsibility and lays down
the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking
socially impactful activities or programmes
towards welfare and sustainable development
of the community around the area of its
operations and other parts of the Country. The
Policy strives towards welfare and sustainable
development of the different segments of the
community, specifically the deprived and
underprivileged segment. The Policy is
disclosed on the Company’s website at
www.jacpl.co.in.

xii. Policy on Board Diversity.

The Company has designed a policy which aims
to achieve diversity in the Board of Directors
of the Company. The policy is framed in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing
Agreement.

xiii. Succession Plan for Board Members and
Senior Management.

Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation
Committee reviews the succession plan in
respect of senior management and Board level
positions and recommendations, if any are
placed before the Board for its approval.

xiv. Performance Evaluation Policy.

The Board of the Company undertakes a formal
and rigorous annual evaluation of Independent
Directors, Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Chairperson of the Company for
which the Company has a well-defined
Performance Evaluation Policy which outlines
the various parameters for performance
evaluation.

xv. Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment.

The Company as an employer is committed to
creating a work place that is free from all forms
of sexual harassment. In order to deal with
sexual harassment at workplace, the Company
has implemented the policy for Prevention of
Sexual Harassment Policy (POSH).

xvi. Code of Conduct for Employees

The Company is committed to creating and
nurturing a work environment that promotes
transparent business practices in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements.
In this regard, the Company has a well defined
Code of Conduct for Employees which is
displayed on the Company’s website https://
w w w . j a c p l . c o . i n / U p l o a d s / i m a g e /
16imguf_CodeofConductforDirectorand
SeniorManagement.pdf. The same needs to be
affirmed by employees on annual basis.

I) Disclosures
(i) During the period under review, there is no

material non-listed Wholly-owned Subsidiary
of the Company.

(ii) There are no materially significant transactions
with the related parties viz. Promoters,
Directors or the Management, their relatives
or subsidiaries, etc. that may have a potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at
large. Related party transactions are given at
Note No. 39 of Notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements in the Annual Report.

(iii) The Company has complied with various rules
and regulations prescribed by the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory
authority relating to the capital markets and
no penalties or strictures have been imposed
by them on the Company during last three
years.

(iv) Listing fees for the financial year 2025-26 have
been paid to the Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed.

(v) Detailed notes on risk management are
included in the Management Discussion
Analysis section.

(vi) Commodity Price Risks/ Foreign Exchange Risk
and Hedging Activities:
Your Company is exposed to on its imports of
raw materials/ trading goods/ capital items,
export receivables and borrowings
denominated in foreign exchange.
The Company does not use any derivative
financial instruments or other hedging
techniques to cover the potential exposure as
the net foreign currency exposure is not
significant.
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As per the Company’s Policy for Determination
of Materiality of Events and Information, your
Company does not have material exposure of
any commodity and accordingly, no hedging
activities for the same are carried out.
Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in
terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated
November 15, 2018.

(vii) Details of utilisation of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32
(7A):
The Company has not raised funds through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement during the year.

(viii)During the year, no complaint was filed,
disposed and pending in relation to Sexual
Harassment of Woman at Work place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

(ix) The Company has complied with the
requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27
and Clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of
Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations.

(x) No Loans or advances in the nature of loans
were provided to firms/companies in which
Directors are interested during FY 2024-25.

J) Means of Communication
(i) The quarterly financial results are regularly

submitted to the Stock Exchanges and are
generally published in leading Business
Newspapers of the country i.e. ‘Mint’ and
regional newspapers like ‘Hindustan’ in
compliance with Listing Regulations.

(ii) The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial
results are posted on the website of the
Company at www.jacpl.co.in. The website also
displays official news release, if any.

(iii) Various sections of the Company’s website
www.jacpl.co.in keep the investors updated on
material developments of the Company by
providing key and timely information like
details of directors, financial results, annual
reports, shareholding pattern etc.

(iv) Annual Report is emailed to such members
whose email ids are registered with the
Company/RTA/ Depository participants.

(v) The Company works towards excellence in
stakeholder communication. It believes in
sharing all material information that may
directly or indirectly affect the financial and
operational performance of the Company and
consequently the share price.

K) General Shareholders’ Information

(i) Date, Time and Venue for 17th Annual
General Meeting

Day : Tuesday
Date : August 26 2025
Time : 11:00 A.M. (IST)
Venue : AGM through Video Conferencing/

Other Audio-Visual Means (VC/OAVM
facility).

(ii) Financial Year and Financial Calendar

The Company observes April 1 to March 31 of
the following year as its Financial Year. The
Financial Calendar for year 2025-26 is as
follows:

Item Tentative
Dates*

First Quarter Results August
05, 2025

Second Quarter Results November
04, 2025

Third Quarter Results February
09, 2026

Audited Annual Results May 20,
for the year 2026

*As approved by the Board of Directors.
However, these dates are subject to change.

(iii) Book Closure & Dividend Payment Dates

Item Dates
Date of Book –
Closure
Dividend No Dividend has been
Payment Date recommended by the Board

for the year ended March 31,
2025
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(iv) Listing

The names of the Stock Exchanges at which the securities of the Company are listed and the respective stock
codes are as under:

Sl. Name of the Stock Exchange Security Stock
No. Listed Code

1. BSE Limited Equity Shares 544355
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Equity Shares JUBLCPL
Mumbai-400051

(v) Disclosure of certain type of agreements
binding on Listed entities:

There are no agreements entered binding the
Company under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part
A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Hariom Pandey, Company Secretary, is the
Compliance Officer appointed by the Board. He can
be contacted for any investor related matter
relating to the Company. The contact no is 0124-
2577229 and e-mail id is investorsjacpl@jubl.com”.

(vi) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

For share related matters, members are requested
to correspond with the Company’s Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent - Alankit Assignments Limited
quoting their Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID at the
following address:

Alankit Assignments Limited,
205-208, Anarkali Complex, Jhandewalan Extension,
New Delhi-110055
Tel: +91-11-23541234, 42541234;
E-mail: rta@alankit.com, info@alankit.com

(vii)Share Transfer System

Stakeholders Relationship Committee is authorised
to approve transfers of shares. The dematerialised
shares are transferred directly to the beneficiaries
by the depositories. Trading in equity shares of the
Company is permitted only in dematerialised form.
SEBI has mandated that securities of listed
companies can be transferred only in
dematerialised form effective from April 1, 2019.
Accordingly, the Company/ its Registrar and
Transfer Agent have stopped accepting any fresh
lodgement for transfer of shares in physical form.
Members holding shares in physical form are
advised to avail of the facility of dematerialisation.

viii)Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025
(a) Value wise

Total
Category Shareholders % Shareholding %
1-500 16,749 96.10 7,29,454 4.84
501-1000 295 1.69 2,20,557 1.46
1001-2000 160 0.92 2,35,645 1.56
2001-3000 76 0.44 1,87,853 1.25
3001-4000 29 0.17 1,02,093 0.68
4001-5000 25 0.14 1,13,577 0.75
5001-10000 43 0.25 3,04,808 2.02
10001-15067101 51 0.29 1,31,73,114 87.43
Total 17,428 100.00 1,50,67,101 100.00
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(b) Category wise
Sr. Category No. of Shareholding as a percentage
No. shares of total number of shares
A Promoters & Promoter Group 1,12,66,637 74.78
B Public Shareholding
1 Financial Institutions / Banks/Insurance Companies 2,604 0.02
2 Alternative Investment funds/Mutual Funds 9,254 0.06
3 Body Corporate includes LLP 5,23,828 3.48
4 Non Resident Indians 1,06,432 0.70
5 FPI/FII 20,030 0.13
6 IEPF 61,268 0.41
7 Indian Public / Trust / Others 30,77,048 20.42

Grand Total 1,50,67,101 100.00

(ix) Unclaimed Dividends transferred by
erstwhile Jubilant Industries Limited

Jubilant Industries Limited (“Transferor
Company”/JIL”) stands amalgamated with and
into Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited (the Company/JACPL/Transferee
Company) and dissolved without being wound
up, effective from October 03, 2024, upon filing
of the order of the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (NCLT),
pronounced on August 07, 2024 with Registrar
of Companies, regarding the sanctioning of the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement

Consequently, pursuant to the Composite
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
in its Meeting held on November 04, 2024 has
allotted Equity Shares of INR 10/- each to
eligible equity shareholders of JIL as per their
entitlement on October 28, 2024 (Record Date)

Subsequently, the Company has filed E-form
IEPF 4 on 29.01.2025 for allotment and transfer
of shares to IEPF Authority pursuant to aforesaid
Composite Scheme of Arrangement. Since, the
dividend already transferred by Transferor

Company is lying with IEPF Authority and there
is no such transfer of Dividend by Transferee
Company, hence no IEPF form filed by JACPL
with respect to dividend.

Unpaid dividend pertaining to erstwhile JIL for
the financial year 2010-11 amounting to
2,30,196 and 62,381 equity shares in respect of
said unpaid dividend were transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (the
‘Fund’) on October 15, 2018 and October 24,
2018 respectively. Hence, shareholders of
erstwhile JIL are entitled to claim dividend as
well as underlying shares from the IEPF
Authority by filing the refund form with IEPF
Authority.

Members who have so far not claimed or
collected their dividends for the said period may
claim their shares along-with dividend from the
Investor Education and Protection Fund, by
following the Refund Procedure prescribed
under the IEPF Rules.

Mr. Hariom Pandey, Company Secretary is the
Nodal Officer for the purpose of verification of
claims and co-ordinations with Investors’
Education and Protection Fund Authority.
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(x) Equity Shares in Suspense Account

Details of shares lying in the Company’s Demat Suspense Escrow Account as on February 14, 2025
(Listing date) under Schedule V (F) of the Listing Regulations are given in the table below:

Sr. Name of Account Demat A/c No. Purpose of the Account No. of Sahres lying
No. as on 14.02.2025

1 Jubilant Agri and Consumer IN30365510310545
Products Limited-Suspense
Escrow Demat Account

2 Jubilant Agri and Consumer IN30011811558693
Products Limited-Unclaimed
Suspense Account

Particulars Number of Number of
Shareholders Equity Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in 2,045 65,527
the abovementioned Unclaimed Suspense Accounts lying as on
February 14, 2025 (Listing date)
Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer *16 633
of shares from the Unclaimed Suspense Account during FY 2024-25
Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from 5 188
the Unclaimed Suspense Account during FY 2024-25
Number of shares transferred to Investor Education and Protection - -
Fund during FY 2024-25
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares 2,040 65,339
lying in the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on March 31, 2025

*All the request has been received post effectiveness of the scheme i.e., October 03, 2024. However, the
requests were not processed till February 14, 2025, due to pendency of listing approval of the Company. The
pending requests were also been processed after the end of Financial Year March 31, 2025 hence, no request
is pending as on May 29, 2025.

The shares were lying in the
Account due to transfer of
physical shares held in
erstwhile Jubilant Industries
Limited and those rejected
during Corporate Action
against allotment made on
November 04, 2024,
pursuant to Composite
Scheme.
The account was earlier held
in Jubilant Industries Limited,
post-merger the name of the
account has been changed.

61,669 shares,
consisting of 61,473
shares which were in
physical mode and 196
shares which were
rejected were
allotment.

3,858

The voting rights on the shares lying in above-
mentioned accounts will remain frozen till the
rightful owners of such shares claim the shares.

(xi) Information pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of
the Listing Regulations

Mr. Shamit Bhartia who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
and information pertaining to his re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has been included in the
Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

(xii) Compliance Certificate of the Statutory
Auditors

The Company has obtained a Certificate from
the Statutory Auditors confirming compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in Schedule V(E) of the Listing
Regulations. The Certificate is attached as
Annexure C.

(xiii) (a) Dematerialization of Shares

The shares of the Company fall under the
category of confirming delivery in
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dematerialized mode by all categories of
investors. The Company has signed
agreements with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
1,50,67,101 equity shares constituting 100
% of the total issued and listed Share
Capital of the Company were in
dematerialized form as on March 31, 2025.
Under the Depository System, the
International Securities Identification
Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s
shares is INE03CC01015.

(b) Liquidity

The Equity Shares of the Company are
frequently traded on the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited as well as on
the BSE Limited.

(c) Paid-Up Capital

The Paid-up Capital as at March 31, 2025
stands at 1,50,67,101 equity shares of ̀  10
each amounting to ̀  15,06,71,010 (Rupees
Fifteen Crore Six Lakhs Seventy One
Thousand Ten only).

(xiv) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
Convertible instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on equity:

No Convertible Securities were outstanding as
on March 31, 2025.

(xv) Credit rating(s) obtained by the Company for
any debt instrument, fixed deposit
programme or any other scheme or proposal
involving mobilisation of funds in India or
abroad:

IND A/Positive/IND A1 with India Ratings &
Research Private Limited

(xvi) Location of Manufacturing Facility – The
Company manufacturing facilities situated at
Gajraula & Sahibabad in Uttar Pradesh, Kapasan
in Rajasthan and Savli in Gujarat.

(xvii) Address for Correspondence

Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Plot No. 142, Chimes, 3rd Floor, Sector 44,
Gurugram 122003, Haryana, India.
Tel: +91 124 2577229
e-mail: investorsjacpl@jubl.com
Website: www.jacpl.co.in

(xviii) Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

U52100UP2008PLC035862

(xix) Details of material subsidiaries: None

L) Compliance with the Regulations Related to
Corporate Governance in the Listing Regulations

(a) Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with mandatory
requirements relating to corporate governance
as prescribed in Listing Regulations.

(b) Extent to which Discretionary Requirements
have been adopted:

The status of adoption of non-mandatory/
discretionary requirements as specified in
Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II
of the Listing Regulations is given below:
1. The Board

Non-Executive Chairman’s Office
The Chairman is Non-Executive Promoter
Director.

2. Shareholders’ Rights
Half yearly financial performance is not
being sent to Shareholders.

3. Modified Opinion(s) in Audit Report
Audit Reports on Financial Statements of
the Company do not contain any modified
opinion.

4. Separate posts of Chairman and
Managing Director/CEO
The Company has separate posts of
Chairman and Managing Director/CEO.

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor
Internal Auditor reports to the Audit
Committee.

CEO/CFO Certification
In compliance with Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II(B)
of the Listing Regulations, a declaration by CEO & Whole
Time Director and CFO is enclosed as Annexure D which,
inter-alia, certifies to the Board about the accuracy of
financial statements and the adequacy of internal controls
for the financial reporting purpose.

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyavrat Bhartia
Place : Gurugram Chairman
Date : May 29, 2025 (DIN: 00020603)
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Annexure A

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Clause (10)(i) of Para C of Schedule V to the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
(CIN: U52100UP2008PLC035862)
Bhartiagram, Jyotiba Phule Nagar,
Gajraula, Uttar Pradesh-244223

1. The equity shares of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“the Company”) are listed on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

2. We have examined the relevant disclosures received from the Directors of the Company and registers, records, forms
and returns maintained by the Company and produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i) of Para C of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

3. We have also done examination and verification of the disclosures under Sections 184/189, 164 and 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) received from the Directors and Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
and their Shareholding under Section 170 of the Act and Director Identification Number (DIN) status of the Directors
at MCA portal i.e. www.mca.gov.in. In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and on the basis of information
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we certify that none of the below named Directors of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority as on March 31, 2025:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment
1. Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia 00020603 09/05/2011
2. Mr. Shamit Bhartia 00020623 18/01/2012
3. Mr. Mohandeep Singh 10661432 27/06/2024
4. Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma 00013208 25/10/2018
5. Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma 03411214 03/09/2020
6. Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan 00431379 10/02/2024

4. Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

5. This certificate is based on the information and records available as on March 31, 2025 and we have no responsibility
to update this certificate for the events and circumstances occurring thereafter.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No.: P2001DE052900
Peer Review Certificate No.: 6311/2024

Kapil Dev Taneja
Partner

New Delhi CP No.:22944 /Mem. No. F4019
May 08, 2025 UDIN.: F004019G000297477
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Annexure B

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN
This is to confirm that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

For Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Place: Gurugram Mohandeep Singh
Date: May 29, 2025 Chief Executive Officer & Whole-time Director

DIN : 10661432
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Annexure-C

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited

We have been requested by Jubilant Agri and Consumer
Products Limited (“the Company”), having its registered
office at Bhartiagram Gajraula, District Amroha, Jyotiba Phule
Nagar, 244223, Uttar Pradesh to certify the compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for
the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing
Regulations’) and to issue a certificate thereon.

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is
the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance
with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated
in Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant
records and documents maintained by the Company for
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by
the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records
of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute
of the Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose
of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements
of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related
Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and
according to the information and explanations provided to
us and the representations provided by the Management,
we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance to
the future viability of the Company nor as to the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on Use

The certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying
with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be suitable for
any other purpose.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner

Date : May 29, 2025 Membership No.: 098308
Place : New Delhi UDIN: 25098308BMKWHC9141
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Annexure D

CERTIFICATE OF CEO/CFO

This is to certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash
flow statement for the year 2024-25 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair
view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws
and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal

control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take
to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit
committee:

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial
reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes in accounting policies during
the year and that the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

For Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Mohandeep Singh Umesh Sharma
Place : Gurugram Chief Executive Officer & Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer
Date : May 29, 2025 DIN : 10661432
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To the Members of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS
financial statements of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “standalone financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Valuation of trade receivables
Trade receivables comprise a significant portion
of the liquid assets of the Company.
Accordingly, the estimation of the allowance for
trade receivables is a significant judgement area
and is therefore considered a key audit matter.

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls
and substantive procedures which included the following:·
• Evaluate and test the controls for managing segment-wise trade

receivables and subsequent recovery.
• Validated the assumptions underlying the Expected Credit Loss

policy as per Ind AS 109.
• Assess the recoverability and provisions of long outstanding/

disputed receivables where considered doubtful for recovery.
• Obtain independent confirmations and perform alternate audit

procedures in case of non-responses.
• Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related

disclosure.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report 2024-25, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity, and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the
Management and the Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Existence Valuation of inventory
Inventory comprises a significant portion of the
liquid assets of the Company. Various procedures
are involved in validating inventory quantities
across locations.

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls
and substantive procedures which included the following:
• Identify and assess segment-wise slow-moving material for

valuation and the process of providing provision to capture
obsolescence.

• Overall inventory reconciliation including opening stock,
purchases, consumption and closing stock.

• Review the policy of physical verification of inventory and its
operational implementation.

• Obtain net realisable value for all products and evaluate
reasonableness of carrying value of inventories.

• Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related
disclosure.

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited84

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,

2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in “Annexure 1”, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information

and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash
Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act;
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate
report in “Annexure 2”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of

pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements – Refer
Note 40 on Contingent Liabilities;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses
does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief,

no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has
been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain
any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and until the date of
this report.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test
checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail
(editlog) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per statutory
requirements for record retention.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 25098308BMKWHF3954

Date: May 29, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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To the best of our information and according to the
information, explanations, and written representations
provided to us by the Company and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of
audit we report that:
(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper

records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment and
relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and right
of use assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties
held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements are
held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or Intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods in transit. In
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is
appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more

in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed on physical verification which have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in
excess of ` 5 crore sanctioned by banks based
on the security of current assets during the year.
The quarterly statements, in respect of the
working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks and such statements
are in agreement with the books of account of
the Company for the respective periods.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) to(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act
in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
security, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or there
is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act only in respect of specified products of the
Company. For such specified products, we have
broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under the aforesaid section, and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor’s Report
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025]
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(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed

amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute except for the following:

Name of the Nature Gross Amount Period to Forum where Remarks,
statute of dues Amount paid under which the dispute is pending if any

(in `̀̀̀̀ Protest amount
Millions) (in `̀̀̀̀ relates

Millions)

Goods & Service GST 0.18 0.18 2023-24 A.C.- Surajpur, Gr. Noida -
Tax Act, 2017 Additional Commissioner-

Grade-II, Appeal-II, Noida
Goods & Service GST 0.08 - 2023-24 Sales Tax Officer Class II / -
Tax Act, 2017 AVATO, Ward 74,

Zone 7, Delhi
Goods & Service GST 0.06 - 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner -
Tax Act, 2017 of State Tax,

Special Circle, Ranchi
Goods & Service GST 0.10 0.10 2023-24 Joint Commissioner- -
Tax Act, 2017 Appeal, Dehradun
Goods & Service GST 0.02 - 2019-20 Deputy Commissioner, -
Tax Act, 2017 Abids STU-1, Abids,

Hyderabad, Telangana
Goods & Service GST 0.02 - 2019-20 Office of the Joint -
Tax Act, 2017 Commissioner of State Tax,

Special Circle, Ranchi
Goods & Service GST 0.03 - 2024-25 A.C.- Mobile Squad - 4, -
Tax Act, 2017 Sector-3, G.B.Nagar.

Additional Commissioner-
Grade-II, Appeal-II, Noida

Goods & Service GST 1.05 - 2017-22 Additional Commissioner, -
Tax Act, 2017 Appellate Authority,

Vadodara

(viii) According to the information and explanations given
to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which
have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations

given to us including confirmations received
from banks and representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the
basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes
for which these were obtained.
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(d) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have not been
utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to
the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has
been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there
are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,

where applicable. Further, the details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements, as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133
of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as required under
section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the
Internal Auditors of the Company till date for
the period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the
current as well as the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
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and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring
a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII of
the Companies Act, 2013 in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in
respect of audit of standalone financial statements of
the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been
included in respect of said clause under this report.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 25098308BMKWHF3954

Date: May 29, 2025
Place: New Delhi

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited90

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of standalone financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report
[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 25098308BMKWHF3954

Date: May 29, 2025
Place: New Delhi

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports
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Financial Statements
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(` in million)
Notes As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,799.50 1,707.12
Capital work-in-progress 4 194.70 46.14
Other intangible assets 5 4.49 7.61
Intangible assets under development 6 15.40 -
Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 10.75 10.75
(ii) Loans 8 0.70 0.86
(iii) Other financial assets 9 15.38 13.86
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 - 24.98
Other non-current assets 11 24.95 26.18
Total non-current assets 2,065.87 1,837.50
Current assets
Inventories 12 1,791.13 2,247.10
Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 0.66 0.84
(ii) Trade receivables 13 2,928.50 2,516.46
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 (a) 53.19 125.98
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14 (b) 0.55 1.71
(v) Loans 8 1.13 0.59
(vi) Other financial assets 9 4.53 6.47
Current tax assets (net) 17.91 52.27
Other current assets 11 419.80 592.36
Total current assets 5,217.40 5,543.78
Assets classified as held for sale 3 0.43 0.43
Total Assets 7,283.70 7,381.71

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
Notes As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 150.67 150.67
Other equity 15 (a) 3,068.37 2,162.46
Total equity 3,219.04 2,313.13
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 (a) 28.33 119.76
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 (b) 187.47 171.32
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17 96.17 79.18
Provisions 18 130.29 119.64
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 10 19.85 -
Total non-current liabilities 462.11 489.90
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 (c) 527.91 1,314.85
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 (d) 27.28 14.27
(ii) Trade payables:

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19 218.42 177.45
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 19 1,399.99 1,700.11
enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,048.41 887.91
Other current liabilities 20 252.77 409.69
Provisions 18 115.89 74.40
Current tax liabilities (net) 11.88 -
Total current liabilities 3,602.55 4,578.68
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,283.70 7,381.71
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1 & 2
Notes to the financial statements 3 to 50
The accompanying notes “1” to “50” form an integral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432

Balance Sheet (Contd...)
as at 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Continuing operations
INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 15,405.57 12,260.71
Other income 22 17.26 14.08
Total income 15,422.83 12,274.79
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 7,856.40 6,862.24
Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 647.86 267.11
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 25 133.11 (156.00)
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 26 1,653.07 1,290.69
Finance costs 27 134.60 196.22
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 161.02 150.47
Other expenses 29 3,660.74 2,960.95
Total expenses 14,246.80 11,571.68
Profit before exceptional items and tax from continuing 1,176.03 703.11
operations
Exceptional items 44 - 334.82
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,176.03 368.29
Tax Expenses: 30
- Current Tax 243.24 -
- Deferred tax charge 45.60 94.35
Net profit for the year from continuing operations 887.19 273.94
Discontinued operations 32
Loss for the year from discontinued operations before tax (5.47) (9.59)
Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
Net Loss for the year from discontinued operations (5.47) (9.59)
Net profit for the year from continuing operations and 881.72 264.35
discontinued operations

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of investments which are classified at (0.18) 0.37
fair value through OCI
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (3.08) (4.66)
Income tax credit relating to items that will not be 30 (0.81) (1.09)
reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements (0.28) (0.19)
of foreign operations
Cash hedge reserve 0.15 0.11
Income tax charge relating to items that will be reclassified 30 0.04 0.03
to profit or loss
Other comprehensive loss for the year (2.62) (3.31)
Total comprehensive income for the year 879.10 261.04
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each (Previous Year: 49
Per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each)
From continuing operations
Basic ` 58.88 18.18
Diluted ` 57.81 17.97
From discontinued operations
Basic ` (0.36) (0.64)
Diluted ` (0.36) (0.64)
From continuing operations and discontinued operations
Basic ` 58.52 17.54
Diluted ` 57.45 17.33
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1 & 2
Notes to the financial statements 3 to 50
The accompanying notes “1” to “50” form an integral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432

Statement of Profit and Loss (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited96

A.
Eq

ui
ty

 sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l
(`

 in
 m

ill
io

n)
Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t 0

1 
Ap

ril
 2

02
3 

(B
ef

or
e 

Sc
he

m
e)

56
.0

9
Sh

ar
es

 to
 b

e 
ca

nc
el

le
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

om
po

sit
e 

Sc
he

m
e 

of
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
t (

Re
fe

r n
ot

e 
31

)
56

.0
9

Sh
ar

es
 to

 b
e 

iss
ue

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 C
om

po
sit

e 
Sc

he
m

e 
of

 A
rr

an
ge

m
en

t (
Re

fe
r n

ot
e 

31
)

15
0.

67
Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

4
15

0.
67

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 0
1 

Ap
ril

 2
02

4 
(B

ef
or

e 
Sc

he
m

e)
56

.0
9

Sh
ar

es
 c

an
ce

lle
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 C

om
po

sit
e 

Sc
he

m
e 

of
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
t (

Re
fe

r n
ot

e 
31

)
56

.0
9

Sh
ar

es
 is

su
ed

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Co
m

po
sit

e 
Sc

he
m

e 
of

 A
rr

an
ge

m
en

t (
Re

fe
r n

ot
e 

31
)

15
0.

67
Ba

la
nc

e 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

5
15

0.
67

B.
O

th
er

 E
qu

ity
(`

 in
 m

ill
io

n)
Ite

m
s o

f o
th

er
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 In
co

m
e

Se
cu

rit
ie

s
Ge

ne
ra

l
Sh

ar
e 

ba
se

d
Re

ta
in

ed
Eq

ui
ty

Re
-m

ea
su

re
m

en
t

Ca
sh

 h
ed

ge
Fo

re
ig

n
To

ta
l

pr
em

iu
m

re
se

rv
e

ex
pe

ns
e

ea
rn

in
gs

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

of
 d

ef
in

ed
re

se
rv

e
cu

rr
en

cy
re

se
rv

e*
th

ro
ug

h 
O

CI
be

ne
fit

 p
la

ns
tr

an
sl

at
io

n
re

se
rv

e
As

 a
t 0

1 
Ap

ril
 2

02
3

1,
22

5.
42

20
0.

31
22

.7
2

42
7.

10
0.

30
(4

.5
1)

(0
.1

9)
(0

.4
4)

1,
87

0.
71

Pr
of

it 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
-

-
-

26
4.

35
-

-
-

-
26

4.
35

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e

-
-

-
-

0.
29

(3
.4

9)
0.

08
(0

.1
9)

(3
.3

1)
in

co
m

e/
(lo

ss
)

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
-

-
-

26
4.

35
0.

29
(3

.4
9)

0.
08

(0
.1

9)
26

1.
04

in
co

m
e/

(lo
ss

) f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

Em
pl

oy
ee

 s
ha

re
 b

as
ed

 e
xp

en
se

-
-

30
.7

1
-

-
-

-
-

30
.7

1
As

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

4
1,

22
5.

42
20

0.
31

53
.4

3
69

1.
45

0.
59

(8
.0

0)
(0

.1
1)

(0
.6

3)
2,

16
2.

46
Pr

of
it 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r

-
-

-
88

1.
72

-
-

-
-

88
1.

72
O

th
er

 c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e
-

-
-

-
(0

.1
4)

(2
.3

1)
0.

11
(0

.2
8)

(2
.6

2)
in

co
m

e/
(lo

ss
)

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
-

-
-

88
1.

72
(0

.1
4)

(2
.3

1)
0.

11
(0

.2
8)

87
9.

10
in

co
m

e/
(lo

ss
) f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
Em

pl
oy

ee
 s

ha
re

 b
as

ed
 e

xp
en

se
-

-
26

.8
1

-
-

-
-

-
26

.8
1

As
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
5

1,
22

5.
42

20
0.

31
80

.2
4

1,
57

3.
17

0.
45

(1
0.

31
)

-
(0

.9
1)

3,
06

8.
37

* 
Re

fe
r n

ot
e 

46
.

St
at

em
en

t o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 E
qu

ity
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

5



Annual Report 2024-25 97

St
at

em
en

t o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 E
qu

ity
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

5

N
ot

es
:

•
Se

cu
rit

ie
s p

re
m

iu
m

Th
e 

un
ut

ili
ze

d 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 is
su

e 
pr

ic
e 

ov
er

 fa
ce

 v
al

ue
 o

n 
iss

ue
 o

f s
ha

re
s. 

Th
is 

is 
ut

ili
ze

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
.

•
Sh

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
re

se
rv

e
Th

e 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
eq

ui
ty

 s
et

tle
d 

sh
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

pa
ym

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
is 

re
co

gn
ise

d 
in

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f P
ro

fit
 a

nd
 L

os
s 

w
ith

 c
or

re
sp

on
di

ng
 c

re
di

t t
o

Sh
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

pa
ym

en
t 

re
se

rv
e.

 B
al

an
ce

 o
f a

 s
ha

re
 b

as
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t 
re

se
rv

e 
is 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 t

o 
ge

ne
ra

l r
es

er
ve

/s
ec

ur
iti

es
 p

re
m

iu
m

 u
po

n 
ex

pi
ry

 o
f g

ra
nt

s 
or

 u
po

n
ex

er
ci

se
 o

f s
to

ck
 o

pt
io

ns
 b

y 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
.

•
Eq

ui
ty

 in
st

ru
m

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 O

CI
Th

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
 h

as
 e

le
ct

ed
 to

 re
co

gn
ize

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

of
 c

er
ta

in
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

eq
ui

ty
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

ot
he

r c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
in

co
m

e.
 T

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
eq

ui
ty

 in
st

ru
m

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 O

CI
 w

ith
in

 e
qu

ity
. T

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 tr

an
sf

er
s a

m
ou

nt
 th

er
ef

ro
m

 to
 re

ta
in

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s w

he
n 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 se
cu

rit
ie

s
ar

e 
de

re
co

gn
ize

d.
•

Re
-m

ea
su

re
m

en
t o

f d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pl
an

s
Re

-m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 o

bl
ig

at
io

n 
co

m
pr

ise
s a

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 re

tu
rn

 o
n 

pl
an

 a
ss

et
s.

•
Ca

sh
 h

ed
ge

 re
se

rv
e

Th
e 

Co
m

pa
ny

 u
se

s h
ed

gi
ng

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 a
s p

ar
t o

f i
ts

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f r
el

at
ed

 fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 ri
sk

. F
or

 h
ed

gi
ng

 re
la

te
d 

fo
re

ig
n 

cu
rr

en
cy

 ri
sk

, t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 u
se

s
fo

re
ig

n 
cu

rr
en

cy
 fo

rw
ar

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
s r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 h

ed
ge

s. 
To

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

es
e 

he
dg

es
 a

re
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e,

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e

he
dg

in
g 

in
st

ru
m

en
t i

s r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

in
 th

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 h

ed
gi

ng
 re

se
rv

e.
 A

m
ou

nt
s r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
in

 th
e 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

 h
ed

gi
ng

 re
se

rv
e 

is 
re

cl
as

sif
ie

d 
to

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f P
ro

fit
 a

nd
Lo

ss
 w

he
n 

th
e 

he
dg

ed
 it

em
 a

ffe
ct

s 
pr

of
it 

or
 lo

ss
.

•
Fo

re
ig

n 
cu

rr
en

cy
 tr

an
sl

at
io

n 
re

se
rv

e
Ex

ch
an

ge
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s a
ris

in
g 

on
 tr

an
sla

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fo

re
ig

n 
br

an
ch

 a
re

 re
co

gn
ize

d 
in

 o
th

er
 co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

in
co

m
e 

as
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
y a

nd
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
in

 a
 se

pa
ra

te
 re

se
rv

e 
w

ith
in

 e
qu

ity
. T

he
 cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
am

ou
nt

 is
 re

cl
as

sif
ie

d 
to

 p
ro

fit
 o

r l
os

s w
he

n 
th

e 
Co

m
pa

ny
 d

isp
os

e 
of

f i
ts

 in
te

re
st

 in
 fo

re
ig

n 
br

an
ch

 th
ro

ug
h 

sa
le

or
 c

lo
se

 th
e 

br
an

ch
.

Th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s “

1”
 to

 “
50

” 
fo

rm
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

se
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

In
 te

rm
s 

of
 o

ur
 re

po
rt 

of
 e

ve
n 

da
te

.
Fo

r B
GJ

C 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s L

LP
Fo

r a
nd

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 B
oa

rd
 o

f J
ub

ila
nt

 A
gr

i a
nd

 C
on

su
m

er
 P

ro
du

ct
s L

im
ite

d
Ch

ar
te

re
d 

Ac
co

un
ta

nt
s

Fi
rm

’s 
Re

g.
 N

o.
: 0

03
30

4N
/N

50
00

56

Pr
an

av
 Ja

in
H

ar
io

m
 P

an
de

y
Um

es
h 

Sh
ar

m
a

Pr
iy

av
ra

t B
ha

rt
ia

Pa
rtn

er
Co

m
pa

ny
 S

ec
re

ta
ry

Ch
ie

f F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r
D

ire
ct

or
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
N

o.
 0

98
30

8
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
N

o.
 F

93
49

DI
N

: 0
00

20
60

3

M
oh

an
de

ep
 S

in
gh

Pl
ac

e 
: N

ew
 D

el
hi

Pl
ac

e 
: G

ur
ug

ra
m

CE
O

 &
 W

ho
le

-t
im

e 
Di

re
ct

or
Da

te
 : 

29
 M

ay
, 2

02
5

Da
te

 : 
29

 M
ay

, 2
02

5
DI

N
: 1

06
61

43
2

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited98

(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit/(loss) before tax
Continuing operations 1,176.03 368.29
Discontinued operations (5.47) (9.59)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 161.02 150.48
Loss on sale/disposal/discard of property, plant and equipment (net) - 1.77
Finance costs 134.60 196.22
Employee share-based payment expense 26.81 30.71
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange (net) (0.38) (1.13)
Loss/(Gain) on termination of lease 0.04 (0.60)
Property, plant and equipment written off 2.57 20.66
Interest Income (3.09) (1.48)

321.57 396.63
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,492.13 755.33
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables, loans, other financial assets and other (244.77) (38.17)
assets
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 455.97 (540.13)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities, (193.42) 632.69
other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from operations 1,509.91 809.72
Direct taxes (paid)/refund (net) (195.46) (49.26)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,314.45 760.46

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible (353.50) (199.19)
assets (including capital work-in-progress and intangible assets
under development)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1.64 11.07
Interest received 1.15 1.28
Movement in other bank balances 1.16 -
Net cash used in investing activities (349.55) (186.84)

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
C. Cash flow arising from financing activities:

Proceeds from long term borrowings (Refer note 37) - 170.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (Refer note 37) (160.94) (295.66)
Payment of lease obligation (Refer note 43) (38.39) (43.39)
(Repayment) of / Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) (717.43) (137.24)
(Refer note 37)
Finance costs paid (120.65) (163.05)
Net cash outflow in course of financing activities (1,037.41) (469.34)

D. Effect of exchange rate changes
Exchange difference in translating the financial statements (0.28) (0.19)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (72.79) 104.09
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 125.98 21.89
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 53.19 125.98

(` in million)
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- on current accounts 53.19 125.96
Cash on hand - 0.02

53.19 125.98

Notes:
i) Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash

Flows”.
ii) Acquisition/Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ other intangible assets includes movement of capital work-

in-progress/ intangible assets under development and capital advances/payables during the year.

In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432

Statement of Cash Flows (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited100

1. Corporate Information
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (the
Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the
business of manufacturing and sale of agri, industrial
polymers and consumer products. The Company caters
to both domestic and international market. The
registered office of the Company is situated at
Bhartiagram, Gajraula District Amroha-244 223.
These financial statements were authorised for issuance
by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on May 29, 2025.

2. Material accounting policies
This note provides material accounting policies adopted
and applied in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions
of the Act. The financial statements of the
Company are presented in Indian Rupee and
all values are rounded to the nearest million,
except per share data and unless stated
otherwise.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost convention on accrual basis
except for the following material items those
have been measured at fair value as required
by relevant Ind AS:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (refer accounting
policy regarding financial instruments);

- Defined benefit plans and other long-term
employee benefits;

- Share-based expense transactions;
- Investment in equity instruments.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the
Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:
• It is expected to be realised or intended to be

sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is expected to be realised within twelve

months after the reporting period; or
• It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted

from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-
current.
A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating

cycle;
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period; or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the

settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for the purpose of current-non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

(c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and
intangible assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items
of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost, which includes capitalized finance costs,
less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. The cost of an item of
a PPE comprises its purchase price including
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import duty, and other non-refundable taxes
or levies and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition of
its intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.
Expenditure incurred on start-up and
commissioning of the project and/ or
substantial expansion, including the
expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial
run receipts, if any) up to the date of
commencement of commercial production are
capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as the appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
Advances paid towards acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each
Balance Sheet date, are shown under other
non-current assets and cost of assets not ready
for intended use before the year end, are
shown as capital work-in-progress.

(ii) Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired (including
implementation of software system) and in
process research and development are
measured initially at cost.
After initial recognition, an intangible asset is
carried at its cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
only when it increases the future economic
benefits from the specific asset to which it
related.
Expenditure on intangible assets eligible for
capitalisation are carried as Intangible assets
under development where such assets are not
yet ready for their intended use.

(iii) Depreciation and amortisation methods,
estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is provided on straight line basis
on the original cost/ acquisition cost of assets
or other amounts substituted for cost of fixed
assets as per the useful life specified in Part ‘C’
of Schedule II of the Act, read with notification
dated 29 August, 2014 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, except for the following
classes of fixed assets which are depreciated
based on the internal technical assessment of
the management as under:

Category of assets Management estimate Useful life as per
of useful life Schedule II

Motor Vehicles under finance lease Tenure of lease or 5 years 8 years
whichever is shorter

Employee perquisite related assets 5 years, being the period 10 years
(included in office equipment) of perquisite scheme
Computers covered under perquisite 5 years, being the period 3 years
scheme of perquisite scheme

Depreciation on assets added/ disposed off
during the year has been provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date/month of
addition/ disposal.
Leasehold lands, which qualify as finance lease
is amortised over the lease period on straight
line basis.

Software systems are being amortised over a
period of five years or its useful life whichever
is shorter.
Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted, if
appropriate.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(iv) De-recognition
A property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal. Losses
arising from retirement and gains or losses
arising from disposal of a tangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

(d) Discontinued operations and non-current assets
held for sale
Discontinued operation is a component of the
Company that has been disposed of or classified
as held for sale and represents a major line of
business.
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.
Such assets are generally measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale
and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are no longer
depreciated or amortised.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The
Company’s non-financial assets other than
inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs) represents the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows

that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of
its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised
in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Company reviews at reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

(f) Financial instrument
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date the
Company commits to purchase or sale the asset.
However, trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)
• Debts instruments, derivatives and equity

instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL)

• Equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised
cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model

whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking in to account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI in
both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved

both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent
SPPI.

Debt instruments included with in the FVOCI
category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements
are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL
FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments.
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL.
In addition, the Company may elect to designate a
debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised
cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments
For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
equity instruments are classified in two categories:
- Equity instruments at fair value through profit

or loss (FVPL)
- Equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value. The Company may make
an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument by instrument basis. The classification
is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Company decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVOCI then all fair value changes
on the instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of
the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit
and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Impairment of Financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowance using the
expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or
loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no
significant financing component is measured at an
amount to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable,
ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal), that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to
the amount that is required to be recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired, or
• The Company has transferred its rights to

receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement and
either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
do what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statements of Profit and Loss.

Compound financial instruments
The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity
component. The equity component is recognised
initially as the difference between the fair value of
the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and the equity components, if material, in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities
Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge
accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted
for at FVPL. They are presented as current assets
or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re- measured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged.
The Company designates their derivatives as
hedges of commodity price risk and related foreign
exchange risk associated with the cash flows of
assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges). The Company
documents at the inception of the hedging
transaction the economic relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items including
whether the hedging instrument is expected to
offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The
Company documents its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge
relationship. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a
current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge
accounting
The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognized in cash flow hedging
reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses).
When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Company designate the full

change in fair value of the forward contract as the
hedging instrument. The gains and losses relating
to the effective portion of the change in fair value
of the entire forward contract are recognized in
the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.
Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to
profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast
purchase that is hedged takes place).
When the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset (for
example inventory), the amounts accumulated in
equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:
With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of the forward contracts, the deferred
hedging gains and losses are included within the
initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognized in profit or loss as the hedged
item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost
of sales).
When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging
in equity at that time remains in equity until the
forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of
hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss within
other gains/(losses).
If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is
no longer optimal but the risk management
objective remains unchanged and the hedge
continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the
hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting
either the volume of the hedging instrument or the
volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio
aligns with the ratio used for risk management
purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated
and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of
the hedge relationship rebalancing.

Derivatives that are not designated as hedges
The Company enters certain derivative contracts
to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Such contracts are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss and are included in statement
of profit and loss.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited106

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an
asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not
separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are
separated only if the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks
of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related
to the host contracts are not separated.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set
and the net amount presented in Balance Sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and is intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value except scrap, which is valued at net
estimated realizable value.

The methods of determining cost of various categories of inventories are as follows:
Raw materials Weighted average method
Work-in-progress and finished Variable cost at weighted average including an appropriate share of
goods (manufactured) variable and fixed production overheads. Fixed production overheads

are included based on normal capacity of production facilities
Finished goods (traded) Cost of purchases
Stores & spares Weighted average method
Fuel and Packing materials etc Weighted average method
Goods-in-transit Cost of purchases

Cost includes all direct costs, cost of conversion
and appropriate portion of variable and fixed
production overheads and such other costs
incurred as to bring the inventory to its present
location and condition inclusive of any tax wherever
applicable.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion/ reprocessing and
the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
The net realizable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling price of
related finished products. Raw materials and other
supplies held for use in the production of finished
goods are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it’s
estimated that the cost of finished goods will
exceed their net realizable value.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(i) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that effects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as a finance cost.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected
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to be recovered from a third party, the receivable
is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

(j) Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of
possible obligations that may arise from past events
but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continuously and if it is virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
assets and related income are recognized in the
period in which the change occurs.
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual
expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows: (i)
estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for;
(ii) uncalled liability on shares and other
investments partly paid; (iii) funding related
commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint
venture companies; and (iv) other non-cancellable
commitments, if any, to the extent they are
considered material and relevant in the opinion of
management. Other commitments related to sales/
procurements made in the normal course of
business are not disclosed to avoid excessive
details.

(k) Revenue recognition
The company’s revenue is derived from single
performance obligation under arrangements in
which the transfer of control of product and the
fulfilment of company’s performance obligation
occur at the same time.
Revenue from sale of products is recognised when
the property in the goods or all significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the products have
been transferred to the buyer, and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the
consideration that will be derived from the sale of
products as well as regarding its collection.
Revenue includes only those sales for which the
Company has acted as a principal in the transaction,
takes title to the products, and has the risks and

rewards of ownership, including the risk of loss for
collection, delivery and returns. Any sales for which
Company has acted as an agent without assuming
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
reported on a net basis.
Goods sold on consignment are recorded as
inventory until goods are sold by the consignee to
the end customer.
Subsidy in respect of fertilizer being disbursed by
the Central Government of India is included in
turnover and the same is recognized based upon
the latest notified rates and only to the extent that
the realization is reasonably assured.
Sale of utility is recognized on delivery of the same
to the purchaser and when no significant
uncertainty exists as to its realization.
Export incentives entitlements are recognized as
income when the right to receive credit as per the
terms of the scheme is established in respect of
exports made, and where no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant
export proceeds exists.
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to
that performance obligation. Revenue is recognized
to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.
Taxes (GST) collected on behalf of the government
are excluded from Revenue. The transaction price
of goods sold and services rendered is net of
variable consideration on account returns,
discounts, customer claims and rebates, etc.

Other income recognition:
Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive the income is established. Income from
interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing
securities is recognized on time proportionate
basis. Other non- operating revenue is recognised
in accordance with terms of underlying asset.

(l) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits:  All employee

benefits falling due within twelve months of
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are classified as
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short-term employee benefits, which include
benefits like salaries, wages, short term
compensated absences, performance
incentives, etc. And are recognised as expenses
in the period in which the employee renders
the related service and measured accordingly.

(ii) Post-employment benefits: Post
employment benefit plans are classified into
defined benefits plans and defined
contribution plans as under:
a) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards
gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment. The liability in
respect of gratuity is recognized in the
books of accounts based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary. The
gratuity liability for certain employees of
the one of the units of the Company is
funded with Life Insurance Corporation of
India.

b) Superannuation
Certain employees of the Company are
also participants in the superannuation
plan (‘the Plan’), a defined contribution
plan. Contribution made by the Company
to the Plan during the year is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Provident Fund
The Company’s contribution to the
provident fund is deposited with Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner for its
employees in India. The Company’s
contribution to the provident fund is
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
This is treated as defined contribution plan.

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences
As per the Company’s policy, eligible leaves
can be accumulated by the employees and

carried forward to future periods to either be
utilised during the service, or encashed.
Encashment can be made during service, on
early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at
resignation and upon death of employee.
Accumulated compensated absences are
treated as other long-term employee benefits.
The Company’s liability in respect of other
long-term employee benefits is recognized in
the books of accounts based on actuarial
valuation using projected unit credit method
as at Balance Sheet date by and independent
actuary. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
in which they arise.

(iv) Termination benefits:
Termination benefits are recognized as an
expense when, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation.

(v) Actuarial Valuation
The liability in respect of all defined benefit
plans is accrued in the books of accounts on
the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
an independent actuary using the Project Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each year of
service as giving rise to additional unit of
employees benefit entitlement and measure
each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the
present value of estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the
present value of obligation under defined
benefit plans, is based on the market yields on
Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity periods approximating
to the terms of related obligation.
Re-measurement gains and losses in respect
of all defined benefit plans arising from
experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the Statement of Changes
in the Equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes
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in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost. Gains or
losses on the curtailment or settlement of any
defined benefit plan are recognized when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Any
differential between the plan assets (for a
funded defined benefit plan) and the defined
benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation is
recognised as a liability if it is a deficit or as an
asset if it is a surplus (to the extent of the lower
of present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reduction in future contribution to the plan).
Past service cost is recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. To the extent that
the benefits are already vested immediately
following the introduction of, or changes to, a
defined benefit plan, the past service cost is
recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either
positive (where benefits are introduced or
improved) or negative (where existing benefits
are reduced).

(m) Share based expense
The grant date fair value of options granted (net
of estimated forfeiture) to employees of the
Company is recognized as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The expense is recorded
for separately each vesting portion of the award as
if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The
increase in equity recognized in connection with
share based payment transaction is presented as a
separate component in equity under “share based
expense reserve”. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
stock options that vest. For the option awards, grant
date fair value is determined under the option-
pricing model (Black-Scholes-Model). Forfeitures
are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

(n) Finance costs
Finance costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Finance cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the finance costs. Finance costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or
production or development of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
Qualifying assets are assets that are necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. All other finance costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the finance costs eligible for capitalization.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings are
amortised over the period of such borrowings.

(o) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity
or in OCI.
• Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received after considering
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date in
the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
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realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis simultaneously.

• Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial

recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting not taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to freehold
land and investment in subsidiaries to the
extent that the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences arising on
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if there is legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis simultaneously.

Deferred income tax is not provided on the
undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries
where it is expected that the earnings of the
subsidiary will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

(p) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
The Company determines the lease term as the
non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Right-of-use assets
The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease Liability
At the commencement date of the lease, the
Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 111

period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(q) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The CEO and
Whole-time Director of the Company is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments and accordingly
identified as the chief operating decision maker.
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are
common to the enterprise as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have
been treated as “un-allocable revenue/ expenses/
assets/ liabilities”, as the case may be.

(r) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is the
Indian rupee. These financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange

rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at Balance
Sheet date exchange rate are generally
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Foreign operations
The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated in to the
presentation currency as follows:
o Share capital and opening reserves and

surplus are carried at historical cost.
o All assets and liabilities, both monetary and

non-monetary, (excluding share capital,
opening reserve and surplus) are
translated using closing rates at Balance
Sheet date.

o Profit and Loss items are translated at the
respective year to dates average rates or
the exchange rate that approximates the
actual exchange rate on the date of
specific transaction.

o Contingent liabilities are translated at the
closing rates at Balance Sheet date.

o All resulting exchange differences are
recognised on Other Comprehensive
Income.

When a foreign operation is sold, the
associated cumulative exchange differences
are classified to profit or loss, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.
The items of Cash Flow Statement are
translated at the respective average rates or
the exchange rate that approximates the actual
exchange rate on date of specific transaction.
The impact of changes in exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalent held in foreign
currency is included in effect of exchange rate
changes.

(s) Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
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that the grant will be received and the Company
will comply all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income.
Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets and presented within other income.

(t) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share, is calculated by
dividing:
o the profit attributable to owners of the

Company
o by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share, adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:
o The after income tax effect of interest and

other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

o The weighted average number of
additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

(u) Measurement of fair values
A number of the accounting policies and
disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.
Fair values are categorised into different level in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability, those are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable data).
The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.
The finance team regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, is used to measure fair
values, then the finance team assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations met the
requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should
be classified.
When measuring the fair values of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses observable market data
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels
of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has
occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made
in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the respective
notes.

(v) Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of Financial Statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future period
affected. In particular, information about significant
areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements is included
in the following notes.
• Recognition and estimation of tax expense

including deferred tax – Note 30.
• Estimated impairment of financial assets and

non-financial assets- Note 2(e) and 2(f).
• Assessment of useful life of property, plant and

equipment and intangible asset- Note 2(c).
• Estimation of assets and obligations relating

to employee benefits- Note 33.
• Valuation of inventories- Note 2(g).

• Recognition of revenue and related accruals-
Note 2(k).

• Recognition and measurement of contingency:
Key assumption about the likelihood and
magnitude of an outflow of resources- Note
40.

• Lease classification- Note 43.
• Fair value measurements- Note 2(u).

(w) Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS –
117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind
AS 116 – Leases, relating to sale and leaseback
transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April
01, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant
impact in its standalone financial statements.
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4. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 46.14 48.23
Additions during the year 351.42 195.18
Capitalized during the year 202.86 197.27
Balance at the end of the year 194.70 46.14

4.1 Ageing of capital work-in-progress
(` in million)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 172.62 22.08 - - 194.70
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 172.62 22.08 - - 194.70

(` in million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress 45.80 0.34 - - 46.14
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 45.80 0.34 - - 46.14

4.2 Expected completion schedule of capital work-in-progress where cost or time overrun has exceeded original
plan

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2025 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress:
HC2102-Proposal for new R & D centre at Greater 24.17 - - -
Noida for adhesive business
HC2094-Propose design consultancy required for 0.85 - - -
establishing R & D laboratory
CG3510-Procurement of new weighing balances in 0.18 - - -
wood finish plant
CG3516-To increase manufacturing capacity of all 5.46 - - -
grades of packaging adhesives (Acyclic and VAE)
AG3526-Procurement of new card punching machine at 0.14 - - -
fertilizer plant gate and fertilizer office in Gajraula plant

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2025 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

AG3523-Spent acid tank requires replacement at 1.26 - - -
Gajraula (SSP plant)
CG3533-Procurement of industrial label printer 0.24 - - -
VS3443-Procurement of new stripper along with - 1.91 - -
accessories for our 5 KL reactor (Phase I)
VS3434- To design new R & D building and internal 0.26 0.53 - -
details along with infrastructure development
VS3458-New R&D Centre at Savli plant 75.40 19.14 - -
VS3504-Engineering consultancy charges for new 0.93 - - -
SPVA plant at Savli
VS3497-Mooney Viscometer software upgradation 1.40 - - -
VS3517-Consultancy charges for designing of new 0.45 - - -
ETP for Latex plant
VS3530 Replacement of old damaged analytical 0.08 - - -
weight balance
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2024 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress:
CP3493 - To procure required equipments for new 0.53 - - -
project anaerobic adhesive
VS3426 - Installation of batch reactor to meet business 13.73 - - -
demand
VS3443 -Procurement of new stripper for our 5KL 2.38 - - -
reactor along with accessories
VS3434 -New R & D building with infrastructure 0.53 - - -
development
VS3475 - Installation of refrigerated container for 0.30 - - -
storage of 2VP drums
VS3477 - BIS 11356 Registration -SBR Latex 2.14 - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 17.01 0.99
Capitalized during the year 1.61 0.99
Balance at the end of the year 15.40 -

6.1 Ageing of intangible assets under development
(` in million)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 15.40 - - - 15.40
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 15.40 - - - 15.40

(` in million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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6.2 Expected completion schedule of intangible assets under development where cost or time overrun has
exceeded original plan

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2025 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress:
HC2112- Implement SAP S/4 HANA 14.85 - - -
HC2071 -New control manager portal (IAT Tool) - 0.55 - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2024 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

7. INVESTMENTS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Unquoted investments in equity shares (at cost)
200 (Previous Year: 200) equity shares with 10.75 - 10.75 -
no par value fully paid-up
Jubilant Industries Inc. USA (wholly owned
subsidiary)
530 (Previous Year: 530) equity shares of ` 10 each - - - -
fully paid-up
Minerva Holding Limited*
132 (Previous Year: 132) equity shares of ` 10 each - - - -
fully paid-up
Kashipur Holding Limited*
Quoted investments in equity shares (at fair
value through other comprehensive income)
448 (Previous Year: 448) equity shares of ` 10 each - 0.66 - 0.84
fully paid-up
Voith Paper Fabrics India Limited

10.75 0.66 10.75 0.84
* Shares were received free of cost under the Scheme of Arrangement (1997) approved by the Hon’ble High Court
of Allahabad.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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7.1 Additional information
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Aggregate amount of quoted investments - 0.08 - 0.08
Market value of quoted investments - 0.66 - 0.84
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10.75 - 10.75 -
Aggregate provision for diminution in value - - - -
of investments

8. LOANS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Loan to employees 0.70 1.13 0.86 0.59
Total loans 0.70 1.13 0.86 0.59

9. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Interest accrued - 1.07 - 0.69
Security deposits 15.09 3.46 13.57 3.43
Recoverable from related parties (Refer note 39) - - - 2.35
Others 0.29 - 0.29 -
Total other financial assets 15.38 4.53 13.86 6.47

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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10. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant component
of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
(` in million)

Provision for Expenditure Unabsorbed Others Total
compensated allowed depreciation
absences and on actual

gratuity payment
basis

As at 01 April 2023 35.36 22.62 146.26 10.09 214.33
Charge/(Credit)
- to statement of profit and loss 2.27 (4.42) 85.96 7.26 91.07
- to other comprehensive income (1.12) - - 0.06 (1.06)
As at 31 March 2024 34.21 27.04 60.30 2.77 124.32
Charge/(Credit)
- to statement of profit and loss (5.44) 3.86 60.30 0.24 58.96
- to other comprehensive income (0.77) - - - (0.77)
As at 31 March 2025 40.42 23.18 - 2.53 66.13

Deferred tax liabilities:
(` in million)

Depreciation, amortization and Total
other temporary differences

As at 01 April 2023 96.06 96.06
Charge/(Credit)
- to statement of profit and loss 3.28 3.28
- to other comprehensive income - -
As at 31 March 2024 99.34 99.34
Charge/(Credit)
- to statement of profit and loss (13.36) (13.36)
- to other comprehensive income - -
As at 31 March 2025 85.98 85.98

Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets 66.13 124.32
Deferred tax liabilities 85.98 99.34
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets (net) (19.85) 24.98

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets (net):
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance as at the commencement of the year 24.98 118.27
Charge recognized in profit and loss during the year 45.60 94.35
Credit recognized in other comprehensive income during the year (0.77) (1.06)
Balance as at the end of the year (19.85) 24.98

Expiry period of carried forward tax losses:
Company has unabsorbed depreciation amounting to ̀  Nil (Previous Year: ̀  239.57 million) as at year end, available
to reduce future income taxes and the same can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

11. OTHER ASSETS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Advance to suppliers - 82.80 - 33.73
Capital advances 0.99 - 2.76 -
Security deposits 19.19 - 17.07 -
Prepaid expenses 4.77 27.72 6.35 31.89
Advance to employees - 11.30 - 8.71
Recoverable from/balance with government - 264.86 - 502.12
authorities
Others - 33.12 - 15.91
Total other assets 24.95 419.80 26.18 592.36

12. INVENTORIES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw materials 635.35 994.25
[including goods-in-transit ` 181.22 million (Previous Year:
` 287.83 million)]
Work-in-progress 240.13 405.42
Finished goods 548.35 628.11
Stock-in-trade 188.33 76.39
Stores and spares 98.59 80.20
Fuel and packing materials 80.38 62.73
Total inventories 1,791.13 2,247.10
Notes:
(i) For valuation of inventories refer note 2(g).
(ii) Inventories are pledged as security for borrowings taken from banks. (Refer note 16)

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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13. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Current)
Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 2,928.50 2,516.46
Trade receivable-credit impaired 72.86 42.83

3,001.36 2,559.29
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 72.86 42.83
Total trade receivables 2,928.50 2,516.46

13.1 Trade receivables includes subsidy receivable ` 840.57 million (Previous Year: ` 607.59 million).
13.2 Refer note 35 for ageing of trade receivables.

14(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance with banks
- on current accounts 53.19 125.96
Cash on hand - 0.02
Total cash and cash equivalents 53.19 125.98

14(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Margin money with bank* 0.55 1.71
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.55 1.71
*For bank guarantees in favour of government authorities

15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Authorized
7,79,77,617 (Previous Year: 7,79,77,617) equity shares of ` 10 each 779.78 779.78
(Refer note 31)

779.78 779.78
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1,50,67,101 [Previous Year: 1,50,67,101 (Pending issuance)] equity 150.67 150.67
shares of ` 10 each (Refer note 31)
Total equity share capital 150.67 150.67

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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15.1 Movement in equity share capital:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of shares `̀̀̀̀ in million No. of shares `̀̀̀̀ in million

At the commencement of the year 56,08,552 56.09 56,08,552 56.09
(Before Scheme)
Add: Issued / To be issued pursuant 1,50,67,101 150.67 1,50,67,101 150.67
to Scheme (Refer note 31)
Less: Cancelled / To be cancelled 56,08,552 56.09 56,08,552 56.09
pursuant to Scheme (Refer note 31)
At the end of the year 1,50,67,101 150.67 1,50,67,101 150.67

15.2 The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of ̀  10 each. Holder of each
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and HS 53,18,439 35.30% 53,18,439 35.30%
Trustee Company Private Limited (Jointly acting
as Trustee on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia
Family Trust) (Refer note 31)
SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and SS 52,33,903 34.74% 52,33,903 34.74%
Trustee Company Private Limited (Jointly acting
as Trustee on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia
Family Trust) (Refer note 31)

15.4 Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
i) During the current year, the Company has issued 1,50,67,101 equity shares, pursuant to Composite Scheme of

Arrangement without payment being received in cash. (Refer note 31)
ii) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
iii) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.

15.5 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 % Change

No. of % held No. of % held during
shares shares the year

Kavita Bhartia 613 0.00% 613 0.00% 0.00%
Hari Shankar Bhartia 20,873 0.14% 20,873 0.14% 0.00%
Priyavrat Bhartia 253 0.00% 253 0.00% 0.00%
Shamit Bhartia 6,561 0.04% 6,561 0.04% 0.00%
Aasthi Bhartia 99 0.00% 99 0.00% 0.00%
Arjun Shanker Bhartia 99 0.00% 99 0.00% 0.00%
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As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 % Change
No. of % held No. of % held during
shares shares the year

Shyam Sunder Bhartia 72,825 0.48% 72,825 0.48% 0.00%
Jaytee Private Limited 380 0.00% 380 0.00% 0.00%
Jubilant Infrastructure Limited 50,000 0.33% 50,000 0.33% 0.00%
Vam Holdings Limited 2,84,070 1.89% 2,84,070 1.89% 0.00%
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited 53,18,439 35.30% 53,18,439 35.30% 0.00%
and HS Trustee Company Private Limited
(Jointly acting as Trustee on behalf of
Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust)
(Refer note 31)
SPB Trustee Company Private Limited 52,33,903 34.74% 52,33,903 34.74% 0.00%
and SS Trustee Company Private Limited
(Jointly acting as Trustee on behalf of
Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust)
(Refer note 31)
Jubilant Consumer Private Limited 2,78,522 1.85% 2,78,522 1.85% 0.00%

15(a) Other equity
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Securities premium 1,225.42 1,225.42
General reserve 200.31 200.31
Share based payment reserve 80.24 53.43
Retained earnings 1,573.17 691.45
Items of other comprehensive income (OCI):
Equity instruments through OCI 0.45 0.59
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (10.31) (8.00)
Cash hedge reserve - (0.11)
Foreign currency translation reserve (0.91) (0.63)
Total other equity 3,068.37 2,162.46
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(` in million)
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
16(a) Borrowings

(Non-current)
Term loans from banks
- Indian rupee loans (secured) 85.00 245.94
Less: Current maturities of long term debts 56.67 126.18
Total borrowings 28.33 119.76

16(b) Lease liabilities
(Non-current)
Non-current portion of lease liabilities 187.47 171.32
Total lease liabilities 187.47 171.32

16(c) Borrowings
(Current)
From Banks (Secured)
Cash credit and working capital loans (repayable on demand) 471.24 1,188.67
Current maturities of long term debts 56.67 126.18
Total borrowings 527.91 1,314.85

16(d) Lease liabilities
(Current)
Current portion of lease liabilities 27.28 14.27
Total lease liabilities 27.28 14.27

16.1 Nature of security of non-current borrowings and other terms of repayment
16.1.1 Term loan I availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ` Nil (Previous Year: ` 50.00 million) including

current maturities of Nil (Previous Year: 33.33 million) is secured by first pari passu charge on all fixed assets
(both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.2 Term loan II availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ` Nil (Previous Year: ` 54.27 million) including
current maturities of Nil (Previous Year: 36.18 million) is secured by first pari passu charge on all fixed assets
(both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.3 Term loan III availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ̀  85.00 million (Previous Year: ̀  141.67 million)
including current maturities of ` 56.67 million (Previous Year: ` 56.67 million) is secured by first pari passu
charge on all fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.4 Term loan I availed from HDFC Bank Limited is fully repaid during the current year.
16.1.5 Term loan II availed from HDFC Bank Limited is fully repaid during the current year.
16.1.6 Term loan III availed from HDFC Bank Limited is repayable in remaining six equal quarterly instalments,

payable up to September 2026.
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16.2 Nature of security of current borrowings and other terms of repayment
16.2.1 Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by Consortium of banks are secured by a first

pari passu charge by way of hypothecation, of the entire book debts, inventories and current assets both
present and future of the Company wherever the same may be held. Short term borrowings from banks are
availed in Indian rupees and in foreign currency.

16.2.2 The quarterly returns or statements [Financial Follow-up Report (FFR I)] by the Company for working capital
limits with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

16.2.3 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Capital creditors - 24.71 - 10.25
Employee benefits payable - 21.90 - 83.49
Security deposit 96.17 3.57 79.18 2.66
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 2.62 - 8.77
Other payables - 995.61 - 782.74
Total other financial liabilities 96.17 1,048.41 79.18 887.91

18. PROVISIONS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Provisions for employee benefits (Refer note 33) 130.29 115.72 119.64 74.10
Other provisions - 0.17 - 0.30
Total provisions 130.29 115.89 119.64 74.40

19. TRADE PAYABLES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Current)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 218.42 177.45
[Refer note 47 (vi)]
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,399.99 1,700.11
and small enterprises
Total trade payables 1,618.41 1,877.56
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19.1 Trade payable ageing schedule
(` in million)

Outstanding for following periods
from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2025 Not Due Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Total outstanding dues of
micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 205.87 12.55 - - - 218.42

205.87 12.55 - - - 218.42
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 1,295.83 99.21 1.24 1.31 2.40 1,399.99

1,295.83 99.21 1.24 1.31 2.40 1,399.99

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods

from due date of payment
As at 31 March 2024 Not Due Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Total outstanding dues of
micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 169.86 7.59 - - - 177.45

169.86 7.59 - - - 177.45
Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 1,533.07 162.88 1.43 0.63 2.10 1,700.11

1,533.07 162.88 1.43 0.63 2.10 1,700.11

20. OTHER LIABILITIES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Current)
Advance from customers 153.17 68.32
Statutory dues payables 92.75 332.23
Others 6.85 9.14
Total other liabilities 252.77 409.69
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21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sale of products:
- Domestic [including ` 1,655.94 million (Previous Year: ` 902.75 12,402.76 9,542.46

million) subsidy on fertilizers]
- Export 2,954.10 2,694.35
Other operating revenue 48.71 23.90
Total revenue from operations 15,405.57 12,260.71

22. OTHER INCOME
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest income [including interest on income tax refund 3.09 1.03
of ` 1.55 million (Previous Year: ` 0.16 million)]
Insurance claim 5.79 4.40
Foreign exchange fluctuation - net 5.03 -
Gain on termination of lease - 0.60
Rent received - 3.46
Other non-operating income 3.35 4.59
Total other income 17.26 14.08

23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw and process materials consumed 7,856.40 6,862.24
Total cost of materials consumed 7,856.40 6,862.24

24. PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Purchases of stock-in-trade 647.86 267.11
Total purchases of stock-in-trade 647.86 267.11
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25. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance
Work-in-progress 405.42 333.70
Finished goods 628.11 571.14
Stock-in-trade 76.39 49.08
Total opening balance 1,109.92 953.92
Closing balance
Work-in-progress 240.13 405.42
Finished goods 548.35 628.11
Stock-in-trade 188.33 76.39
Total closing balance 976.81 1,109.92
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 133.11 (156.00)
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances 1,482.99 1,165.79
Contribution to provident and other funds 65.48 50.26
Employee share based expense 26.81 10.11
Staff welfare expenses 77.79 64.53
Total employee benefits expense 1,653.07 1,290.69

27. FINANCE COSTS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest expense 120.54 170.48
Other finance costs 13.68 23.96
Exchange difference to the extent considered 0.38 1.78
as an adjustment to finance costs
Total finance costs 134.60 196.22
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28. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 156.29 143.85
[including amortization of Right of use (ROU) assets]
Amortization of intangible assets 4.73 6.62
Total depreciation and amortization expense 161.02 150.47

29. OTHER EXPENSES
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Power and fuel 332.08 259.56
Stores, spares and packing materials consumed 834.27 715.82
Job work charges 4.86 4.11
Repairs and maintenance:

Plant and machineries 105.87 101.46
Buildings 4.60 6.63
Others 70.86 63.99

Rent 49.16 38.15
Rates & taxes 10.03 10.34
Insurance 31.04 31.83
Advertisement, publicity & sales promotion 687.38 635.20
Travelling & other incidental expenses 224.06 164.78
Vehicle running & maintenance 2.57 2.79
Printing & stationery 6.35 10.69
Communication expenses 14.02 9.82
Staff recruitment & training 26.40 4.19
Legal, professional and consultancy charges (Refer note 42) 198.80 170.55
Directors’ sitting fees 3.02 1.72
Bank charges 4.07 3.37
Foreign exchange fluctuation - net - 1.70
CSR expenses [Refer note 47 (viii)] 12.73 11.45
Freight & forwarding 755.81 555.60
Commission on Sales 54.94 39.35
Discounts, claims to customers and other selling expenses 195.39 90.17
Bad Debts/ irrecoverable advances & receivables written off (net) 21.61 0.61
Net loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1.77
Loss on termination of lease 0.04 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 2.54 20.66
Miscellaneous expenses 8.24 4.64
Total other expenses 3,660.74 2,960.95
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30. INCOME TAX
The major components of income tax expense are:
Profit or loss section

(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge for the year 243.24 -

243.24 -
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax charge for the year 55.66 94.35
Deferred tax credit for the earlier years (10.06) -

45.60 94.35
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss 288.84 94.35

Other comprehensive income (OCI) section
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Tax credit related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or (0.81) (1.09)
loss
Tax charge related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.04 0.03
Income tax credited to Other comprehensive income (0.77) (1.06)

Reconciliation between average effective rate and applicable tax rate:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Accounting profit before income tax 1,170.56 358.70
At India’s statutory income tax rate 25.168% (Previous Year: 294.63 89.92
25.168%)
- Permanent difference 3.28 3.41
- Adjustments of earlier years (10.06) -
- Others 0.99 1.02
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of profit and loss 288.84 94.35

31. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
(a) Composite Scheme of Arrangement (Scheme), approved by the Board on 12th August 2022 between the

following companies:
- HSSS Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-1),
- KBHB Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-2),
- SSBPB Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-3),
- Jubilant Industries Limited (JIL) is the holding company of the Amalgamated company namely, Jubilant

Agri and Consumer Products Limited (JACPL), and
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- Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (JACPL) (Amalgamated Company), a wholly owned subsidiary
of JIL.

(b) Pursuant to the Composite Scheme JIL would amalgamate with the Company from the appointed date i.e. July
01, 2022 wherein JIL shall cease to exist.
Amalgamating companies were forming part of the promoter group of the Company, which holding 1,05,52,342
equity shares in the Company constituting 70.04% of the Company’s paid-up equity share capital. Consequent
upon amalgamation of Amalgamating companies with the Company, shareholders of the amalgamating
companies, directly will hold shares of the Company in the same proportion as they held through the erstwhile
amalgamating companies.

(c) Upon the scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Company shall automatically stand
enhanced by the authorized share capital of the JIL.

(d) Computation of net impact of Investment of JIL in the Company:
(` in million)

Particulars Amount
Investment in the company as per books of JIL A 3,016.28
Less:
Share capital as per books of the Company B 56.09
Securities premium as per books of the Company C 880.47
Reversal of capital reserve created pursuant to Part B of the Scheme D 48.85
Adjusted in retained earnings (balancing figure) A-(B+C+D) 2,030.87

(e) Effects on the financial statements
(` in million)

Particulars Amount

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 0.10
Investments 10.75
Loans 0.03
Deferred tax assets 0.03
Other non-current assets 1.35
Current assets
Inventories 0.12
Trade receivables 1.12
Cash and cash equivalents 17.17
Other bank balances 1.00
Loans 0.01
Other financials assets 3.00
Current tax assets 0.89
Other current assets 4.81
Assets classified as held for sale 13.57
Total assets A 53.95
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(` in million)
Particulars Amount
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 0.67
Current liabilities
Trade payables 1.49
Other financials liabilities 3.31
Other current liabilities 116.77
Provisions 0.25
Total liabilities B 122.49
Equity
Share capital 94.58
Securities premium 344.95
General reserve 200.31
Share based payment reserve (10.86)
OCI- Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.02
Retained earnings (697.54)
Total equity C (68.54)
Total equity and liabilities (B+C) 53.95

(f) In the books of JIL equity settled share payment based transactions with the employees of the Company, was
recognised in investment, therefore, capital contribution of the JIL is adjusted with share based payment
reserve of the Company.

(g) In the books of JIL Trade receivable of ̀  1.12 million is receivable from the Company so adjusted with the Trade
payable of the Company.

(h) The above have been accounted for, in compliance with Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”.

(i) The National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (NCLT) vide its order dated 07 August, 2024 sanctioned
the Composite Scheme of Arrangement, certified copy of the same received on 03 September, 2024. The
Scheme became effective on 03 October, 2024 upon filing of the certified copies of the NCLT order sanctioning
the Scheme with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies (Kanpur). Pursuant to the Scheme becoming
effective, all the assets and liabilities of JIL transferred to and vested in the Company (JACPL) with effect from
01 July, 2022 i.e. the Appointed Date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company on 04 November, 2024 issued and allotted
equity shares to the shareholders of Jubilant Industries Limited (“JIL”), whose name appeared in the register of
members of JIL as on record date i.e. 28 October, 2024, one equity share of ̀  10/- each in the Company, as fully
paid-up for every one equity share of ` 10/- each held by them in JIL. Subsequent to the quarter ended
December 31, 2024, the equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on February 14, 2025 in accordance with the Scheme.

32. On September 03, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized transfer its Plant and Machinery and
Land and Building to a group company for a consideration based on an independent valuation.
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The Company entered into an agreement to sell its Plant and Machinery and Land and Building for a consideration
of ` 133.00 million on securing the requisite approvals. Accordingly, the financial statements have been presented
in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 105 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS-105 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are as under:

a) Financial performance related to discontinued operations:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

i) Revenue from operations - -
ii) Other income 0.60 0.53
iii) Total revenue (i+ii) 0.60 0.53
iv) Total expenses 6.07 10.12
v) Loss from discontinued operations before tax (iii-iv) (5.47) (9.59)
vi) Tax expenses - -
vii) Net loss from discontinued operations (v-vi) (5.47) (9.59)

b) Summarised Statement of cash flows of discontinued operations:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cash flows from operating activities (1.83) (25.34)
Cash flows from investing activities 0.02 10.37
Cash flows from financing activities - -

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS IN RESPECT OF THE COMPANY HAVE BEEN CALCULATED AS UNDER:
A. Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plan such as provident fund, employee state insurance, employee
pension scheme, employee superannuation fund wherein specified percentage is contributed to them. During
the year, the Company has contributed following amounts to:

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 38.87 29.72
Employer’s contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 18.26 14.22
Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund 0.44 0.73
Employer’s contribution to employee state insurance 0.27 0.34

B. Defined Benefits Plans
i. Gratuity

In accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”, an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
gratuity. The discount rate assumed is 6.90% p.a. (Previous Year: 7.13% p.a.) which is determined by reference
to market yield at the Balance Sheet date on government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at
58 years (Previous Year: 58 years) and mortality table is as per IALM (2012-14) [Previous Year: IALM (2012-14)].
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 9% p.a. for first three years and 5%
p.a. thereafter (Previous Year: 9% p.a. for first three years and 5% p.a. thereafter), taking into account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for
certain employees of one unit of the Company. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance
Corporation of India are not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return on
plan assets is 6.50% p.a. (Previous Year: 7.00% p.a.).

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present vale of obligation at the beginning of the year 112.85 107.69
Current service cost 16.67 12.43
Interest cost 8.01 7.91
Actuarial loss/(gain) 3.02 4.69
Benefits paid (14.65) (19.87)
Present vale of obligation at the end of the year 125.90 112.85

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present vale of obligation at the end of the year 125.90 112.85
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 14.38 13.49
Net liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet 111.52 99.36

Fair value of plan assets*:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 13.49 12.54
Expected return on plan assets 0.96 0.92
Actuarial gain (0.07) 0.03
Plan assets at the end of the year 14.38 13.49

* In respect of one unit of the Company, the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds.
Company’s best estimate of contribution during next year is ` 28.74 million (Previous Year: ` 22.98 million).

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits expense:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total service cost 16.67 12.43
Net interest cost 7.05 6.99
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 23.72 19.42
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Amount recognized in other comprehensive income:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Actuarial (loss)/gain due to financial assumption change (1.71) (4.47)
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to experience adjustment (1.31) 0.22
Actuarial gain on plan assets (0.06) 0.03
Amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (3.08) (4.22)

Sensitivity analysis:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (4.05) 4.34 4.36 (4.10)

(` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.39) 3.62 3.66 (3.46)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based
on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

C. Other long term benefits (compensated absences)
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 49.11 36.45
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
(` in million)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars Note Level of FVPL FVOCI Amortized FVPL FVOCI Amortized

hierarchy Cost Cost
Financial assets
Investments in quoted equity instruments (d) 1 - 0.66 - - 0.84 -
Investments in unquoted equity (a, b) - - 10.75 - - 10.75
instruments
Trade receivables (a) - - 2,928.50 - - 2,516.46
Loans (a, b) - - 1.83 - - 1.45
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - - 53.19 - - 125.98
Other bank balances (a) - - 0.55 - - 1.71
Other financial assets (a, b) - - 19.91 - - 20.33
Total financial assets - 0.66 3,014.73 - 0.84 2,676.68
Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings (including (c) 3 - - 85.00 - - 245.94
other current maturities)
Current borrowings (a) - - 471.24 - - 1,188.67
Trade payables (a) - - 1,618.41 - - 1,877.56
Lease liabilities (a) - - 214.75 - - 185.59
Other financial liabilities (a) - - 1,144.58 - - 967.09
Total financial liabilities - - 3,533.98 - - 4,464.85

Note:
(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to

respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
(b) Fair value of non-current financial assets and liabilities has not been disclosed as there is no significant differences

between carrying value and fair value.
(c) Fair value of non-current borrowings as below:

(` in million)
Particulars Level 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fair value

Borrowings (including other current maturities) 3 85.00 245.94
85.00 245.94

(d) The fair value is determined by using the valuation model/technique with observable/non-observable inputs
and assumptions.
There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024.
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Reconciliation of Level 1 fair value measurement:
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance 0.84 0.47
Additional investments - -
(Loss)/Gain recognized in other comprehensive income (0.18) 0.37
Sale of investments - -
Closing balance 0.66 0.84

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework.
The Company, through three layers of defence namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and assurance
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversee the formulation and
implementation of the risk management policies. The risk are identified at business unit level and mitigation plan
are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk [see(i)];
- liquidity risk [see(ii)]; and
- market risk [see(iii)].

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
loans and investments.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets
The Company has established a credit policy under which new customer is analysed individually for credit
worthiness before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes
external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information and
business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually. Any sales exceeding
those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per policy.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are institutional, dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Company and existence of previous financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:
Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Company
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than 6 months (net of expected credit loss allowance) is ` 7.13 million (Previous Year: ` 64.74 million).

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 141

Movement in the expected credit loss is as follows: (` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 42.83 39.63
Add: Provided during the year (net of reversal) 30.17 3.31
Less Amount written off/adjusted 0.14 0.11
Balance at the end of the year 72.86 42.83

The ageing of trade receivables as on balance sheet date is given below. The age analysis has been considered
from the due date.

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2025 Not due Up to 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months to 1 year 3 years

Undisputed
Considered good  2,451.25  468.84  8.41  -  -  - 2,928.50
Which have significant increase -  -  -  -  -  -  -
in credit risk
Credit impaired -  -  8.41  13.14  8.19  3.34 33.08
Disputed
Considered good -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Which have significant increase -  -  -  -  -  -  -
in credit risk
Credit impaired 0.09  1.19 6.37 6.16 4.30 21.67  39.78
Total 2,451.34 470.03 23.19 19.30 12.49 25.01  3,001.36
Less: Allowance for credit 0.09  1.19 14.78 19.30 12.49 25.01  72.86
impaired balances
Total 2,451.25  468.84  8.41  -  -  -  2,928.50

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2024 Not due Up to 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months to 1 year 3 years

Undisputed
Considered good 2,231.24 220.48 6.90 57.84 - - 2,516.46
Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Credit impaired - - 6.90 2.96 1.50 2.48 13.84
Disputed
Considered good - - - - - - -
Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Credit impaired - 0.22 1.02 3.98 3.59 20.18 28.99
Total 2,231.24 220.7 14.82 64.78 5.09 22.66 2,559.29
Less: Allowance for credit - 0.22 7.92 6.94 5.09 22.66 42.83
impaired balances
Total 2,231.24 220.48 6.90 57.84 - - 2,516.46
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Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivables:
With regard to all financial assets with contractual cash flows, other than trade receivables, management
believes these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties
from which these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the
risk of default is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted loss has been provided on these financial
assets. Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on Balance Sheet.

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the Treasury. Longer term liquidity position is
reviewed on a regular basis by the Company’s Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according
to the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements.

(` in million)
As at 31 March 2025 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Within More than
amount 1 year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 556.24 556.24 527.91 28.33
Trade payables 1,618.41 1,618.41 1,618.41 -
Lease liabilities 214.75 214.75 27.28 187.47
Other financial liabilities 1,144.58 1,144.58 1,048.41 96.17

(` in million)
As at 31 March 2024 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Within More than
amount 1 year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,434.61 1,434.61 1,314.85 119.76
Trade payables 1,877.56 1,877.56 1,877.56 -
Lease liabilities 185.59 185.59 14.27 171.32
Other financial liabilities 967.09 967.09 887.91 79.18
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iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing
the return.

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has obtained foreign currency borrowing and has foreign
currency trade payable and trade receivable and is therefore, exposed to foreign currency risk.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:

(` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

USD EUR USD EUR

Trade receivable 509.32 149.72 498.23 127.95
Trade payables (383.64) (9.93) (588.80) (0.68)
Borrowings - - (47.69) -
Net exposure 125.68 139.79 (138.26) 127.27

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonable possible strengthening/ weakening of the EUR, USD currencies at year end would have affected
the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

(` in million)
Particulars Profit or loss (before tax)

Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2025
USD (1% movement) 1.26 (1.26)
EUR (1% movement) 1.40 (1.40)
31 March 2024
USD (1% movement) (1.38) 1.38
EUR (1% movement) 1.27 (1.27)

Hedging of foreign currency risk:
The Company hedge its foreign currency exposures using various hedging instruments such as forwards, options
and swaps. The objective of the hedging is to minimize the impact of currency fluctuations on the company’s
financial performance, without speculating on currency movements.
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The table below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on the balance sheet date.
Cash flow hedge (Hedging instrument-forward contract)

(` in million)
Carrying amount

As at 31st March 2025 Nominal Assets Liabilities Change in
Value fair value

Foreign currency risk component-Trade receivables - - - -

(` in million)
Carrying amount

As at 31st March 2024 Nominal Assets Liabilities Change in
Value fair value

Foreign currency risk component-Trade receivables 88.63 88.50 - (0.13)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are
borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity
for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in INR and
USD with a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising
principally on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining
an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments as reported to the management
of the Company is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fixed-rate borrowings - -
Floating rate borrowings 556.24 1,434.61
Total borrowings 556.24 1,434.61

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.
If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/ lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s
profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 would decrease / increase by ` 1.39 million (Previous Year: ` 3.59
million). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguarding their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
‘Net Debt’ (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments) divided
by ‘Total Equity’ (as shown in the Balance sheet).

The gearing ratios were as follows:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total borrowings [Refer note 16 (a) & 16 (c)] 556.24 1,434.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents [Refer note 14 (a)] 53.19 125.98
Less: Other bank balances [Refer note 14 (b)] 0.55 1.71
Less: Current investments (Refer note 7) 0.66 0.84
Net debt 501.84 1,306.08
Total equity [Refer note 15 & 15 (a)] 3,219.04 2,313.13
Gearing ratio 0.16 0.56

No Changes were made in the objective, policies or process for managing capital during the years 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024.

37. CHANGES IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(` in million)

For the year ended As at Receipt Repayment Transaction Others As at
31 March 2025 01 April cost 31 March

2024 2025
Long term borrowings from banks 245.94 - (160.94) - - 85.00
Short term borrowings from banks 1,188.67 - (717.43) - - 471.24
Total 1,434.61 - (878.37) - - 556.24

(` in million)
For the year ended As at Receipt Repayment Transaction Others As at
31 March 2024 01 April cost 31 March

2023 2024
Long term borrowings from banks 371.60 170.00 (295.66) - - 245.94
Short term borrowings from banks 1,325.65 - (137.24) - 0.26 1,188.67
Total 1,697.25 170.00 (432.90) - 0.26 1,434.61

38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business Segment
The CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented
based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of each segment and to make decision about
allocation of resources. Further, in compliance to the office memorandum vide F.No.23011/9/2023-P&K dated
18th Jan 2024 as issued by the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers “Phosphatic and
Potassic fertilizers (P&K Fertilizers)” have been reported as separate segment. Accordingly, the Company has
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determined reportable segments by the nature of its products and services, which are as follows:
a. Performance Polymers & Chemicals: Adhesives & Wood Finishes, Sulphuric Acid, Food Polymer (Solid PVA),

and Latex
b. P&K Fertilizers: Single Super Phosphate
c. Agri Nutrients: Agro Chemicals for Crop Products
There are no separate reportable geographical segment in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segments”.
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.
No operating segments have been aggregated to from the above reportable operating segments.
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments on
reasonable basis have been included under ‘unallocable revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities’.
Finance costs and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual segments as the
underlying instruments are managed on a Company basis.
Borrowings, current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those
segments as they are also managed on a Company basis.

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

Total Inter- Revenue Total Inter- Revenue
segment segment from external segment segment from external
revenue revenue customers revenue revenue customers

REVENUE
Performance Polymers & 11,077.88 240.46 10,837.42 9,432.24 126.77 9,305.47
Chemicals
P&K Fertilizers 4,414.82 - 4,414.82 2,822.88 - 2,822.88
Agri Nutrients 153.33 - 153.33 132.36 - 132.36
Total segment revenue 15,646.03 240.46 15,405.57 12,387.48 126.77 12,260.71

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
RESULT
Performance Polymers & Chemicals 1,646.66 1,310.50
P&K Fertilizers (110.02) (216.30)
Agri Nutrients 52.92 22.61
Total Segment 1,589.56 1,116.81
Un-allocated corporate expenses (net of un-allocable income) 284.40 357.68
Exceptional items - 204.21
Finance costs 134.60 196.22
Profit before tax 1,170.56 358.70
Tax expense 288.84 94.35
Profit for the year 881.72 264.35
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(` in million)
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024

Segment Assets Segment Liabilities
Performance Polymers & Chemicals 4,748.82 4,298.32 2,249.61 2,380.67
P&K Fertilizers 2,167.25 2,662.68 855.42 985.38
Agri Nutrients 39.80 30.28 22.61 23.37
Segment Total 6,955.87 6,991.28 3,127.64 3,389.42
Un-allocated corporate assets/ liabilities 327.83 365.45 360.93 244.55
Total 7,283.70 7,356.73 3,488.57 3,633.97
Deferred tax asset/ liabilities - 24.98 19.85 -
Borrowings (including other current maturities) - - 556.24 1,434.61
Total assets/ liabilities 7,283.70 7,381.71 4,064.66 5,068.58

Other information
(` in million)

Particulars For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024

Capital Expenditure Depreciation/ amortization

Performance Polymers & Chemicals 304.09 171.48 86.97 73.46
P&K Fertilizers 6.43 17.46 44.78 43.71
Agri Nutrients - - - -
Un-allocated 57.91 7.23 29.27 33.31
Total 368.43 196.17 161.02 150.48
Less: Related to discontinued operations - - - 0.01
Net related to continuing operations 368.43 196.17 161.02 150.47

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
1. Wholly-owned subsidiary company

Jubilant Industries Inc. USA

2. Enterprises in which certain key management personnel are interested
Jubilant Pharmova Limited, Jubilant Ingrevia Limited, Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited, Jubilant Generics Limited.

3. Key management personnel (KMP)
Mr. Manu Ahuja (CEO and Whole-time Director) up to 09 December 2023 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Jagat Sharma
(Whole-time Director) upto 26 June 2024 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Mohandeep Singh (CEO and Whole-time Director)
w.e.f. 27 June 2024 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer), Mr. Abhishek Mishra (Company
Secretary) of Jubilant Industries Limited [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Abhishek Kamra (Company Secretary) of Jubilant
Industries Limited [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) upto 13 November 2024 [Refer note
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(ii)], Mr. Hariom Pandey (Company Secretary) [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia (Chairman & Director), Mr.
Shamit Bhartia (Director), Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma (Independent Director), Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma
(Independent Director), Ms. Shivpriya Nanda (Independent Director) up to 31 March 2024. Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan
(Independent Director) w.e.f. 10 February 2024.
(i) Mr. Manu Ahuja ceased from the position of CEO and Managing Director of Jubilant Industries Limited

and CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company due to his sad demise on 09 December 2023. Mr. Jagat
Sharma was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 12 December 2023 and resigned
from the post of Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 26 June 2024. Mr. Mohandeep Singh was
appointed as CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 27 June 2024.

(ii) Mr. Abhishek Mishra was the Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited up to 15 April 2023. Mr.
Abhishek Kamra was appointed as Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited w.e.f. 25 May 2023 on
interim basis and stepped down from the position of Company Secretary in consequent to appointment
of Mr. Brijesh Kumar as Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited and the Company w.e.f. 07
August, 2023. Mr. Brijesh Kumar resigned from the Company w.e.f. 13 November 2024. Mr. Hariom Pandey
appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 01 February, 2025.

4. Others
Pace Marketing Specialties Limited Officer’s Superannuation Scheme (Trust), Jubilant Bhartia Foundation.

5. Details of related party transactions (at arm length):
31 March 2025 (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Wholly- Enterprises Key Others Total
No. owned in which certain management

subsidiary key management personnel
company personnel are

interested
1 Sale of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 1,078.51 - - - 1,078.51
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 172.83 - - 172.83

1,078.51 172.83 - - 1,251.34
2 Purchase of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 72.38 - - 72.38
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 278.00 - - 278.00
Jubilant Generics Limited - 0.35 - - 0.35
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited - 0.14 - - 0.14

- 350.87 - - 350.87
3 Rent expenses:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 2.91 - - 2.91
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 6.29 - - 6.29
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited - 0.90 - - 0.90

- 10.10 - - 10.10
4 Transfer in of employee related liabilities

on transfer of employees:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 0.27 - - 0.27

- 0.27 - - 0.27
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(` in million)
Sr. Particulars Wholly- Enterprises Key Others Total
No. owned in which certain management

subsidiary key management personnel
company personnel are

interested
5 Remuneration (including perquisites)*:

Mohandeep Singh (Whole-time Director) - - 30.80 - 30.80
Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) - - 18.49 - 18.49
Jagat Sharma (Whole-time Director) - - 2.88 - 2.88
Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) - - 2.18 - 2.18
Hariom Pandey (Company Secretary) - - 0.44 - 0.44

- - 54.79 - 54.79
6 Sitting fees:

Sanjanthi Sajan (Director) - - 1.08 - 1.08
Radhey Shyam Sharma (Director) - - 1.62 - 1.62
Ravinder Pal Sharma (Director) - - 1.71 - 1.71

- - 4.41 - 4.41
7 Contribution towards superannuation fund:

Pace Marketing Specialties Limited Officer’s - - - 0.44 0.44
Superannuation Scheme Trust

- - - 0.44 0.44
8 CSR Expenses:

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation - - - 12.73 12.73
- - - 12.73 12.73

10 Recovery of expenses:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 0.02 - - 0.02

- 0.02 - - 0.02
11 Reimbursement of expenses:

Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited - 0.61 - - 0.61
- 0.61 - - 0.61

12 Trade payables:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 15.14 - - 15.14
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 44.19 - - 44.19

- 59.33 - - 59.33
13 Trade receivables:

Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 156.71 - - - 156.71
156.71 - - - 156.71

14 Oustanding investment in equity stock:
Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 10.75 - - - 10.75

10.75 - - - 10.75
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31 March 2024 (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Wholly- Enterprises Key Others Total
No. owned in which certain management

subsidiary key management personnel
company personnel are

interested
1 Sale of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 809.16 - - - 809.16
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 142.49 - - 142.49

809.16 142.49 - - 951.65
2 Purchase of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 38.37 - - 38.37
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 241.59 - - 241.59
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited - 0.14 - - 0.14

- 280.10 - - 280.10
3 Rent expenses:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 2.90 - - 2.90
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 6.23 - - 6.23

- 9.13 - - 9.13
4 Transfer out of employee related liabilities

on transfer of employees:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 1.95 - - 1.95

- 1.95 - - 1.95
5 Remuneration (including perquisites)*:

Manu Ahuja (Whole-time Director) - - 56.23 - 56.23
Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) - - 15.92 - 15.92
Abhishek Mishra (Company Secretary) - - 0.60 - 0.60
Abhishek Kamra (Company Secretary) - - 0.25 - 0.25
Jagat Sharma (Whole-time Director) - - 4.78 - 4.78
Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) - - 1.78 - 1.78

- - 79.56 - 79.56
6 Sitting fees:

Shivpriya Nanda (Director) - - 0.86 - 0.86
Radhey Shyam Sharma (Director) - - 1.32 - 1.32
Ravinder Pal Sharma (Director) - - 1.33 - 1.33

- - 3.51 - 3.51
7 Contribution towards superannuation fund:

Pace Marketing Specialties Limited Officer’s - - - 0.73 0.73
Superannuation Scheme Trust

- - - 0.73 0.73
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31 March 2024 (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Wholly- Enterprises Key Others Total
No. owned in which certain management

subsidiary key management personnel
company personnel are

interested
8 CSR Expenses

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation - - - 11.45 11.45
- - - 11.45 11.45

9 Reimbursement of expenses:
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited - 1.00 - - 1.00
Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 1.21 - - 1.21

- 2.21 - - 2.21
10 Amount received against sale of assets:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 10.38 - - 10.38
- 10.38 - - 10.38

11 Other receivables:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 2.35 - - 2.35

- 2.35 - - 2.35
12 Trade payables:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited - 4.87 - - 4.87
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 49.09 - - 49.09

- 53.96 - - 53.96
13 Trade receivables:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited - 0.32 - - 0.32
Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 128.10 - - - 128.10

128.10 0.32 - - 128.42
14 Oustanding investment in equity stock:

Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 10.75 - - - 10.75
10.75 - - - 10.75

* Does not include provision in respect of gratuity and leave encashment since the provision is made on
actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
Note: Transactions are shown inclusive of GST, wherever applicable.

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
A) Guarantees:

Outstanding guarantees furnished by banks on behalf of the Company/by the Company including in respect
of letters of credit is ` 1,179.93 million (Previous Year: ` 836.50 million).

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
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B) Claims against Company not acknowledged as debt:
Claims/Demands in respect of which proceeding or appeals are pending and are not acknowledged as debts
on account of:
i) (` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sales tax - -
Custom duty - 20.28
Service tax - 2.36
GST 1.52 45.81
Others (excluding amounts mentioned in note (ii) and 64.72 62.77
(iii) below)

ii) A Civil Suit/ OS No. 5549/2013, was by Kids Kemp (the “Plaintiff”) before the Hon’ble City Civil Court,
Bengaluru, against Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“JACPL”). The Suit was filed on 30 July
2013 seeking recovery of ` 132.23 million, monthly rental of ` 14.375 million from August 2013 onwards,
` 10 million as damages from May 2013, and compensation for alleged damage to the leased property.
After implementation of the Commercial Courts Act, 2015, JACPL filed writ petition before the Hon’ble
High Court of Karnataka, the Writ was allowed and the Suit was transferred to the Commercial Court,
Bengaluru, with new No. COM.OS No. 346/2024 (formerly OS No. 5549/2013). After completion of court
proceedings the Hon’ble Commercial Court held that the monthly payments of ` 10 million made by
JACPL constituted full and final settlement of rent, and accordingly dismissed the Plaintiff’s claims of
` 132.23 million and also rejected their monthly and damage claims etc. That against this order Kids Kemp
have filed a Commercial Appeal bearing No. 325 of 2024 before the Division Bench of the Karnataka High
Court U/ Section 13(1A) of the Commercial Courts Act, 2015. JACPL, remains confident on the merits of
this case and is vigorously contesting the Appeal. It is pertinent to note that the subject matter of the
dispute pertains to the Retail business, which has since been divested.

iii) A civil suit bearing OS No. 5561/2014, instituted by Shivashakthi Builders (the “Plaintiff”) against Jubilant
Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“JACPL/Company”), before the Hon’ble City Civil Court, Bengaluru.
The Plaintiff had claimed damages aggregating to ̀  218.86 million, allegedly arising out of the termination
of a lease agreement executed between the parties. JACPL has filed its written statement and detailed
objections, setting out the legal and factual grounds justifying the termination of the said lease. Pursuant
to the proceedings, the Hon’ble City Civil Court, by its order dated 30 October 2024, passed a partial
decree in favour of the Plaintiff, awarding a sum of ` 80.00 million with interest at the rate of 8% per
annum from the date of institution of the suit until realization along with litigation costs of ` 1.31 million.
Aggrieved by the said decree, the Company has preferred a Regular First Appeal (RFA No. 259/2025)
before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka at Bengaluru, inter alia, on the ground that there was no
breach of contractual obligation warranting such an award. The Hon’ble High Court has admitted the
appeal and, vide its interim order, stayed the operation of the impugned decree, subject to the Company
depositing 50% of the decretal amount, i.e., ` 40.00 million. JACPL, remains confident in the merits of its
case and is vigorously contesting the matter. It is pertinent to note that the subject matter of the dispute
pertains to the Retail business, which has since been divested.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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41. COMMITMENTS AS AT YEAR END
a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) ` 87.39 million
(Previous Year: ` 120.55 million) [Advances ` 0.99 million (Previous Year: ` 2.76 million)].

b) Other commitments
Export obligation under Advance License Scheme on duty free import of raw materials, remaining outstanding
` 302.02 million (Previous Year: ` 960.76 million)

42. AUDITORS REMUNERATION:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Audit fee 0.92 1.07
Limited review 0.74 1.02
Other certifications 1.61 0.56
Out of pocket expenses 0.45 0.45
Total 3.72 3.10

43. LEASES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Lease liabilities at the beginning of the year 185.59 220.75
Add: Additions during the year 48.69 2.20
Add/(Less): Adjustments on account of extension/ 0.04 (10.89)
termination during the year
Less: Payments on account of lease liabilities during the year 19.57 26.47
Lease liabilities at the end of the year 214.75 185.59

Carrying value of assets
(` in million)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Land & Others Land & Others

Buildings Buildings
Balance at the beginning of the year 166.02 1.96 193.82 17.03
Add: Additions during the year 31.52 17.18 0.22 1.98
Add/(Less): Adjustments on account - - (0.04) (10.25)
of extension/termination during the year
Less: Amortization during the year 29.29 4.18 27.98 6.80
Balance at the end of the year 168.25 14.96 166.02 1.96

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
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Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
(` in million)

Maturity analysis- contractual undiscounted As at As at
cash flows 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one year 43.00 28.67
One to five years 173.16 131.24
More than five years 75.89 228.48
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 292.05 388.39
Current lease liabilities 27.28 14.27
Non-current lease liabilities 187.47 171.32

Amount recognized in Statement of profit and loss
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest on lease liabilities 18.82 16.92
Expenses related to short-term leases 49.16 38.15
Loss/(Gain) on termination of lease 0.04 (0.60)
Amortization of right of use assets 33.47 34.78

Amount recognized in statement of cash flows
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total cash outflows for leases 38.39 43.39
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44. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS:
During the previous year exceptional items includes:
- impact of increase in realisable value of subsidy receivable consequent to the upward revision in Nutrient

Based Subsidy (NBS) rates by Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers vide office memorandum no. 23011/2/2024-
P&K dated 1st March 2024,

- impact of reduction in realisable value of subsidy receivable consequent to the downward revision in Nutrient
Based Subsidy (NBS) rates by Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers vide office memorandum no. 23011/10/2023-
P&K dated 26th October 2023, and

- provision made for one time ex-gratia payment to be made to the legal heir of the deceased CEO & Whole-
time Director of the Company.

45. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required
by the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence
of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of
updating the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified persons and
the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and expects
such records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management is of the
opinion that its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so that the
aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense
and that of provision for taxation.

46. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited has two Employee Stock Option Scheme namely,
- JACPL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2013 (“Scheme 2013”)
- JACPL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 (“Scheme 2018”)
Above both Employee Stock Option Scheme, adopted by the Company pursuant to Composite Scheme of
Arrangement w.e.f. 01 July 2022.

Scheme 2013:
The Company has adopted “JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme 2013 (Scheme 2013)” for employees of the
Company, its subsidiary company. Under the Scheme 2013, up to 5,90,000 stock options can be issued to eligible
employees of the Company/subsidiary company. The options are to be granted at the price as determined by the
Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (Committee), in accordance with the applicable laws.
Each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to subscribe 1 (one) fully paid equity share of ` 10 of the
Company. 20% of the options shall vest on first anniversary of the grant date, subsequent 30% shall vest on second
anniversary and balance 50% of the options shall vest on the third anniversary of the grant date or as may be
decided by the Committee from time to time, subject to compliance with the applicable laws.
The Company has a Compensation Committee, comprising of a majority of independent directors. This Committee
will be fully empowered to administer the Scheme 2013.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
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Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

The movement in the stock option under the “Scheme 2013”
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

Options Average Options Average
Exercise Exercise
Price (`̀̀̀̀) Price (`̀̀̀̀)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,35,672 308.62 95,343 234.40
Granted during the year 21,524 1,393.80 42,670 475.08
Expired/Lapsed during the year 760 529.25 2,341 320.00
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,56,436 456.86 1,35,672 308.62

Scheme 2018:
The Company has adopted “JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018 (Scheme 2018)” for employees of the
Company, its subsidiary Company. Under the Scheme 2018, up to 5,00,000 stock options can be issued to eligible
employees of the Company/subsidiary company. The options are to be granted at the price as determined by the
Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (Committee), in accordance with the applicable laws.
Each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to subscribe 1 (one) fully paid equity share of ` 10 of the
Company. Options shall vest at the end of the third year from the grant date or as may be decided by the Committee
from time to time, subject to compliance with the applicable laws.
The Company has a Compensation Committee, comprising of a majority of independent directors. This Committee
will be fully empowered to administer the Scheme 2018.

The movement in the stock option under the “Scheme 2018”
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

Options Average Options Average
Exercise Exercise
Price (`̀̀̀̀) Price (`̀̀̀̀)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,19,600 10.00 1,08,600 10.00
Granted during the year 61,308 10.00 11,000 10.00
Expired/Lapsed during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,80,908 10.00 1,19,600 10.00

The expenses arising from share-based payment transaction recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as part of
employee benefit expense ` 26.81 million (Previous Year: ` 30.71 million).
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47. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against

the Company for holding Benami property.
(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the

statutory period.
(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(iv) The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the

Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters
issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(v) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
(vi) Micro, small and medium enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding
for more than 45 days as at the end of the year. The information as required to be disclosed in relation to
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company.

(` in million)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 218.42 177.40
the end of the year
The interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to 0.10 0.09
any supplier as at the end of the year
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of - -
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of - -
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the - -
end of the year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable - -
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under the MSMED Act

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
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(vii)Transactions with Struck off Companies
The transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
the Companies Act, 1956 are as under:

For the year/As at March 31 2025: (` in million)
Name of struck off company Nature of Amount of Balance Relationship

transactions transactions outstanding with struck
off company

Laxmi Agro-Industrial Consultants Payable 46.63 6.10 External
Vendor

For the year/As at March 31 2024: (` in million)
Name of struck off company Nature of Amount of Balance Relationship

transactions transactions outstanding with struck
off company

Laxmi Agro-Industrial Consultants Payable 3.09 0.24 External
Vendor

viii)CSR expenses
Expenditure related to corporate social responsibility as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Schedule VII, thereof is tabulated as under:

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 12.73 11.45
Amount of expenditure incurred 12.73 11.45
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
Total of Previous years shortfall - -
Reason for shortfall - -
Nature of CSR activities Health, Education Health, Education

& Livelihood & Livelihood
Details of related party transactions* 12.73 11.45

* The Group has established an Organisation for CSR activities namely Jubilant Bhartia Foundation and the
Company contribute their amount to the same.

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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48. RATIO
Sr. Particulars For the For the Change Reason for change
No. year ended year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a) Current Ratio (number of times) 1.45 1.21 19.61%

[Current assets / Current Liabilities]
b) Debt - Equity Ratio (number of times) 0.17 0.62 -72.14% Due to increase in share holders’

[Total Debt(i)/Shareholders’ Equity(ii)] equity and change in borrowings
c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (number of times) 3.61 1.24 191.22% Decrease in debt obligation

[Earnings available for debt service(iii)/
Debt service(iv)]

d) Return on Equity (number of times) 0.32 0.12 161.33% Due to increase in share holders’
[Net profit after tax/Average shareholders’ equity] equity and increase in profit after tax

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio (number of times) 4.28 3.53 21.28% Due to increase in consumption
[Raw material consumed(v)/Average inventory(vi)]

f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 5.66 4.68 20.87% Due to increase in revenue
(number of times) from operations
[Revenue from operations/Average trade
receivables)

g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (number of times) 4.87 3.95 23.03% Due to increase in consumption
[Cost of materials consumed(vii)/ Average trade
payables)

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio (number of times) 9.54 12.70 -24.91% Due to increase in revenue
[Revenue from operations/Working capital) from operations

i) Net Profit Ratio (%) 0.06 0.02 165.45% Due to one time impact of
[Net profit after tax/Revenue from operations] exceptional items in previous year

j) Return on Capital Employed (number of times) 0.34 0.15 130.71% Increase in profit before interest
[Profit before interest and tax/Capital employed(viii)] and tax

k) Return on Investments (number of times) - - - Company carry a nominal
[Net profit after tax/Average investments) amount of investment

Notes:
i Total debts includes non-current and current borrowings.
ii Equity = Equity share capital + Other equity.
iii Earning available for debt service = Net profit after taxes + Depreciation and amortization + Interest + Employee

share-based payment expenses + adjustment of profit/(loss) on sale of property, plant & equipment and
property, plant & equipment written off.

iv Debt Service = Interest + Lease payments + Principal repayment of non-current borrowings .
v Raw material consumed includes Cost of material consumed, Purchase of stock-in-trade and changes in

inventories of finished goods. Stock-in-trade and work-in-progress.
vi Inventory includes Raw materials (including goods-in-transit), Work-in-progress, Finished goods, Stock-in-

trade, Stores and spares, Fuel and packing materials.
vii Includes Cost of material consumed and Purchase of stock-in-trade.
viii Capital employed includes Shareholders’ Equity, non-current borrowings, current borrowings and adjustment

of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities.
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49. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Profit computation for basic & diluted earnings

per share of `̀̀̀̀ 10/- each
Net profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss from ` in million 887.19 273.94
continuing operations available for equity shareholders
Net loss as per Statement of Profit & Loss from ` in million (5.47) (9.59)
discontinued operations available for equity shareholders
Net profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss from ` in million 881.72 264.35
continuing and discontinued operations available for
equity shareholders

II Weighted average number of equity shares for
earnings per share
(A) For basic earnings per share Nos 1,50,67,101 1,50,67,101
(B) For diluted earnings per share:

No of shares for Basic EPS as per II (A) Nos 1,50,67,101 1,50,67,101
Add: Weighted average outstanding options Nos 2,80,772 1,80,258
related to employee stock options
No of shares for diluted earnings per share Nos 1,53,47,873 1,52,47,359

III Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
continuing operations:
Basic ` 58.88 18.18
Diluted ` 57.81 17.97
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
discontinued operations:
Basic ` (0.36) (0.64)
Diluted ` (0.36) (0.64)
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic ` 58.52 17.54
Diluted ` 57.45 17.33

Notes to the financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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50. Previous year figures have been re-grouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to conform current year’s
classification.

The accompanying notes “1” to “50” form an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432
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To the Members of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its wholly owned
subsidiary Jubilant Industries Inc., USA (“the Subsidiary
Company”) being the company incorporated outside India
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred
to as the “Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at

Independent Auditor’s Report

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls
and substantive procedures which included the following:
• Evaluate and test the controls for managing segment-wise trade

receivables and subsequent recovery.
• Validated the assumptions underlying the Expected Credit Loss

policy as per Ind AS 109.
• Assess the recoverability and provisions of long outstanding/

disputed receivables, where considered doubtful for recovery.
• Obtain independent confirmations and perform alternate audit

procedures in case of non-responses.
• Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related

disclosure.

March 31, 2025, the consolidated profit, total consolidated
comprehensive income, the consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Valuation of trade receivables
Trade receivables comprise a significant portion
of the liquid assets of the Company.
Accordingly, the estimation of the allowance for
trade receivables is a significant judgement area
and is therefore considered a key audit matter.

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited164

Key Audit Matter Audit Response

Existence Valuation of inventory
Inventory comprises a significant portion of the
liquid assets of the Company. Various procedures
are involved in validating inventory quantities
across locations.

Principal Audit Procedures
Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls
and substantive procedures which included the following:
• Identify and assess segment-wise slow-moving material for

valuation and the process of providing provision to capture
obsolescence.

• Overall inventory reconciliation including opening stock,
purchases, consumption and closing stock.

• Review the policy of physical verification of inventory and its
operational implementation.

• Obtain net realisable value for all products and evaluate
reasonableness of carrying value of inventories.

• Assess the appropriateness and completeness of the related
disclosure.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does
not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity, and consolidated cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are

responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
respective entities to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in
the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it



Annual Report 2024-25 165

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this consolidated
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. The
subsidiary company being incorporated outside India,
provisions of Section 143(3)(i) of the Act are not
applicable to such subsidiary.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance of
the Holding Company and other such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by the paragraph 3 (xxi) Companies

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020
reports of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information

and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
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purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements have been kept
by the Group, including relevant records so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company and
subsidiary company as on March 31, 2025, and
taken on record by the respective Board of
Directors, none of the directors of the Holding
Company and subsidiary company are disqualified
as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting and
operating effectiveness of such controls of the
Holding Company please refer to our separate
report issued on the standalone financial
statements. The reporting on internal financial
controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Act does not apply to the foreign
subsidiary included in the consolidated financial
statements.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its
directors during the year is in compliance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
(i) The Holding Company has disclosed the

impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its consolidated financial statements
– Refer Note 40 on Contingent Liabilities;

(ii) The Group did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses
does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

(iv) (a) The Management of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary has represented that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or its subsidiary to
or in any other person or entity, outside
the Group, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or its subsidiary (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company or its subsidiary shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has
been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us
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to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain
any material misstatement.

(v) The Holding Company has not declared or paid
any dividend during the year and until the date
of this report.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test
checks, the Holding Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all the
relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with and the audit trail
has been preserved by the Holding Company
as per statutory requirements for record

retention. The Subsidiary Company being
incorporated outside India, reporting under
Rule 11(g) is not applicable in respect of such
subsidiary.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 25098308BMKWHG4654

Date: May 29, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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(` in million)
Notes As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,799.51 1,707.13
Capital work-in-progress 4 194.70 46.14
Other intangible assets 5 4.49 7.61
Intangible assets under development 6 15.40 -
Financial assets
(i) Loans 7 0.70 0.86
(ii) Other financial assets 8 15.38 13.86
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 0.12 25.20
Other non-current assets 10 24.95 26.18
Total non-current assets 2,055.25 1,826.98
Current assets
Inventories 11 1,905.30 2,351.20
Financial assets
(i) Investments 12 0.66 0.84
(ii) Trade receivables 13 2,874.70 2,461.10
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 (a) 58.87 152.08
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 14 (b) 0.55 1.71
(v) Loans 7 1.13 0.59
(vi) Other financial assets 8 4.53 6.47
Current tax assets (net) 23.74 52.27
Other current assets 10 424.84 595.69
Total current assets 5,294.32 5,621.95
Assets classified as held for sale 3 0.43 0.43
Total Assets 7,350.00 7,449.36

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2025
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Contd...)
as at 31 March 2025

(` in million)
Notes As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 150.67 150.67
Other equity 15 (a) 3,104.43 2,202.05
Total equity 3,255.10 2,352.72
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 (a) 28.33 119.76
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 (b) 187.47 171.32
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17 96.17 79.18
Provisions 18 130.29 119.64
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9 19.85 -
Total non-current liabilities 462.11 489.90
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 (c) 527.91 1,314.85
(ia) Lease liabilities 16 (d) 27.28 14.27
(ii) Trade payables:

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19 218.42 177.45
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 19 1,416.88 1,715.01
enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,054.39 894.12
Other current liabilities 20 253.66 410.57
Provisions 18 115.89 74.40
Current tax liabilities (net) 18.36 6.07
Total current liabilities 3,632.79 4,606.74
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,350.00 7,449.36
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1 & 2
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 3 to 49

The accompanying notes “1” to “49” form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432
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(` in million)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 21 15,610.30 12,532.63
Other Income 22 17.49 14.19
Total income 15,627.79 12,546.82
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 7,856.40 6,862.24
Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 721.57 325.08
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade 25 127.23 (90.71)
and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense 26 1,661.21 1,298.03
Finance costs 27 134.60 196.35
Depreciation & amortization expense 28 161.02 150.47
Other expenses 29 3,786.70 3,065.84
Total expenses 14,448.73 11,807.30
Profit before exceptional items and tax from 1,179.06 739.52
continuing operations
Exceptional items 43 - 334.82
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,179.06 404.70
Tax Expenses: 30
- Current Tax 250.30 3.31
- Deferred tax charge 45.70 94.61
Net profit for the year from continuing operations 883.06 306.78
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations before tax 32 (5.47) (9.59)
Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
Net loss for the year from discontinued operations (5.47) (9.59)
Net profit for the year from continuing operations and 877.59 297.19
discontinued operations
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of investments which are classified (0.18) 0.37
at fair value through OCI
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (3.08) (4.66)
Income tax credit relating to items that will not be 30 (0.81) (1.09)
reclassified to profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss and its
related income tax effects (Net of income tax)
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements 0.32 0.18
of foreign operations
Cash hedge reserve 0.15 0.11
Income tax charge relating to items that will be reclassified 30 0.04 0.03
to profit or loss
Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) (2.02) (2.94)
Total comprehensive income for the year 875.57 294.25

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

(` in million)
Notes For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit is attributable to:
Owners of the Company 877.59 297.19
Non-controlling interests - -

877.59 297.19
Other comprehensive loss is attributable to:
Owners of the Company (2.02) (2.94)
Non-controlling interests - -

(2.02) (2.94)
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
Owners of the Company 875.57 294.25
Non-controlling interests - -

875.57 294.25
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each 48
(Previous year: per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each):
From continuing operations
Basic ` 58.61 20.36
Diluted ` 57.53 20.12
From discontinued operations
Basic ` (0.36) (0.64)
Diluted ` (0.36) (0.64)
From continuing operations and discontinued
operations
Basic ` 58.25 19.72
Diluted ` 57.17 19.48
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1 & 2
Notes to the consolidated financial statements 3 to 49

The accompanying notes “1” to “49” form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432
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(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit/(loss) before tax
Continuing operations  1,179.06  404.70
Discontinued operations  (5.47)  (9.59)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortization expense 161.02 150.48
Loss on sale/disposal/discard/impairment of property, -  1.77
plant and equipment (net)
Finance costs 134.60 196.35
Employee share-based payment expense 26.81 30.71
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange (net)  (0.38)  (1.13)
Loss/(Gain) on termination of lease  0.04  (0.60)
Property, plant and equipment written off  2.57  20.66
Interest income  (3.09)  (0.70)

 321.57  397.54
Operating cash flow before working capital changes  1,495.16  792.65
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade receivables, loans, other financial assets and (248.04)  (137.11)
other assets
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  445.89  (477.70)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, other financial liabilities, (191.66)  633.61
other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from operations  1,501.35  811.45
Direct taxes (paid)/refund (net)  (207.92)  (55.35)
Net cash generated from operating activities  1,293.43  756.10

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and other (353.50)  (199.19)
intangible assets
Sale of property, plant and equipment  1.64  11.07
Interest received 1.15 1.27
Movement in other bank balances  1.16  -
Net cash used in investing activities  (349.55)  (186.85)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
C. Cash flow arising from financing activities:

Proceeds from long term borrowings (Refer note 37)  -  170.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (Refer note 37)  (160.94)  (295.66)
Payment of lease obligation  (38.39)  (43.39)
Repayment of short term borrowings (net) (717.43)  (137.24)
(Refer note 37)
Finance costs paid  (120.65)  (163.96)
Net cash outflow in course of financing activities  (1,037.41)  (470.25)

D. Effect of exchange rate changes
Exchange difference in translating the financial statements  0.32  0.18
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C+D)  (93.21)  99.18
Add: Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  152.08  52.90
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year  58.87  152.08

(` in million)
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance With Banks
- On current accounts  58.87  152.06
Cash on hand  -  0.02

58.87  152.08

Notes:
i) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7

“Statement of Cash Flows”.
ii) Acquisition/Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ other intangible assets includes movement of capital work-

in-progress/ intangible assets under development and capital advances/payables during the year.

In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025

1. Corporate Information
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (the
Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended
on 31 March 2025 comprise the Company and its
subsidiary (together referred to as “the Group”).
Presently, the Group is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sale of agri, industrial polymers and
consumer products. The Group caters to both domestic
and international markets. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Bhartiagram, Gajraula District
Amroha-244 223.
These financial statements were authorised for issuance
by the Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting held on May 29, 2025.

2. Material accounting policies
This note provides material accounting policies adopted
and applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The financial
statements of the Company are presented in
Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to the
nearest million, except per share data and
unless stated otherwise.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost convention
on accrual basis except for the following
material items those have been measured at
fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value (refer accounting
policy regarding financial instruments);

- Defined benefit plans and other long-term
employee benefits;

- Share-based expense transactions;
- Investment in equity instruments.

(b) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprises
the financial statement of the Company and its
subsidiary as at 31 March 2025. Subsidiaries are
those entities in which the parent directly or
indirectly has interest more than 50% of the voting
power or otherwise control the composition of the
board or governing body so as to obtain economic
benefits from activities.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared
using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group
member’s financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.
The details of the consolidated entities are as
follows:

Sr. Name Country of Name of the Percentage of
No. Incorporation Parent ownership

1 Jubilant Industries Inc. United States of Jubilant Agri and 100%
USA America Consumer Products Ltd.

(c) Consolidation procedure
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
combined on a line-by–line basis by adding
together the like items of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group

balances and intra-group transactions and
unrealized profits or losses in accordance with IND
AS 110 –‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended time to time. The deferred tax to
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

be recognised for temporary differences arises from
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra
group transactions.

(d) Business combinations
Business combinations (other than common control
business combinations) are accounted for using the
purchase (acquisitions) method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the
fair value of any contingent consideration.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at fair value at
the date of acquisition. Transaction costs incurred
in connection with a business combination are
expenses as incurred.
The excess of the consideration transferred over
the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised
in the other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided
there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons
for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase.
Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholder that controls the Group are
accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented or, if later, at the date common control
was established; for this purpose comparatives are
revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity
of the reserves is preserved and they appear in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in
the same form in which they appeared in the
financial statement of the acquired entity. The
differences, if any, between the consideration and
the amount of share capital of the acquired entity
is transferred to capital reserve.

(e) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the
Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when:

• It is expected to be realised or intended to be
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is expected to be realised within twelve

months after the reporting period; or
• It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted

from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating

cycle;
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period; or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the

settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Each entity
of the Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for the purpose of current-non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

(f) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and
intangible assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items
of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost, which includes capitalized finance costs,
less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. The cost of an item of
a PPE comprises its purchase price including
import duty, and other non-refundable taxes
or levies and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition of
its intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.
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Expenditure incurred on start up and
commissioning of the project and/ or
substantial expansion, including the
expenditure incurred on trial runs (net of trial
run receipts, if any) up to the date of
commencement of commercial production are
capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as the appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.
Advances paid towards acquisition of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each
Consolidated Balance Sheet date, are shown
under other non-current assets and cost of
assets not ready for intended use before the
year end, are shown as capital work-in-
progress.

(ii) Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired (including

implementation of software system) and in
process research and development are
measured initially at cost.
After initial recognition, an intangible asset is
carried at its cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized
only when it increases the future economic
benefits from the specific asset to which it
related.
Expenditure on intangible assets eligible for
capitalisation are carried as Intangible assets
under development where such assets are not
yet ready for their intended use.

(iii) Depreciation and amortisation methods,
estimated useful lives and residual value
For Indian entities, depreciation is provided on
straight line basis on the original cost/
acquisition cost of assets or other amounts
substituted for cost of fixed assets as per the
useful life specified in Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of
the Act, read with notification dated 29 August,
2014 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
except for the following classes of fixed assets
which are depreciated based on the internal
technical assessment of the management as
under:

Category of assets Management estimate Useful life as per
of useful life Schedule II

Motor Vehicles under finance lease Tenure of lease or 5 years 8 years
whichever is shorter

Employee perquisite related assets 5 years, being the period 10 years
(included in office equipment) of perquisite scheme
Computers covered under 5 years, being the period 3 years
perquisite scheme of perquisite scheme

Depreciation on assets added/ disposed off
during the year has been provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date/month of
addition/ disposal.
Leasehold land, which qualify as finance lease
is amortised over the lease period on straight
line basis.
Software systems are being amortised over a
period of five years or its useful life whichever
is shorter.

Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted, if
appropriate.

(iv) De-recognition
A property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use and disposal. Losses
arising from retirement and gains or losses

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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arising from disposal of a tangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(g) Discontinued operations and non-current assets
held for sale
Discontinued operations is a component of the
Group that has been disposed of or classified as
held for sale and represents a major line of business.
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that they will be recovered
primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.
Such assets are generally measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale
and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Once classified as held for sale, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are no longer
depreciated or amortised.

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The Group’s
non-financial assets other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs) represents the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of
its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised
in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Group reviews at reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

(i) Financial instrument
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date the
Group commits to purchase or sale the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)
• Debts instruments, derivatives and equity

instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL)

• Equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised
cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model

whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking in to account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in other income in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI in
both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved

both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent
SPPI.

Debt instruments included with in the FVOCI
category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements
are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL
FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments.
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a
debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised

cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Equity investments
For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
equity instruments are classified in two categories:
- Equity instruments at fair value through profit

or loss (FVPL)
- Equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI)
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are
measured at fair value. Equity Instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group
makes such election on an instrument by
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument
as at FVOCI then all fair value changes on the
instrument as at FVOVI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Impairment of Financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowance using the
expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or
loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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significant financing component is measured at an
amount to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with
contractual cash flows other than trade receivable,
ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal), that is required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to
the amount that is required to be recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Group’s Balance Sheet) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired, or
• The Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass through’ arrangement and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and do what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as

such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are
recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain
or loss on de-recognition is also recognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Consolidated Statements of Profit and Loss.

Compound financial instruments
The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity
component. The equity component is recognised
initially as the difference between the fair value of
the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and the equity components, if material, in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities
Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge
accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
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trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted
for at FVPL. They are presented as current assets
or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re- measured to their fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged.
The Group designates their derivatives as hedges
of commodity price risk and related foreign
exchange risk associated with the cash flows of
assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges). The Group
documents at the inception of the hedging
transaction the economic relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items including
whether the hedging instrument is expected to
offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The
Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions at the inception of each hedge
relationship. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a
current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge
accounting
The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognized in cash flow hedging
reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses).
When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast
transactions, the Group designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract as the hedging
instrument. The gains and losses relating to the
effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognized in the cash
flow hedging reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to
profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast
purchase that is hedged takes place).
When the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset (for
example inventory), the amounts accumulated in
equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:
With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of the forward contracts, the deferred
hedging gains and losses are included within the
initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognized in profit or loss as the hedged
item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost
of sales).
When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging
in equity at that time remains in equity until the
forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of
hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss within
other gains/(losses).
If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is
no longer optimal but the risk management
objective remains unchanged and the hedge
continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the
hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting
either the volume of the hedging instrument or the
volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio
aligns with the ratio used for risk management
purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated
and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of
the hedge relationship rebalancing.

Derivatives that are not designated as hedges
The Group enters certain derivative contracts to
hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Such contracts are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss and are included in statement
of profit and loss.

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an
asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not
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separated. Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are
separated only if the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks
of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related
to the host contracts are not separated.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set
and the net amount presented in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the amounts and is intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(j) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value except scrap, which is valued at net
estimated realizable value.

The methods of determining cost of various categories of inventories are as follows:
Raw materials Weighted average method
Work-in-progress and finished Variable cost at weighted average including an appropriate share of
goods (manufactured) variable and fixed production overheads. Fixed production overheads

are included based on normal capacity of production facilities
Finished goods (traded) Cost of purchases
Stores & spares Weighted average method
Fuel and Packing materials etc Weighted average method
Goods-in-transit Cost of purchases

Cost includes all direct costs, cost of conversion
and appropriate portion of variable and fixed
production overheads and such other costs
incurred as to bring the inventory to its present
location and condition inclusive of excise duty/any
other tax wherever applicable.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion/ reprocessing and
the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
The net realizable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling price of
related finished products. Raw materials and other
supplies held for use in the production of finished
goods are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it’s
estimated that the cost of finished goods will
exceed their net realizable value.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(l) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that effects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, the receivable
is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited184

(m) Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of
possible obligations that may arise from past events
but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continuously and if
it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the assets and related income
are recognized in the period in which the change
occurs.
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual
expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows: (i)
estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for;
(ii) uncalled liability on shares and other
investments partly paid; (iii) funding related
commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint
venture companies; and (iv) other non-cancellable
commitments, if any, to the extent they are
considered material and relevant in the opinion of
management. Other commitments related to sales/
procurements made in the normal course of
business are not disclosed to avoid excessive
details.

(n) Revenue recognition
The Group’s revenue is derived from single
performance obligation under arrangements in
which the transfer of control of product and the
fulfilment of Group’s performance obligation occur
at the same time.
Revenue from sale of products is recognised when
the property in the goods or all significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the products have
been transferred to the buyer, and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the
consideration that will be derived from the sale of
products as well as regarding its collection.
Revenue includes only those sales for which the
Group has acted as a principal in the transaction,
takes title to the products, and has the risks and
rewards of ownership, including the risk of loss for
collection, delivery and returns. Any sales for which
Group has acted as an agent without assuming the
risks and rewards of ownership have been reported
on a net basis.

Goods sold on consignment are recorded as
inventory until goods are sold by the consignee to
the end customer.
Subsidy in respect of fertilizer being disbursed by
the Central Government of India is included in
turnover and the same is recognized based upon
the latest notified rates and only to the extent that
the realization is reasonably assured.
In case of revenue arrangements with tie up units,
the group has concluded that it is acting as an agent
in all such revenue arrangements since the group
is not the primary obligor in all such revenue
arrangements and has no pricing latitude and is
not exposed to inventory and credit risks. Group
earns fixed fee for such sales which is recognised
as service income.
Sale of utility is recognized on delivery of the same
to the purchaser and when no significant
uncertainty exists as to its realization.
Export incentives entitlements are recognized as
income when the right to receive credit as per the
terms of the scheme is established in respect of
exports made, and where no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant
export proceeds exists.
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to
that performance obligation. Revenue is recognized
to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.
Taxes (GST) collected on behalf of the government
are excluded from Revenue. The transaction price
of goods sold and services rendered is net of
variable consideration on account returns,
discounts, customer claims and rebates, etc.

Other income recognition:
Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive the income is established. Income from
interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing
securities is recognized on time proportionate
basis. Other non-operating revenue is recognised
in accordance with terms of underlying asset.

(o) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits:  All employee

benefits falling due within twelve months of
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the end of the period in which the employees
render the related services are classified as
short-term employee benefits, which include
benefits like salaries, wages, short term
compensated absences, performance
incentives, etc. and are recognised as expenses
in the period in which the employee renders
the related service and measured accordingly.

(ii) Post-employment benefits: Post employment
benefit plans are classified into defined benefits
plans and defined contribution plans as under:
a) Gratuity

The Group has an obligation towards
gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
covering eligible employees. The plan
provides for a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount based on the
respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment. The liability in
respect of gratuity (applicable for Indian
entities of the Group), is recognized in the
books of accounts based on actuarial
valuation by an independent actuary. The
gratuity liability for certain employees of
the one of the units of the Group is funded
with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

b) Superannuation
Certain employees of the Group are also
participants in the superannuation plan
(‘the Plan’), a defined contribution plan.
Contribution made by the Group to the
Plan during the year is charged to
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Provident Fund
The Company’s contribution to the
provident fund is deposited with Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner for its
employees in India. The Company’s
contribution to the provident fund is
charged to Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss. This is treated as defined
contribution plan.

d) Foreign subsidiary make contribution to
various social security plans and insurance

schemes as per local requirements and
generally accepted practices in its country
of incorporation. Such contributions are
charged to Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss on accrual basis in the year
in which liability to pay arise.

(iii) Other long-term employee benefits:
Compensated absences
As per the Group’s policy, eligible leaves can be
accumulated by the employees and carried forward
to future periods to either be utilised during the
service, or encashed. Encashment can be made
during service, on early retirement, on withdrawal
of scheme, at resignation and upon death of
employee. Accumulated compensated absences
are treated as other long-term employee benefits.
The Group’s liability in respect of other long-term
employee benefits is recognized in the books of
accounts based on actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit method as at Balance Sheet
date by and independent actuary. Actuarial losses/
gains are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

(iv) Termination benefits:
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense
when, as a result of a past event, the Company has
a present obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

(v) Actuarial Valuation
The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans
is accrued in the books of accounts on the basis of
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Project Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each year of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employees benefit entitlement
and measure each unit separately to build up the
final obligation. The obligation is measured at the
present value of estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present
value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government
securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having
maturity periods approximating to the terms of
related obligation.
Re-measurement gains and losses in respect of all
defined benefit plans arising from experience
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adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. They are
included in retained earnings in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in the Equity and in the
Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognized
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of
any defined benefit plan are recognized when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Any differential
between the plan assets (for a funded defined
benefit plan) and the defined benefit obligation as
per actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability if
it is a deficit or as an asset if it is a surplus (to the
extent of the lower of present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reduction in future contribution
to the plan).
Past service cost is recognised as an expense in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on
a straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. To the extent that the
benefits are already vested immediately following
the introduction of, or changes to, a defined benefit
plan, the past service cost is recognised
immediately in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss. Past service cost may be either
positive (where benefits are introduced or
improved) or negative (where existing benefits are
reduced).

(p) Share based expense
The grant date fair value of options granted (net
of estimated forfeiture) to employees of the Group
is recognized as an employee expense, and those
granted to employees of subsidiaries is considered
as the Company’s equity contribution and is added
to the carrying value of investment in the respective
subsidiaries, with a corresponding increase in share
based expense reserve. The expense is recorded
for separately each vesting portion of the award as
if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The
increase in equity recognized in connection with
share based payment transaction is presented as a
separate component in equity under “share based
expense reserve”. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of

stock options that vest. For the option awards, grant
date fair value is determined under the option-
pricing model (Black-Scholes-Model). Forfeitures
are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

(q) Finance costs
Finance costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Finance cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the finance costs. Finance costs that
are directly attributable to the construction or
production or development of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
Qualifying assets are assets that are necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. All other finance costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the finance costs eligible for capitalization.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Ancillary costs
incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings are amortised over the period of such
borrowings.

(r) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. It is recognised in Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in OCI.

• Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payable or receivable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received after considering
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 187

measured using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date in
the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis simultaneously.

• Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial

recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting not taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to freehold
land and investment in subsidiaries to the
extent that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future;

- taxable temporary differences arising on
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if there is legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis simultaneously.
Deferred income tax is not provided on the
undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries
where it is expected that the earnings of the
subsidiary will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

(s) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Right-of-use assets
The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Lease Liability
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognized as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The CEO and
Managing Director of the Parent Company is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and
accordingly identified as the chief operating
decision maker. Revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a
whole and are not allocable to segments on a
reasonable basis, have been treated as “un-
allocable revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities”, as
the case may be.

(u) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee (INR), which is also the Parent company’s
functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at Balance
Sheet date exchange rate are generally
recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated in to the
presentation currency as follows:
• Share capital and opening reserves and

surplus are carried at historical cost.
• All assets and liabilities, both monetary and

non-monetary, (excluding share capital,
opening reserve and surplus) are
translated using closing rates at Balance
Sheet date.

• Profit and Loss items are translated at the
respective year to dates average rates or
the exchange rate that approximates the
actual exchange rate on the date of
specific transaction.

• Contingent liabilities are translated at the
closing rates at Balance Sheet date.

• All resulting exchange differences are
recognised on Other Comprehensive
Income.
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When a foreign operation is sold, the
associated cumulative exchange differences
are classified to profit or loss, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.
The items of Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement are translated at the respective
average rates or the exchange rate that
approximates the actual exchange rate on date
of specific transaction. The impact of changes
in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalent
held in foreign currency is included in effect of
exchange rate changes.

(v) Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate and presented within other income.
Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets and presented within other
income.

(w) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share, is calculated by
dividing:
• the profit attributable to owners of the

Group
• by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share, adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:
• The after income tax effect of interest and

other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

• The weighted average number of
additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

(x) Measurement of fair values
A number of the accounting policies and
disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.
Fair values are categorised into different level in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability, those are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable data).
The Group has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.
The finance team regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, is used to measure fair
values, then the finance team assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations met the
requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should
be classified.
When measuring the fair values of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value
of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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The Group recognises transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made
in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the respective
notes.

(y) Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future period
affected. In particular, information about significant
areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Consolidated Financial
Statements is included in the following notes.
• Recognition and estimation of tax expense

including deferred tax – Note 30.
• Estimated impairment of financial assets and

non-financial assets- Note 2(h) and 2(i).

• Assessment of useful life of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset- Note 2(f).

• Estimation of assets and obligations relating
to employee benefits- Note 33.

• Share-based expense- Note 44.
• Valuation of inventories- Note 2(j).
• Recognition of revenue and related accruals-

Note 2(n).
• Recognition and measurement of contingency:

Key assumption about the likelihood and
magnitude of an outflow of resources- Note
40.

• Lease classification- Note 42.
• Fair value measurements Note 2(x).

(z) Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new
standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS –
117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind
AS 116 – Leases, relating to sale and leaseback
transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April
01, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant
impact in its consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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4. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 46.14 48.23
Additions during the year 351.42 195.18
Capitalized during the year 202.86 197.27
Balance at the end of the year 194.70 46.14

4.1 Ageing of capital work-in-progress
As at 31 March 2025 (` in million)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Description Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 172.62 22.08 - - 194.70
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 172.62 22.08 - - 194.70

As at 31 March 2024 (` in million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Description Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress 45.80 0.34 - - 46.14
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 45.80 0.34 - - 46.14

4.2 Expected completion schedule of capital work-in-progress where cost or time overrun has exceeded original
plan
As at 31 March 2025 (` in million)

To be completed
Description Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress:
HC2102-Proposal for new R & D centre at Greater 24.17 - - -
Noida for adhesive business
HC2094-Propose design consultancy required for 0.85 - - -
establishing R & D laboratory
CG3510-Procurement of new weighing balances in 0.18 - - -
wood finish plant
CG3516-To increase manufacturing capacity of all 5.46 - - -
grades of packaging adhesives (Acyclic and VAE)
AG3526-Procurement of new card punching machine at 0.14 - - -
fertilizer plant gate and fertilizer office in Gajraula plant

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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As at 31 March 2025 (` in million)
To be completed

Description Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

AG3523-Spent acid tank requires replacement at 1.26 - - -
Gajraula (SSP plant)
CG3533-Procurement of industrial label printer 0.24 - - -
VS3443-Procurement of new stripper along with - 1.91 - -
accessories for our 5 KL reactor (Phase I)
VS3434- To design new R & D building and internal 0.26 0.53 - -
details along with infrastructure development
VS3458-New R&D Centre at Savli plant 75.40 19.14 - -
VS3504-Engineering consultancy charges for new 0.93 - - -
SPVA plant at Savli
VS3497-Mooney Viscometer software upgradation 1.40 - - -
VS3517-Consultancy charges for designing of new 0.45 - - -
ETP for Latex plant
VS3530 Replacement of old damaged analytical 0.08 - - -
weight balance
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

As at 31 March 2024 (` in million)
To be completed

Description Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

CP3493 - To procure required equipments for new 0.53 - - -
project anaerobic adhesive
VS3426 - Installation of batch reactor to meet 13.73 - - -
business demand
VS3443 -Procurement of new stripper for our 5KL 2.38 - - -
reactor along with accessories
VS3434 -New R & D building with infrastructure 0.53 - - -
development
VS3475 - Installation of refrigerated container for 0.30 - - -
storage of 2VP drums
VS3477 - BIS 11356 Registration -SBR Latex 2.14 - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Additions during the year 17.01 0.99
Capitalized during the year 1.61 0.99
Balance at the end of the year 15.40 -

6.1 Ageing of intangible assets under development
(` in million)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Projects in progress 15.40 - - - 15.40
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 15.40 - - - 15.40

(` in million)
Amount in CWIP for a period of

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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6.2 Expected completion schedule of intangible assets under development where cost or time overrun has
exceeded original plan

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2025 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress:
HC2112- Implement SAP S/4 HANA 14.85 - - -
HC2071 -New control manager portal (IAT Tool) - 0.55 - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

(` in million)
To be completed

As at 31 March 2024 Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

7. LOANS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Loan to employees 0.70 1.13 0.86 0.59
Total loans 0.70 1.13 0.86 0.59

8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Interest accrued - 1.07 - 0.69
Security deposits 15.09 3.46 13.57 3.43
Recoverable from related parties (Refer note 39) - - - 2.35
Others 0.29 - 0.29 -
Total other financial assets 15.38 4.53 13.86 6.47

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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9. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant component
of the Group’s net deferred income tax are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
(` in million)

Provision for Expenditure Unabsorbed Others Total
compensated allowed depreciation
absences and on actual

gratuity payment
basis

As at 01 April 2023 35.36 22.62 146.26 10.57 214.81
Charged/(Credited)
- to consolidated statement of 2.27 (4.42) 85.96 7.52 91.33

profit and loss
- to other comprehensive income (1.12) - - 0.06 (1.06)
As at 31 March 2024 34.21 27.04 60.30 2.99 124.54
Charged/(Credited)
- to consolidated statement of (5.44) 3.86 60.30 0.34 59.06

profit and loss
- to other comprehensive income (0.77) - - - (0.77)
As at 31 March 2025 40.43 23.18 - 2.64 66.25

Deferred tax liabilities:
(` in million)

Depreciation, amortization and Total
other temporary differences

As at 01 April 2023 96.06 96.06
Charged/(Credited)
- to consolidated statement of profit and loss 3.28 3.28
- to other comprehensive income - -
As at 31 March 2024 99.34 99.34
Charged/(Credited)
- to consolidated statement of profit and loss (13.36) (13.36)
- to other comprehensive income - -
As at 31 March 2025 85.98 85.98

Net deferred tax assets/liabilities:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred tax assets 66.25 124.54
Deferred tax liabilities 85.98 99.34
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) (19.73) 25.20

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 199

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/liabilities (net):
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance as at the commencement of the year 25.20 118.75
Charge recognized in profit and loss during the year 45.70 94.61
Credit recognized in other comprehensive income during the year (0.77) (1.06)
Balance as at the end of the year (19.73) 25.20

Expiry period of carried forward tax losses:
Group has unabsorbed depreciation amounting to ̀  Nil (Previous Year: ̀  239.57 million) as at year end, available to
reduce future income taxes and the same can be carried forward for an indefinite period.

10. OTHER ASSETS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

(Unsecured - considered good)
Advance to suppliers - 87.84 - 37.07
Capital advances 0.99 - 2.76 -
Security deposits 19.19 - 17.07 -
Prepaid expenses 4.77 27.72 6.35 31.89
Advances to employees - 11.30 - 8.70
Recoverable from/balance with government - 264.86 - 502.12
authorities
Others - 33.12 - 15.91
Total other assets 24.95 424.84 26.18 595.69

11. INVENTORIES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw materials 635.35 994.25
[including goods-in-transit ` 181.22 million (Previous Year:
` 287.83 million)]
Work-in-progress 240.13 405.42
Finished goods 662.52 732.21
Stock-in-trade 188.33 76.39
Stores and spares 98.59 80.20
Fuel and packing materials 80.38 62.73
Total inventories 1,905.30 2,351.20
Notes:
(i) For valuation of inventories refer note 2(j).
(ii) Inventories of the Company are pledged as security for borrowings taken from banks. (Refer note 16)
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12. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

I. Quoted investment in equity shares
(at fair value through other comprehensive income)
448 (Previous Year: 448) equity shares of ` 10 each
Voith Paper Fabrics India Limited 0.66 0.84

II. Unquoted investment in equity shares (at cost)
530 (Previous Year: 530) equity shares of ` 10 each
Minerva Holding Limited* - -
132 (Previous Year: 132) equity shares of ` 10 each
Kashipur Holdings Limited* - -
Total current investments 0.66 0.84

* Shares were received free of cost under the Scheme of Arrangement (1997) approved by the Hon’ble High Court
of Allahabad.

12.1 Additional information
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 0.08 0.08
Market value of quoted investments 0.66 0.84
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments - -

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Current)
Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 2,874.70 2,461.10
Trade receivable-credit impaired 72.86 42.83

2,947.56 2,503.93
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 72.86 42.83
Total receivables 2,874.70 2,461.10

13.1 Trade receivable includes subsidy receivable ` 840.57 million (Previous Year: ` 607.59 million).
13.2 Refer note 35 for ageing of trade receivables.
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14(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance With Banks
- On current accounts 58.87 152.06
Cash on hand - 0.02
Total cash and cash equivalents 58.87 152.08

14(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Margin money with bank* 0.55 1.71
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.55 1.71
* For bank guarantees in favour of government authorities.

15. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Authorized
7,79,77,617 (Previous Year: 7,79,77,617) equity shares of ` 10 each 779.78 779,78
(Refer note 31)

779.78 779,78
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1,50,67,101 [Previous Year: 1,50,67,101 (Pending issuance)] equity 150.67 150.67
shares of ` 10 each (Refer note 31)
Total equity share capital 150.67 150.67

15.1 Movement in equity share capital:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares `̀̀̀̀ in million No. of shares `̀̀̀̀ in million
At the commencement of the year 56,08,552 56.09 56,08,552 56.09
(Before Scheme)
Add: Issued / To be issued pursuant 1,50,67,101 150.67 1,50,67,101 150.67
to Scheme (Refer note 31)
Less: Cancelled / To be cancelled 56,08,552 56.09 56,08,552 56.09
pursuant to Scheme (Refer note 31)
At the end of the year 1,50,67,101 150.67 1,50,67,101 150.67
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15.2 The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of ̀  10 each. Holder of each
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited and HS 53,18,439 35.30% 53,18,439 35.30%
Trustee Company Private Limited (Jointly acting
as Trustee on behalf of Hari Shanker Bhartia
Family Trust) (Refer note 31)
SPB Trustee Company Private Limited and SS 52,33,903 34.74% 52,33,903 34.74%
Trustee Company Private Limited (Jointly acting
as Trustee on behalf of Shyam Sunder Bhartia
Family Trust) (Refer note 31)

15.4 Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years
i) During the current year, the Company has issued 1,50,67,101 equity shares, pursuant to Composite Scheme of

Arrangement without payment being received in cash. (Refer note 31)
ii) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
iii) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.

15.5 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 % Change

No. of % held No. of % held during
shares shares the year

Kavita Bhartia 613 0.00% 613 0.00% 0.00%
Hari Shankar Bhartia 20,873 0.14% 20,873 0.14% 0.00%
Priyavrat Bhartia 253 0.00% 253 0.00% 0.00%
Shamit Bhartia 6,561 0.04% 6,561 0.04% 0.00%
Aasthi Bhartia 99 0.00% 99 0.00% 0.00%
Arjun Shanker Bhartia 99 0.00% 99 0.00% 0.00%
Shyam Sunder Bhartia 72,825 0.48% 72,825 0.48% 0.00%
Jaytee Private Limited 380 0.00% 380 0.00% 0.00%
Jubilant Infrastructure Limited 50,000 0.33% 50,000 0.33% 0.00%
Vam Holdings Limited 2,84,070 1.89% 2,84,070 1.89% 0.00%
HSB Trustee Company Private Limited 53,18,439 35.30% 53,18,439 35.30% 0.00%
and HS Trustee Company Private Limited
(Jointly acting as Trustee on behalf of
Hari Shanker Bhartia Family Trust)
(Refer note 31)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 203

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 % Change
No. of % held No. of % held during
shares shares the year

SPB Trustee Company Private Limited 52,33,903 34.74% 52,33,903 34.74% 0.00%
and SS Trustee Company Private Limited
(Jointly acting as Trustee on behalf of
Shyam Sunder Bhartia Family Trust)
(Refer note 31)
Jubilant Consumer Private Limited 2,78,522 1.85% 2,78,522 1.85% 0.00%

15(a) Other equity (` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Securities premium 1,225.42 1,225.42
General reserve 200.31 200.31
Share based expense reserve 80.24 53.43
Retained earnings 1,600.62 723.03
Items of other comprehensive income:
Equity instruments through OCI 0.45 0.59
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (10.31) (8.00)
Cash hedge reserve - (0.11)
Foreign currency translation reserve 7.70 7.38
Total other equity 3,104.43 2,202.05

(` in million)
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
16(a) Non-current borrowings

Term loans from banks
Indian rupee loans (secured) 85.00 245.94
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings 56.67 126.18
Total non-current borrowings 28.33 119.76

16(b) Lease liabilities
Non-current portion of lease liabilities 187.47 171.32
Total non-current lease liabilities 187.47 171.32

16(c) Current borrowings
From banks (Secured):
Cash credit and working capital loans (repayable on demand) 471.24 1,188.67
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 56.67 126.18
Total current borrowings 527.91 1,314.85

16(d) Lease liabilities
Current portion of lease liabilities 27.28 14.27
Total current lease liabilities 27.28 14.27
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16.1 Nature of security of non-current borrowings and other terms of repayment
16.1.1 Term loan I availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ` Nil (Previous Year: ` 50.00 million) including

current maturities of ̀  Nil (Previous Year: ̀  33.33 million) is secured by first pari passu charge on all movable
fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.2 Term loan II availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ` Nil (Previous Year: ` 54.27 million) including
current maturities of ̀  Nil (Previous Year: ̀  36.18 million) is secured by first pari passu charge on all movable
fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.3 Term loan III availed from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ̀  85.00 million (Previous Year: ̀  141.67 million)
including current maturities of ` 56.67 million (Previous Year: ` 56.67 million) is secured by first pari passu
charge on all movable fixed assets (both present and future) of the Company.

16.1.4 Term loan I availed from HDFC Bank Limited is fully repaid during the current year.
16.1.5 Term loan II availed from HDFC Bank Limited is fully repaid during the current year.
16.1.6 Term loan III availed from HDFC Bank Limited is repayable in remaining six equal quarterly instalments,

payable up to September 2026.

16.2 Nature of security of current borrowings and other terms of repayment
16.2.1 Working capital facilities (including cash credit) sanctioned by Consortium of banks are secured by a first

pari passu charge by way of hypothecation, of the entire book debts, inventories and current assets both
present and future of the Company wherever the same may be held (Pre Scheme: Including unconditional
and irrevocable corporate guarantee of the parent company in favour of bankers). Short term borrowings
from banks are availed in Indian rupees and in foreign currency.

16.2.2 The quarterly returns or statements [Financial Follow-up Report (FFR I)] by the Company for working capital
limits with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

16.2.3 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Capital creditors - 24.71 - 10.25
Employee benefits payable - 24.00 - 85.54
Security deposit 96.17 3.57 79.18 2.66
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 2.62 - 8.77
Other payables - 999.49 - 786.90
Total other financial liabilities 96.17 1,054.39 79.18 894.12

18. PROVISIONS
(` in million)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current

Provisions for employee benefits (Refer note 33) 130.29 115.72 119.64 74.10
Other provisions - 0.17 - 0.30
Total provisions 130.29 115.89 119.64 74.40
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19. TRADE PAYABLES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Current)
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 218.42 177.45
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,416.88 1,715.01
and small enterprises
Total trade payables 1,635.30 1,892.46

19.1 Trade payable ageing schedule
(` in million)

Outstanding for following periods
from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2025 Not Due Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years

Outstanding dues of micro
and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 205.87 12.55 - - - 218.42

205.87 12.55 - - - 218.42
Outstanding dues of
creditors other than
micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 1,312.72 99.21 1.24 1.31 2.40 1,416.88

1,312.72 99.21 1.24 1.31 2.40 1,416.88

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods

from due date of payment
As at 31 March 2024 Not Due Up to 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total

1 year 3 years
Outstanding dues of micro
and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 169.86 7.59 - - - 177.45

169.86 7.59 - - - 177.45
Outstanding dues of
creditors other than
micro and small enterprises
(a) Disputed - - - - - -
(b) Undisputed 1,536.41 164.80 11.07 0.63 2.10 1,715.01

1,536.41 164.80 11.07 0.63 2.10 1,715.01
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20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(` in million)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Advance from customers 153.17 68.32
Statutory dues payables 93.64 333.11
Others 6.85 9.14
Total other current liabilities 253.66 410.57

21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sale of products
- Domestic [including ` 1,655.94 million (Previous Year: ` 902.75 12,402.76 9,542.46

million) subsidy on fertilizers]
- Export 3,158.83 2,966.27
Other operating revenue 48.71 23.90
Total revenue from operations 15,610.30 12,532.63

22. OTHER INCOME
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest income [including interest on income tax refund 3.09 1.03
of ` 1.55 million (Previous Year: ` 0.16 million)]
Insurance claim 5.79 4.40
Gain on termination of lease - 0.60
Rent received - 3.46
Foreign exchange fluctuation - net 5.03 -
Other non-operating income 3.58 4.70
Total other income 17.49 14.19
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23. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Raw & process materials consumed 7,856.40 6,862.24
Total cost of materials consumed 7,856.40 6,862.24

24. PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Purchases of stock-in-trade 721.57 325.08
Total purchases of stock-in-trade 721.57 325.08

25. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance
Work-in-progress 405.42 333.70
Finished goods 732.21 737.67
Stock-in-trade 76.39 49.08
Total opening balance 1,214.02 1,120.45
Closing balance
Work-in-progress 240.13 405.42
Finished goods 662.52 732.21
Stock-in-trade 188.33 76.39
Total closing balance 1,090.98 1,214.02
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 123.04 (93.57)
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Add: Foreign currency translation adjustment 4.19 2.86
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 127.23 (90.71)
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances 1,490.17 1,172.65
Contribution to provident and other funds 65.74 50.49
Employee share based expense 26.81 10.11
Staff welfare expenses 78.49 64.78
Total employee benefits expense 1,661.21 1,298.03

27. FINANCE COSTS
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest expense 120.54 170.61
Other finance costs 13.68 23.96
Exchange difference to the extent considered 0.38 1.78
as an adjustment to finance costs
Total finance costs 134.60 196.35

28. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 156.29 143.85
[Including amortization of Right of use (ROU) assets]
Amortization of intangible assets 4.73 6.62
Total depreciation and amortization expense 161.02 150.47
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29. OTHER EXPENSES
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Power and fuel 332.08 259.56
Stores, spares and packing materials consumed 834.27 715.82
Job work charges 4.86 4.11
Repairs and maintenance:

Plant and machineries 105.87 101.46
Buildings 4.60 6.63
Others 70.86 63.99

Rent 49.16 38.15
Rates & taxes 10.64 11.37
Insurance 32.42 33.86
Advertisement, publicity & sales promotion 687.48 635.28
Travelling & other incidental expenses 224.06 164.78
Vehicle running & maintenance 2.57 2.79
Printing & stationery 6.35 10.69
Communication expenses 14.21 9.99
Staff recruitment & training 26.40 4.19
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 199.30 171.03
Directors’ sitting fees 3.02 1.72
Bank charges 17.78 17.61
Foreign exchange fluctuation - net - 1.70
CSR expenses 12.73 11.45
Freight & forwarding 862.74 638.45
Commission on Sales 54.94 39.35
Discounts, claims to customers and other selling expenses 197.93 94.18
Bad Debts/ irrecoverable advances & receivables written off (net) 21.61 0.61
Loss on termination of lease 0.04 -
Net loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1.77
Property, plant and equipment written off 2.54 20.66
Miscellaneous expenses 8.24 4.64
Total other expenses 3,786.70 3,065.84
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30. INCOME TAX
The major components of income tax expense are:
Profit or loss section

(` in million)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge for the year 249.54 5.51
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 0.76 (2.20)

250.30 3.31
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax charge 55.76 94.61
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of previous years (10.06) -

45.70 94.61
Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated statement 296.00 97.92
of profit and loss

OCI section
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Tax credit related to items that will not be reclassified to (0.81) (1.09)
profit or loss
Tax charge related to items that will be reclassified to 0.04 0.03
profit or loss
Income tax credited to OCI (0.77) (1.06)

Reconciliation between average effective rate and applicable tax rate:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Accounting profit before income tax 1,173.59 395.11
At India’s statutory income tax rate 25.168% (Previous Year: 291.56 94.17
25.168%)
- Effect of non deductible expenses 3.20 2.95
- Effect of non taxable income & others 11.57 3.00
- Change in statutory tax rate (1.03) -
- Adjustment of earlier years (9.30) (2.20)
Income tax expense reported in the Consolidated statement 296.00 97.92
of profit and loss
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31. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
(a) Composite Scheme of Arrangement (Scheme), approved by the Board on 12 August, 2022 between the following

companies:
- HSSS Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-1),
- KBHB Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-2),
- SSBPB Investment Holding Private Limited (Amalgamating Company-3),
- Jubilant Industries Limited (JIL) is the holding company of the Amalgamated company namely, Jubilant

Agri and Consumer Products Limited (JACPL), and
- Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (JACPL) (Amalgamated Company), a wholly owned subsidiary

of JIL.

(b) Pursuant to the Composite Scheme the Amalgamating companies would merge with the Company from the
appointed date i.e. July 01, 2022.
Amalgamating companies were forming part of the promoter group of the Company, which holding 10,552,342
equity shares in the Company constituting 70.04% of the Company’s paid-up equity share capital. Consequent
upon amalgamation of Amalgamating companies with the Company, shareholders of the amalgamating
companies, directly will hold shares of the Company in the same proportion as they held through the erstwhile
amalgamating companies.

(c) Upon the scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Company shall automatically stand
enhanced by the authorized share capital of the amalgamating companies.

(d) Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
(` in million)

Particulars Amount
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents A 10.68
Liabilities
Other current liabilities B 0.16
Equity
General reserve* C (38.33)
Retained earnings (Balancing figure) (A-B-C) 48.85

* Retained earnings (accumulated losses) of the amalgamating companies is adjusted with General reserve of
the Company.

(e) The above have been accounted for, in compliance with Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”.

(f) The National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench (NCLT) vide its order dated 07 August, 2024 sanctioned
the Composite Scheme of Arrangement, certified copy of the same received on 03 September, 2024. The
Scheme became effective on 03 October, 2024 upon filing of the certified copies of the NCLT order sanctioning
the Scheme with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies (Kanpur). Pursuant to the Scheme becoming
effective, all the assets and liabilities of JIL transferred to and vested in the Company (JACPL) with effect from
01 July, 2022 i.e. the Appointed Date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company on 04 November, 2024 issued and allotted
equity shares to the shareholders of Jubilant Industries Limited (“JIL”), whose name appeared in the register of
members of JIL as on record date i.e. 28 October, 2024, one equity share of ̀  10/- each in the Company, as fully
paid-up for every one equity share of ` 10/- each held by them in JIL. Subsequent to the quarter ended
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December 31, 2024, the equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on February 14, 2025 in accordance with the Scheme.

32. On September 03, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized transfer its Plant and Machinery and
Land and Building to a group company for a consideration based on an independent valuation.
The Company entered into an agreement to sell its Plant and Machinery and Land and Building for a consideration
of ` 133.00 million on securing the requisite approvals. Accordingly, the financial statements have been presented
in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 105 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS-105 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are as under:

a) Financial performance related to discontinued operations:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

i) Revenue from operations - -
ii) Other income 0.60 0.53
iii) Total revenue (i+ii) 0.60 0.53
iv) Total expenses 6.07 10.12
v) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations before tax (iii-iv) (5.47) (9.59)
vi) Tax expenses - -
vii) Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (v-vi) (5.47) (9.59)

b) Summarised Statement of cash flows of discontinued operations:
(` in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Cash flows from operating activities (1.83) (25.34)
Cash flows from investing activities 0.02 10.37
Cash flows from financing activities - -

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS IN RESPECT OF THE GROUP HAVE BEEN CALCULATED AS UNDER:
A. Defined Contribution Plans

The Group entities located in India have certain defined contribution plan such as provident fund, employee
state insurance, employee pension scheme, employee superannuation fund wherein specified percentage is
contributed to them. During the year, the Group has contributed following amounts to:

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employer’s contribution to provident fund 38.87 29.72
Employer’s contribution to employee’s pension scheme 1995 18.26 14.22
Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund 0.44 0.73
Employer’s contribution to employee state insurance 0.27 0.34

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025



Annual Report 2024-25 213

The Group entity located in United States of America have a 401(k) Plan, where in the regular, full time and
part-time employees are eligible to participate in the defined contribution plan after completion of one month
of continuous service. Participants may voluntarily contribute eligible pre-tax and post-tax compensation in
1% increments of up to 90% of their annual compensation in accordance with the annual limits as determined
by the Internal Revenue Service. Eligible employees receive a 50% match of their contributions up to 6% of
their eligible compensation. Employees above the age of 50 years may choose to contribute “ catch-up”
contributions in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service limits and are matched the same up to the
maximum Group contribution 3% of eligible compensation. The Group’s matching contributions vest 100%
after three years of service. The Group has contributed ` 0.26 million (Previous Year: ` 0.23 million) to 401(k)
plan for the year.

B. Defined Benefits Plans
i. Gratuity

In accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”, an actuarial valuation has been carried out in respect of
gratuity. The discount rate assumed is 6.90% p.a. (Previous Year: 7.13% p.a.) which is determined by reference
to market yield at the Balance Sheet date on government bonds. The retirement age has been considered at
58 years (Previous Year: 58 years) and mortality table is as per IALM (2012-14) [Previous Year: IALM (2012-14)].
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation is 9% p.a. for first three years and 5%
p.a. thereafter (Previous Year: 9% p.a. for first three years and 5% p.a. thereafter), taking into account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India in respect of gratuity scheme for
certain employees of one unit of the Group. The details of investments maintained by Life Insurance Corporation
of India are not available with the Company, hence not disclosed. The expected rate of return on plan assets is
6.50% p.a. (Previous Year: 7.00% p.a.).

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 112.85 107.69
Current service cost 16.67 12.43
Interest cost 8.01 7.91
Actuarial loss/(gain) 3.02 4.69
Benefits paid (14.65) (19.87)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 125.90 112.85

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present vale of obligation at the end of the year 125.90 112.85
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 14.38 13.49
Net liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet 111.52 99.36
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Fair value of plan assets*:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 13.49 12.54
Expected return on plan assets 0.96 0.92
Actuarial gain (0.07) 0.03
Plan assets at the end of the year 14.38 13.49

* In respect of one unit of the Group, the plan assets were invested in insurer managed funds.
Group’s best estimate of contribution during next year is ` 28.74 million (Previous Year: ` 22.98 million).

Expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits expense:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total service cost 16.67 12.43
Net interest cost 7.05 6.99
Expenses recognized in the Consolidated Statement 23.72 19.42
of Profit and Loss

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Actuarial (loss)/gain due to financial assumption change (1.71) (4.47)
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to experience adjustment (1.31) 0.22
Actuarial gain on plan assets (0.06) 0.03
Amount recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (3.08) (4.22)

Sensitivity analysis:
(` in million)

Particulars 31 March 2025
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (4.05) 4.34 4.36 (4.10)

(` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2024
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (3.39) 3.62 3.66 (3.46)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based
on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
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C. Other long term benefits (compensated absences)
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 49.11 36.45

34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
(` in million)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars Note Level of FVPL FVOCI Amortized FVPL FVOCI Amortized

hierarchy Cost Cost
Financial assets
Investments in quoted equity instruments (d) 1 - 0.66 - - 0.84 -
Trade receivables (a) - - 2,874.70 - - 2,461.10
Loans (a, b) - - 1.83 - - 1.45
Cash and cash equivalents (a) - - 58.87 - - 152.08
Other bank balances (a) - - 0.55 - - 1.71
Other financial assets (a, b) - - 19.91 - - 20.33
Total financial assets - 0.66 2,955.86 - 0.84 2,636.67
Financial liabilities
Non-current borrowings (including (c) 3 - - 85.00 - - 245.94
other current maturities)
Current borrowings (a) - - 471.24 - - 1,188.67
Trade payables (a) - - 1,635.30 - - 1,892.46
Lease liabilities (a) - - 214.75 - - 185.59
Other financial liabilities (a) - - 1,150.56 - - 973.30
Total financial liabilities - - 3,556.85 - - 4,485.96

Note:
(a) Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to

respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.
(b) Fair value of non-current financial assets and liabilities has not been disclosed as there is no significant differences

between carrying value and fair value.
(c) Fair value of non-current borrowings as below:

(` in million)
Particulars Level 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fair value

Borrowings (including other current maturities) 3 85.00 245.94
85.00 245.94

(d) The fair value is determined by using the valuation model/technique with observable/non-observable inputs
and assumptions.
There are no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024.
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Reconciliation of Level 1 fair value measurement:
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance 0.84 0.47
Additional investments - -
(Loss)/Profit recognized in other comprehensive income (0.18) 0.37
Sale of investments - -
Closing balance 0.66 0.84

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management framework
The Parent Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework.
The Group, through three layers of defense namely policies and procedures, review mechanism and assurance
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations. The Audit committee of the Board with top management oversee the formulation and
implementation of the risk management policies. The risk are identified at business unit level and mitigation plan
are identified, deliberated and reviewed at appropriate forums.

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk [see(i)];
- liquidity risk [see(ii)]; and
- market risk [see(iii)].

i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers, loans
and investments.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade receivables and other financial assets
The Group has established a credit policy under which new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness
before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group’s review
includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry
information and business intelligence. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed annually.
Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority as per policy.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are institutional, dealers or end-user customer,
their geographic location, industry, trade history with the Group and existence of previous financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables:
Based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/ current facts available in relation to
default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for trade receivables is considered low. The Group
estimates its allowance for trade receivable using lifetime expected credit loss. The balance past due for more
than 6 months (net of expected credit loss allowance) is ` 7.13 million (Previous Year: ` 64.74 million).
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Movement in Allowance for expected credit loss is as follows: (` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 42.83 39.63
Add: Provided during the year 30.17 3.31
Less: Amount written off 0.14 0.11
Balance at the end of the year 72.86 42.83

The ageing of trade receivables as on balance sheet date is given below. The age analysis has been considered
from the due date.

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2025 Not due Up to 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months to 1 year 3 years

Undisputed
Considered good  2,389.67  476.62  8.41  -  -  -  2,874.70
Which have significant
increase in credit risk  -
Credit impaired  -  -  8.41  13.14  8.19  3.34 33.08
Disputed
Considered good  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Which have significant -  -  -  -  -  -  -
increase in credit risk
Credit impaired  0.09  1.19 6.37 6.16 4.30 21.67 39.78
Total  2,389.76 477.81 23.19 19.30 12.49 25.01  2,947.56
Less: Allowance for credit 0.09  1.19 14.78 19.30 12.49 25.01 72.86
impaired balances
Total  2,389.67  476.62  8.41  -  -  -  2,874.70

(` in million)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2024 Not due Up to 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 months to 1 year 3 years

Undisputed
Considered good 2,164.41 231.95 6.90 57.84 - - 2,461.10
Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Credit impaired - - 6.90 2.96 1.50 2.48 13.84
Disputed
Considered good - - - - - - -
Which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Credit impaired - 0.22 1.02 3.98 3.59 20.18 28.99
Total 2,164.41 232.17 14.82 64.78 5.09 22.66 2,503.93
Less: Allowance for credit - 0.22 7.92 6.94 5.09 22.66 42.83
impaired balances
Total 2,164.41 231.95 6.90 57.84 - - 2,461.10
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Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivables:
With regard to all financial assets with contractual cash flows, other than trade receivables, management
believes these to be high quality assets with negligible credit risk. The management believes that the parties
from which these financial assets are recoverable, have strong capacity to meet the obligations and where the
risk of default is negligible and accordingly no provision for excepted loss has been provided on these financial
assets. Break up of financial assets other than trade receivables have been disclosed on Balance Sheet.

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.
The Group’s treasury department is responsible for managing the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements. Short term liquidity situation is reviewed daily by the Treasury. Longer term liquidity position is
reviewed on a regular basis by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are taken
according to the situation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements.

(` in million)
As at 31 March 2025 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Within More than
amount 1 year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 556.24 556.24 527.91 28.33
Trade payables 1,635.30 1,635.30 1,635.30 -
Lease liabilities 214.75 214.75 27.28 187.47
Other financial liabilities 1,150.56 1,150.56 1,054.39 96.17

(` in million)
As at 31 March 2024 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total Within More than
amount 1 year 1 year

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,434.61 1,434.61 1,314.85 119.76
Trade payables 1,892.46 1,892.46 1,892.46 -
Lease liabilities 185.59 185.59 14.27 171.32
Other financial liabilities 973.30 973.30 894.12 79.18
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iii. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will
affect the Group’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing
the return.

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has obtained foreign currency borrowing and has foreign currency
trade payable and trade receivable and is therefore, exposed to foreign currency risk.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of
the Group is as follows:

(` in million)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

USD EUR USD EUR

Trade receivable 509.32 149.72 498.23 127.95
Trade payables (383.64) (9.93) (588.80) (0.68)
Borrowings - - (47.69) -
Net exposure 125.68 139.79 (138.26) 127.27

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonable possible strengthening/ weakening of the EUR, USD currencies at year end would have affected
the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

(` in million)
Particulars Profit or loss (before tax)

Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2025
USD (1% movement) 1.26 (1.26)
EUR (1% movement) 1.40 (1.40)
31 March 2024
USD (1% movement) (1.38) 1.38
EUR (1% movement) 1.27 (1.27)

Hedging of foreign currency risk:
The Group hedge its foreign currency exposures using various hedging instruments such as forwards, options
and swaps. The objective of the hedging is to minimize the impact of currency fluctuations on the company’s
financial performance, without speculating on currency movements.
The table below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items as on the balance sheet date.
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Cash flow hedge (Hedging instrument-forward contract)
(` in million)

Carrying amount
As at 31st March 2025 Nominal Assets Liabilities Change in

Value fair value
Foreign currency risk component - Trade receivables - - - -

(` in million)
Carrying amount

As at 31st March 2024 Nominal Assets Liabilities Change in
Value fair value

Foreign currency risk component-Trade receivables 88.63 88.50 - (0.13)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are
borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity
for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Group are principally denominated in INR and USD
with a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally
on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate
mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial instruments as reported to the management
of the Group is as follows:

The following table provides a break-up of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Fixed-rate borrowings - -
Floating rate borrowings 556.24 1,434.61
Total borrowings 556.24 1,434.61

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole year.
If interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/ lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would decrease/increase by ` 1.39 million (Previous Year: ` 3.59 million). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguarding their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
‘Net Debt’ (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments) divided
by ‘Total Equity’ (as shown in the Balance sheet.

The gearing ratios were as follows:
(` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total borrowings [Refer note 16 (a) & 16 (c)] 556.24 1,434.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14 (a)] 58.87 152.08
Less: Other bank balances [Refer note 14 (b)] 0.55 1.71
Less: Current investments (Refer note 12) 0.66 0.84
Net debt 496.16 1,279.98
Total equity [Refer note 15 & 15 (a)] 3,255.10 2,352.72
Gearing ratio 0.15 0.54

No Changes were made in the objective, policies or process for managing capital during the years 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024.

37. CHANGES IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(` in million)

For the year ended As at Receipt Repayment Transaction Others As at
31 March 2025 01 April cost 31 March

2024 2025
Long term borrowings from banks 245.94 - (160.94) - - 85.00
Short term borrowings from banks 1,188.67 - (717.43) - - 471.24
Total 1,434.61 - (878.37) - - 556.24

(` in million)
For the year ended As at Receipt Repayment Transaction Others As at
31 March 2024 01 April cost 31 March

2023 2024
Long term borrowings from banks 371.60 170.00 (295.66) - - 245.94
Short term borrowings from banks 1,325.65 - (137.24) - 0.26 1,188.67
Total 1,697.25 170.00 (432.90) - 0.26 1,434.61

38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business Segment
The CEO and Managing Director of the Parent Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”. Operating Segments have been defined and presented
based on the regular review by the CODM to assess the performance of each segment and to make decision about
allocation of resources. Further, in compliance to the office memorandum vide F.No.23011/9/2023-P&K dated
18th Jan 2024 as issued by the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers “Phosphatic and
Potassic fertilizers (P&K Fertilizers)” have been reported as separate segment. Accordingly, the Group has determined
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reportable segments by the nature of its products and services, which are as follows:
a. Performance Polymers & Chemicals: Adhesives & Wood Finishes, Sulphuric Acid, Food Polymer (Solid PVA)

and Latex
b. P&K Fertilizers: Single Super Phosphate
c. Agri Nutrients: Agro Chemicals for Crop Products
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.
No operating segments have been aggregated to from the above reportable operating segments.
Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.
Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments on
reasonable basis have been included under ‘unallocable revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities’.
Finance costs and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual segments as the
underlying instruments are managed on a Group basis.
Borrowings, current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those
segments as they are also managed on a Group basis.

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024

Total Inter- Revenue Total Inter- Revenue
segment segment from external segment segment from external
revenue revenue customers revenue revenue customers

REVENUE
Performance Polymers 11,282.61 240.46 11,042.15 9,704.16 126.77 9,577.39
& Chemicals
P&K Fertilizers 4,414.82 - 4,414.82 2,822.88 - 2,822.88
Agri Nutrients 153.33 - 153.33 132.36 - 132.36
Total segment revenue 15,850.76 240.46 15,610.30 12,659.40 126.77 12,532.63
from operations

(` in million)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
RESULT
Performance Polymers & Chemicals 1,649.69 1,347.04
P&K Fertilizers (110.02) (216.30)
Agri Nutrients 52.92 22.61
Total Segment 1,592.59 1,153.35
Un-allocated corporate expenses (net of un-allocable income) 284.40 357.68
Finance costs 134.60 196.35
Exceptional items - 204.21
Profit before tax 1,173.59 395.11
Tax expense 296.00 97.92
Profit for the year 877.59 297.19
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(` in million)
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024

Segment Assets Segment Liabilities
Performance Polymers & Chemicals 4,825.75 4,376.52 2,279.85 2,408.73
P&K Fertilizers 2,167.25 2,662.68 855.42 985.38
Agri Nutrients 39.80 30.28 22.61 23.37
Segment Total 7,032.80 7,069.48 3,157.88 3,417.48
Un-allocated corporate assets/ liabilities 317.08 354.68 360.93 244.55
Total 7,349.88 7,424.16 3,518.81 3,662.03
Deferred tax asset/ liabilities 0.12 25.20 19.85 -
Borrowings - - 556.24 1,434.61
Total assets/ liabilities 7,350.00 7,449.36 4,094.90 5,096.64

Other information
(` in million)

Particulars For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024

Capital Expenditure Depreciation/ amortization

Performance Polymers & Chemicals 304.09 171.48 86.97 73.46
P&K Fertilizers 6.43 17.46 44.78 43.71
Agri Nutrients - - - -
Un-allocated 57.91 7.23 29.27 33.31
Total 368.43 196.17 161.02 150.48
Less: Related to discontinued operations - - - 0.01
Net related to continuing operations 368.43 196.17 161.02 150.47

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
1. Enterprises in which certain key management personnel are interested

Jubilant Pharmova Limited, Jubilant Ingrevia Limited, Jubilant Generics Limited, Jubilant Life Sciences (USA)
Inc., USA, Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited, Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, USA, Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc., Cadista
Pharmaceuticals Inc.

2. Key management personnel (KMP)
Mr. Manu Ahuja (CEO and Whole-time Director) up to 09 December 2023 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Jagat Sharma
(Whole-time Director) upto 26 June 2024 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Mohandeep Singh (CEO and Whole-time Director)
w.e.f. 27 June 2024 [Refer note (i)], Mr. Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer), Mr. Abhishek Mishra (Company
Secretary) of Jubilant Industries Limited [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Abhishek Kamra (Company Secretary) of Jubilant
Industries Limited [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) upto 13 November 2024 [Refer note
(ii)], Mr. Hariom Pandey (Company Secretary) [Refer note (ii)], Mr. Priyavrat Bhartia (Chairman & Director), Mr.
Shamit Bhartia (Director), Mr. Radhey Shyam Sharma (Independent Director), Mr. Ravinder Pal Sharma
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(Independent Director), Ms. Shivpriya Nanda (Independent Director) up to 31 March 2024. Ms. Sanjanthi Sajan
(Independent Director) w.e.f. 10 February 2024, Mr. Manish Gupta (Director of Jubilant Industries Inc. USA), Mr.
Sachin Kumar (Secretary and Chairperson of Jubilant Industries Inc. USA).
(i) Mr. Manu Ahuja ceased from the position of CEO and Managing Director of Jubilant Industries Limited

and CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company due to his sad demise on 09 December 2023. Mr. Jagat
Sharma was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 12 December 2023 and resigned
from the post of Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 26 June 2024. Mr. Mohandeep Singh was
appointed as CEO and Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 27 June 2024.

(ii) Mr. Abhishek Mishra was the Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited up to 15 April 2023. Mr.
Abhishek Kamra was appointed as Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited w.e.f. 25 May 2023 on
interim basis and stepped down from the position of Company Secretary in consequent to appointment
of Mr. Brijesh Kumar as Company Secretary of Jubilant Industries Limited and the Company w.e.f. 07
August, 2023. Mr. Brijesh Kumar resigned from the Company w.e.f. 13 November 2024. Mr. Hariom Pandey
appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 01 February, 2025.

3. Others:
Pace Marketing Specialties Limited Officer’s Superannuation Scheme (Trust), Jubilant Bhartia Foundation.

4. Details of related party transactions:
31 March 2025 (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Enterprises Key Others Total
No. in which certain management

key management personnel
personnel are

interested
1 Sale of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 172.83 - - 172.83
172.83 - - 172.83

2 Purchase of goods, utilities and services:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 72.38 - - 72.38
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 278.00 - - 278.00
Jubilant Generics Limited 0.35 - - 0.35
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited 0.14 - - 0.14

350.87 - - 350.87
3 Rent expenses:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited 2.91 - - 2.91
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 6.29 - - 6.29
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited 0.90 - - 0.90

10.10 - - 10.10
4 Transfer in of employee related liabilities

on transfer of employees:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.27 - - 0.27

0.27 - - 0.27

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(Contd...) (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Enterprises Key Others Total
No. in which certain management

key management personnel
personnel are

interested
5 Remuneration (including perquisites)*:

Mohandeep Singh (Whole-time Director) - 30.80 - 30.80
Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) - 18.49 - 18.49
Jagat Sharma (Whole-time Director) - 2.88 - 2.88
Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) - 2.18 - 2.18
Hariom Pandey (Company Secretary) - 0.44 - 0.44

- 54.79 - 54.79
6 Sitting fees:

Sanjanthi Sajan (Director) - 1.08 - 1.08
Radhey Shyam Sharma (Director) - 1.62 - 1.62
Ravinder Pal Sharma (Director) - 1.71 - 1.71

- 4.41 - 4.41
7 Reimbursement of expenses:

Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, USA 1.72 - - 1.72
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 1.22 - - 1.22
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited 0.61 - - 0.61

3.55 - - 3.55
8 Recovery of expenses

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.02 - - 0.02
0.02 - - 0.02

9 Contribution towards superannuation fund:
Pace Marketing Specialities Limited Officer’s - - 0.44 0.44
Superannuation Scheme Trust

- - 0.44 0.44
10 CSR expenses

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation - - 12.73 12.73
- - 12.73 12.73

11 Trade payables:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 15.14 - - 15.14
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 44.29 - - 44.29
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, USA 12.54 - - 12.54
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 1.71 - - 1.71
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 0.08 - - 0.08

73.76 - - 73.76

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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31 March 2024 (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Enterprises Key Others Total
No. in which certain management

key management personnel
personnel are

interested
1 Sale of goods, utilities and services:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 142.49 - - 142.49
142.49 - - 142.49

2 Purchase of goods, utilities and services:
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 38.37 - - 38.37
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 241.59 - - 241.59
Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited 0.14 - - 0.14

280.10 - - 280.10
3 Rent expenses:

Jubilant Pharmova Limited 2.90 - - 2.90
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 6.23 - - 6.23

9.13 - - 9.13
4 Transfer out of employee related liabilities

on transfer of employees:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 1.95 - - 1.95

1.95 - - 1.95
5 Remuneration (including perquisites)*:

Manu Ahuja (Whole-time Director) - 56.23 - 56.23
Umesh Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) - 15.92 - 15.92
Abhishek Mishra (Company Secretary) - 0.60 - 0.60
Jagat Sharma (Whole-time Director) - 0.25 - 0.25
Abhishek Kamra (Company Secretary) - 4.78 - 4.78
Brijesh Kumar (Company Secretary) - 1.78 - 1.78

- 79.56 - 79.56
6 Sitting fees:

Shivpriya Nanda (Director) - 0.86 - 0.86
Radhey Shyam Sharma (Director) - 1.32 - 1.32
Ravinder Pal Sharma (Director) - 1.33 - 1.33

- 3.51 - 3.51

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(Contd...) (` in million)
Sr. Particulars Enterprises Key Others Total
No. in which certain management

key management personnel
personnel are

interested
7 Reimbursement of expenses:

Jubilant Enpro (P) Limited 1.00 - - 1.00
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 1.21 - - 1.21
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, USA 0.90 - - 0.90
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 0.45 - - 0.45
Jubilant Life Sciences (USA) Inc., USA 0.39 - - 0.39
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 0.07 - - 0.07

4.02 - - 4.02
8 Amount received against sale of assets:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 10.38 - - 10.38
10.38 - - 10.38

9 Contribution towards superannuation fund:
Pace Marketing Specialities Limited Officer’s - - 0.73 0.73
Superannuation Scheme Trust

- - 0.73 0.73
10 CSR expenses:

Jubilant Bhartia Foundation - - 11.45 11.45
- - 11.45 11.45

11 Trade payables:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 4.87 - - 4.87
Jubilant Pharmova Limited 49.09 - - 49.09
Jubilant HollisterStier LLC, USA 10.55 - - 10.55
Jubilant Pharma Holdings Inc. 0.46 - - 0.46
Jubilant Cadista Pharmaceuticals Inc. 0.07 - - 0.07

65.04 - - 65.04
12 Trade receivables:

Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 0.32 - - 0.32
0.32 - - 0.32

13 Other receivables:
Jubilant Ingrevia Limited 2.35 - - 2.35

2.35 - - 2.35

* Does not include in respect of gratuity and leave encashment since the provision is made on actuarial basis
for the Company as a whole.
Note: Transactions are shown inclusive of GST, wherever applicable.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR
A) Guarantees:

Outstanding guarantees furnished by banks on behalf of the Group/by the Group including in respect of
letters of credit is ` 1,179.93 million (Previous Year: 836.50 million).

B) Claims against Group not acknowledged as debt:
Claims/Demands in respect of which proceeding or appeals are pending and are not acknowledged as debts
on account of:
i) (` in million)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Custom duty - 20.28
Service tax - 2.36
GST 1.52 45.81
Others (excluding amounts mentioned in note (ii) and (iii) 64.72 62.77
below)

ii) A Civil Suit/ OS No. 5549/2013, was by Kids Kemp (the “Plaintiff”) before the Hon’ble City Civil Court,
Bengaluru, against Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“JACPL”). The Suit was filed on 30 July
2013 seeking recovery of ` 132.23 million, monthly rental of ` 14.375 million from August 2013 onwards,
` 10 million as damages from May 2013, and compensation for alleged damage to the leased property.
After implementation of the Commercial Courts Act, 2015, JACPL filed writ petition before the Hon’ble
High Court of Karnataka, the Writ was allowed and the Suit was transferred to the Commercial Court,
Bengaluru, with new No. COM.OS No. 346/2024 (formerly OS No. 5549/2013). After completion of court
proceedings the Hon’ble Commercial Court held that the monthly payments of ?10 million made by JACPL
constituted full and final settlement of rent, and accordingly dismissed the Plaintiff’s claims of ` 132.23
million and also rejected their monthly and damage claims etc. That against this order Kids Kemp have
filed a Commercial Appeal bearing No. 325 of 2024 before the Division Bench of the Karnataka High Court
U/ Section 13(1A) of the Commercial Courts Act, 2015. JACPL, remains confident on the merits of this case
and is vigorously contesting the Appeal. It is pertinent to note that the subject matter of the dispute
pertains to the Retail business, which has since been divested.

iii) A civil suit bearing OS No. 5561/2014, instituted by Shivashakthi Builders (the “Plaintiff”) against Jubilant
Agri and Consumer Products Limited (“JACPL/Company”), before the Hon’ble City Civil Court, Bengaluru.
The Plaintiff had claimed damages aggregating to ̀  218.86 million, allegedly arising out of the termination
of a lease agreement executed between the parties. JACPL has filed its written statement and detailed
objections, setting out the legal and factual grounds justifying the termination of the said lease. Pursuant
to the proceedings, the Hon’ble City Civil Court, by its order dated 30 October 2024, passed a partial
decree in favour of the Plaintiff, awarding a sum of ` 80.00 million with interest at the rate of 8% per
annum from the date of institution of the suit until realization along with litigation costs of ` 1.31 million.
Aggrieved by the said decree, the Company has preferred a Regular First Appeal (RFA No. 259/2025)
before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka at Bengaluru, inter alia, on the ground that there was no
breach of contractual obligation warranting such an award. The Hon’ble High Court has admitted the
appeal and, vide its interim order, stayed the operation of the impugned decree, subject to the Company
depositing 50% of the decretal amount, i.e., ` 40.00 million. JACPL, remains confident in the merits of its
case and is vigorously contesting the matter. It is pertinent to note that the subject matter of the dispute
pertains to the Retail business, which has since been divested.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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41. COMMITMENTS AS AT YEAR END
a) Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) ` 87.39 million
(Previous Year: ` 120.55 million) [Advances ` 0.99 million (Previous Year: ` 2.76 million)].

b) Other commitments
Export obligation under Advance License Scheme on duty free import of raw materials, remaining outstanding
` 302.026 million (Previous Year: ` 960.76 million).

42. LEASES
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Lease liabilities at the beginning of the year 185.59 220.75
Add: Additions during the year 48.69 2.20
Add/(Less): Adjustments on account of extension/termination 0.04 (10.89)
during the year
Less: Payments on account of lease liabilities during the year 19.57 26.47
Lease liabilities at the end of the year 214.75 185.59

Carrying value of assets
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Land & Others Land & Others

Buildings Buildings
Balance at the beginning of the year 166.02 1.97 193.82 17.03
Add: Additions during the year 31.52 17.17 0.22 1.98
Add/(Less): Adjustments on account - - (0.04) (10.24)
of extension/termination
Less: Amortization during the year 29.29 4.18 27.98 6.80
Balance at the end of the year 168.25 14.96 166.02 1.97

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
(` in million)

Maturity analysis- contractual undiscounted As at As at
cash flows 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than one year 43.00 28.67
One to five years 173.16 131.24
More than five years 75.89 228.48
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 292.05 388.39
Current lease liabilities 27.28 14.27
Non-current lease liabilities 187.47 171.32
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Amount recognized in Statement of profit and loss
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest on lease liabilities 18.82 16.92
Expenses related to short-term leases 49.16 38.11
Loss/(Gain) on termination of lease 0.04 (0.60)
Amortization of right of use assets 33.47 34.78

Amount recognized in statement of cash flows
(` in million)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total cash outflows for leases 38.39 43.39

43. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS:
During the previous year exceptional items includes:
- impact of increase in realisable value of subsidy receivable consequent to the upward revision in Nutrient

Based Subsidy (NBS) rates by Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers vide office memorandum no. 23011/2/2024-
P&K dated 1st March 2024,

- impact of reduction in realisable value of subsidy receivable consequent to the downward revision in Nutrient
Based Subsidy (NBS) rates by Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers vide office memorandum no. 23011/10/2023-
P&K dated 26th October 2023, and

- provision made for one time ex-gratia payment to be made to the legal heir of the diseased CEO & Managing
Director of the Company.

44. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME
The Company has two Employee Stock Option Scheme namely,
- JACPL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2013 (“Scheme 2013”)
- JACPL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018 (“Scheme 2018”)

Scheme 2013:
Parent Company constituted “JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme 2013 (Scheme 2013)” for employees of the
Company, its subsidiary company. Under the Scheme 2013, up to 5,90,000 stock options can be issued to eligible
employees of the Company/subsidiary company. The options are to be granted at the price as determined by the
Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (Committee), in accordance with the applicable laws.
Each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to subscribe 1 (one) fully paid equity share of ` 10 of the
Company. 20% of the options shall vest on first anniversary of the grant date, subsequent 30% shall vest on second
anniversary and balance 50% of the options shall vest on the third anniversary of the grant date or as may be
decided by the Committee from time to time, subject to compliance with the applicable laws.
The Company has constituted a Compensation Committee, comprising of a majority of independent directors. This
Committee is fully empowered to administer the Scheme 2013.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025
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The movement in the stock option under the “Scheme 2013” during the year is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Options Average Options Average

Exercise Exercise
Price (`̀̀̀̀) Price (`̀̀̀̀)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,35,672 308.62 95,343 234.40
Granted during the year 21,524 1,383.80 42,670 475.08
Expired/Lapsed during the year 760 529.25 2,341 320.00
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,56,436 456.86 1,35,672 308.62

Scheme 2018:
Parent Company constituted “JACPL Employees Stock Option Scheme 2018 (Scheme 2018)” for employees of the
Company, its subsidiary company. Under the Scheme 2018, up to 5,00,000 stock options can be issued to eligible
employees of the Company/subsidiary company. The options are to be granted at the price as determined by the
Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (Committee), in accordance with the applicable laws.
Each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to subscribe 1 (one) fully paid equity share of ` 10 of the
Company. Options shall vest at the end of the third year from the grant date or as may be decided by the Committee
from time to time, subject to compliance with the appicable laws.
The Company has constituted a Compensation Committee, comprising of a majority of independent directors. This
Committee is fully empowered to administer the Scheme 2018.

The movement in the stock option under the “Scheme 2018” during the year is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Options Average Options Average

Exercise Exercise
Price (`̀̀̀̀) Price (`̀̀̀̀)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,19,600 10.00 1,08,600 10.00
Granted during the year 61,308 10.00 11,000 10.00
Expired/Lapsed during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 1,80,908 10.00 1,19,600 10.00

The expenses arising from share-based payment transaction recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss as part of employee benefit expense ` 26.81 million (Previous Year: ` 30.71 million).

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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45. The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by
the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence
of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Group is in the process of updating
the documentation for the specified domestic transactions entered into with the specified persons and the
international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such
records to be in existence before the due date of filing of income tax return. The management is of the opinion that
its specified domestic transactions and international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation
will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision
for taxation.

46. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATIONS
(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against

the Group for holding Benami property.
(ii) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the

statutory period.
(iii) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(iv) The Group is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies

Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilfull defaulters issued
by the Reserve Bank of India.

(v) The Group has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
(vi) There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
(vii)Transactions with Struck off Companies

The transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
the Companies Act, 1956 are as under:

For the year/As at March 31 2025: (` in million)
Name of struck off company Nature of Amount of Balance Relationship

transactions transactions outstanding with struck
off company

Laxmi Agro-Industrial Consultants Payable 46.63 6.10 External
Vendor

For the year/As at March 31 2024: (` in million)
Name of struck off company Nature of Amount of Balance Relationship

transactions transactions outstanding with struck
off company

Laxmi Agro-Industrial Consultants Payable 3.09 0.24 External
Vendor

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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47. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE III TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, OF
ENTERPRISES CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARY.
Name of the enterprise Net Assets i.e. Total assets Share in profit or loss

minus total liabilities
As % of Amount As % of Amount

consolidated (`̀̀̀̀ in consolidated (`̀̀̀̀ in
net assets million) profit or million)

(loss)
Parent
Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited 98.89 3,219.04 100.47 881.72
Subsidiary (Foreign)
Jubilant Industries Inc. USA 3.74 121.70 1.99 17.49
Total eliminations (2.63) (85.64) (2.46) (21.62)
Total 100.00 3,255.10 100.00 877.59

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

48. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Profit computation for basic & diluted earnings

per share of `̀̀̀̀ 10/- each
Net profit as per Consolidated Statement of Profit & ` in million 883.06 306.78
Loss from continuing operations available for equity
shareholders
Net loss as per Consolidated Statement of ` in million (5.47) (9.59)
Profit & Loss from discontinued operations available
for equity shareholders
Net profit as per Consolidated Statement of Profit & ` in million 877.59 297.19
Loss from continuing and discontinued operations
available for equity shareholders

II Weighted average number of equity shares for
earnings per share computation
(A) For basic earnings per share Nos 1,50,67,101 1,50,67,101
(B) For diluted earnings per share:

No of shares for Basic EPS as per II (A) Nos 1,50,67,101 1,50,67,101
Add: Weighted average outstanding options Nos 2,80,772 1,80,258
related to employee stock options
No of shares for diluted earnings per share Nos 1,53,47,873 1,52,47,359

III Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
continuing operations:
Basic ` 58.61 20.36
Diluted ` 57.53 20.12
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
discontinued operations:
Basic ` (0.36) (0.64)
Diluted ` (0.36) (0.64)
Earnings per equity share of `̀̀̀̀ 10 each from
continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic ` 58.25 19.72
Diluted ` 57.17 19.48
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49. Previous year figures have been re-grouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to conform current year’s
classification.

The accompanying notes “1” to “49” form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date.
For BGJC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Priyavrat Bhartia
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer Director
Membership No. 098308 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 00020603

Mohandeep Singh
Place : New Delhi Place : Gurugram CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Date : 29 May, 2025 DIN: 10661432

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Contd...)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

Consolidated
Financial StatementsCorporate Overview Statutory Reports

Standalone
Financial Statements



Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited236

Form AOC - I
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES AS PER COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY
(`̀̀̀̀ in million & USD in thousand)

1) Sr. No. 1
2) Name of the subsidiaries Jubilant Industries Inc. USA

3) Reporting currency USD INR*
4) Share capital (Equity) 0.11 0.01
5) Reserve & surplus (Other Equity) 1423.69 121.69
6) Total assets 3,611.05 308.65
7) Total Liabilities 2,187.25 186.95
8) Investments - -
9) Turnover/Total income 14,182.44 1,198.65
10) Profit/(Loss) before taxation 291.53 24.65
11) Provision for taxation 84.69 7.16
12) Profit/(Loss) after taxation 206.84 17.49
13) Proposed dividend Nil
14) % of shareholding 100%

* For the purpose of conversion of accounts, USD in to Indian Currency, following rates have been applied:
Average rate for F.Y. 2024-25 1 USD = ` 84.5166
Rate as at 31 March 2025 1 USD = ` 85.4750

Note: There is no associate companies / joint ventures of the Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Jubilant Agri and Consumer Products Limited

Priyavrat Bhartia
Director
DIN: 00020603

Hariom Pandey Umesh Sharma Mohandeep Singh
Place : Gurugram Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer CEO & Whole-time Director
Date : 29 May, 2025 Membership No. F9349 DIN: 10661432
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